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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B 25 4 2

2017/2018 2016/2017 Increase/(Decrease)
2017/2018% | 2016/20174F £,/ ORd)
Amount
ik %
Operating results (HK$'000) BEER(B%TR)
Revenue WA 188,550 201,815 (13,265) (6.6)
Gross profit EH 131,175 133,243 (2,068) (1.6)
Loss/Profit for the year FREBR/ R (7,221) 8,308 (15,529) (186.9)
Profitability (%) BFIREN(%)
Gross profit margin EME 69.6 66.0 3.6 55
Net profit margin W= (3.8) 4.1 (7.9 (192.7)
Return on equity B R HR= 0.7) 1.0 (1.7) (170.0)
Return on total assets BEEDRE (0.7) 0.9 (1.6) (177.8)
Liquidity nHEE
Current ratio (time) MENLL & (17) 7.5 11.4 (3.9 (34.2)
Quick ratio (time) RELE (17) 7.2 1.1 (3.9) (35.1)
Inventory turnover (days) RERE (X&) 58.8 58.5 0.3 0.5
Trade receivables turnover (days) B RYGIERE (RE) 37.2 38.0 (0.8) 2.1)
Trade payables turnover (days) BHREMNTIERSE (RE) 60.7 458 14.9 32.5
Per share data SRS
Earnings per share BRET
- Basic (HK cents) —E AR (L) 0.05 0.96 (0.91) (94.8)
- Diluted (HK cents) —83% (B1) 0.05 0.95 (0.90) (94.7)
Dividend per share SRR S
- Interim (HK cents) — R (L) 1.00 1.00 - -
— Final (HK cents) —RE (L) 1.00 1.00 - -
- Special (HK cents) —455 (&) - 1.00 (1.00) (100.0)

2 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.
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In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following terms and expressions shall have the meanings set out
below.

“Audit Committee” the audit committee of the Company

“Board” the board of Directors

“Brand Development and the business segment in which the
Management Segment” Group purchases primarily personal care

products from the brand proprietors and
manages and develops the brand of such

products
“BVI’ the British Virgin Islands
“Company” Hin Sang Group (International) Holding

Co. Ltd. TS E (BB AR 2 a],
an exempted company incorporated with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
28 October 2010

“Controlling has the meaning ascribed thereto under
Shareholder(s)” the Listing Rules and, in the context of
the Company, means each of Mr. Pang,

Mrs. Pang and Genwealth

“Director(s)” the director(s) of the Company

“Fullshare” Fullshare Holdings Limited (2 5% 7= i%
AFR/A7]), a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability
whose issued shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 607)

“Fullshare Group” Fullshare and its subsidiaries

DEFINITIONS
a
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DEFINITIONS

B

“Genwealth”

“GMP”

“Group” or
“Hin Sang Group”

“Healthcare Segment”

“Hin Feng Group”

4 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2017/2018

Genwealth Group Holding Company
Limited (TTEREERAR AR, a
company incorporated with limited liability
on 5 October 2010 in the BVI, the issued
shares of which are owned as to 90%
by Mr. Pang and 10% by Mrs. Pang, a
controlling shareholder of the Company
under the Listing Rules

“Good Manufacturing Practice” is a
quality assurance approach used by
drug manufacturing industry worldwide
to ensure that products are consistently
produced and controlled according
to appropriate quality standards.
Hong Kong, like most other countries,
has adopted the GMP guidelines
promulgated by the World Health

Organisation (WHO)

the Company and its subsidiaries

the business segment in which the Group
engages in providing Chinese medical
healthcare related services which targets
for mothers and children in Hong Kong
and the PRC

Hin Feng Group (International) Holding
Company Limited 725 E (BEER) 2%
AFRA7], a company incorporated with
limited liability on 7 July 2016 in Hong
Kong, owned as to 51% by Hin Sang
Holding and as to 49% by Five Seasons
VIl Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Fullshare)
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“Hin Sang Holding”

“Hin Sang Hong (HK)”

IIHK$7J

“Hong Kong” or “HK”

“Listing”

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Mr. Pang”

“Mrs. Pang”

4

“Period” or “Year’

“PRC” or “China”

Hin Sang Group Holding Limited ($7
EEBEERABRAT), a company
incorporated with limited liability on 11
September 2006 in the BVI and directly
wholly-owned by the Company

Hin Sang Hong Company Limited (74
7B AT]), a company incorporated
with limited liability on 13 June 1996 in
Hong Kong and wholly-owned by Hin
Sang Holding and an indirect subsidiary
of the Company

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency
of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the listing of the Shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the Macau Special Administrative Region
of the PRC

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (2 4>47) , an executive
Director and a Controlling Shareholder

Ms. Kwan Lai Man (BR85E) , the spouse
of Mr. Pang, an executive Director and a
Controlling Shareholder

the year ended 31 March 2018
the People’s Republic of China which,

for the purposes of this report, excludes
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
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DEFINITIONS

B

“Pre-IPO Share Option

“Product Development

Scheme”

Segment”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Share Option Scheme’

“Stock Exchange”

“Tai Wo Tong

Pharmaceutical”

“Trading of Goods

6

Segment”

the Pre-IPO share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 25
September 2014

the business segment in which the Group
develops own personal care products,
health supplements and household
products sold under its own brands,
including but not limited to “Hin Sang (17
A)” “Shuang Long (#%)”, “King’s
Antiseptic (B £ )" and “Beautymate
(ENDOFR)”

The Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company

holder(s) of the Share(s)

the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 25 September 2014

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong)
Company Limited ( KM =2% (F%) A
[R/A 7)), a company incorporated with
limited liability on 6 April 2009 in Hong
Kong

the business segment in which the Group
engages in trading and distributing skin
care products, personal care products
and household products purchased
from various authorised dealers and
independent traders or directly from
suppliers
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Pang Siu Hin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Kwan Lai Man
Dong Meixian (resigned on 1 March 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Wong Wai Ling
Yuen Chi Ping

Independent non-executive Directors

Lau Chi Kit (appointed on 16 October 2017)
Lee Luk Shiu

Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Tsui Nam Hung (retired on 16 October 2017)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Lee Luk Shiu (Chairman)

Lau Chi Kit (appointed on 16 October 2017)
Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Tsui Nam Hung (retired on 16 October 2017)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Lau Chi Kit (Chairman)

(appointed on 16 October 2017)
Tsui Nam Hung (Chairrman)

(retired on 16 October 2017)
Kwan Lai Man
Lee Luk Shiu
Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (Chairman)

Kwan Lai Man

Lau Chi Kit (appointed on 16 October 2017)
Lee Luk Shiu

Tsui Nam Hung (retired on 16 October 2017)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Wong Ting Dan (resigned on 1 July 2017)
Polien Kho (appointed on 1 July 2017)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
N

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Pang Siu Hin
Kwan Lai Man

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1213-1215, 12/F, Seapower Tower,
Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

Chak & Associates
Kwok Yih & Chan

AUDITOR
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE/REGISTERED OFFICE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.hinsanggroup.com

STOCK CODE
Stock Exchange: 6893

ENQUIRES

Company:
Email: contact@hinsanggroup.com

Public Relations Consultant:

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
Email: HSH_enquiry@sprg.com.hk

REAX

% D47

WEE
BNEERBEEIEERBE
BB NEAYE

REEEIRERES

AR KE12181213-1215%F
SERER R

BICEmTT

SRR B ISAT

% ]
BEETR =B AR AR
FEERBIT

BB LBEZRITBERAR
RERTT (BE)BRAR
TERGBEETE
2SR

Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,

P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2018

N2018%F3 831 H i P (Internatlonal) Holding Company Limited
G S R)IERABR A

Hin Sang Group Holding Limited
PTESEERERAR

100%

HM Advertising Company Limited

VitaNu (Canada) Health
100% Products Limited

0/
Chong Sang (HK) Company Limited 100%

BIEEB)ERA

Hin Sang Children Chinese Medical &
100% Health Service Company Limited
PTHE R EREEEROERAR

100%
100%

Beautymate Hong Kong Limited

Hin Feng Investment
100% (NanJing) Co., Ltd.*
L& (AR)ERAR

100%

100% Hong Kong Pharmaceutical &
Research Instltute Co., Limited
Bl

o Nanjing Hin Sang Shuangzha TCM
70% Outpatient Department Co., Ltd.*
ARTESRh B 2EHERAR

100%

100% | Company Limited

BRAF

Hin Sang Holding Group
(Shenzhen) Company Limited*
PTEEREBORY)ER AR

Nanjing Hin Sang E-Park TCM
70% Outpatient Department Co., Ltd.*
FARITAERIERER BT AR AR

100%

100%

Hin Hong Internatlonz: F(;om%any Limited HinTailPhammacauic NanJing Hin Sang Animation

B 100% (Shenzhen) Company Limited* 70% Production Company Limited*
ES

2GR ARAF MARITEREEXRRAR

100% Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical Hin Yau Commercial (Shenzhen) Herbal Family (Nanjing)
(Hong Kong) Company lelted 100% Company Limited* 100% Caterlng Company lelted*
framECRYDERAA] b !

Hin Hong medical management NandJing Hin Sang Children Chinese
100% (Shenzhen) Company Limited* LRI Medical Hospital Company Limited*
TTRERERE(RINERA ROTERERBRARAA

Nanjing Hin Feng Health
Management Company Limited*

Hong Kong Medicine Manufacture
Holdings Co., Ltd. 100%
e ZERER AR
68%

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical & Hin Fai International Holding
Re: earch Institute Co., Ltd Company lelted
BRIERR A RA ap-d AR

Quanzhou Hin Sang Xiangtai TCM
Outpatient Department Co., Ltd.*
RNHT A 2R BE P

Hin Fai Hong Company Limited
PTIETT AR AT

i Hin Sang Health and Me'dif:al | Hin Fai Electronic Commerce
100% (Gll{an%gon& CQTPa\"y L"‘/l'tSd (Shenzhen) Company Limited*
TR R R (FR) AR AR PTREF KGRI ERAR

Hin Sang Biomedical Technology
100% (Guangdong) Company Limited*
PTEEYBRE(ER)ERAR

Hin Sang Analysis & Testin . . . o .
100% (Guangdo%g) ooympany Limiéd* * The English name is for identification only

PTEAHRIR (BR)GR A A * %X%$ﬁ{%{#‘§g&)ﬂj”

Hin Sang Medical
100% (Guangdong) Company Limited*
TE (BR)ARRA]

ZE-L/ZE-NEFER TEEE (BBR)ERBRAE 9

e A o g



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
eV S

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of Directors of Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries, | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the Year.

ANNUAL REVIEW

Hong Kong’s retail environment has been returned from the rock
bottom for the past year, however the retail sales are still in low level
according to the Hong Kong Statistic Bureau. The Group is facing
competitive environment in these few years. Though there were
numerous factors affecting the Group’s performance this year, we
were still able to maintain a substantial market share in the children
healthcare products sector.

BRIR

AABRRITEEE (BBR)IZEBRARRA R
EZghERAMNBARMAREAEE
AEEHNFERSE -

FE O

BE—F BETERFRCHEERE BR
BEERBRRBNER TEHEDENERE
KF - AEBEMBRATFETAZRFE
MERR - BEAFEAZRARTEARE
RIRIL - WD E TN R EREMITE
BmENMISMEE-
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The Group has managed to seize new opportunities in the Healthcare
Segment focusing on mother-infant Chinese medical healthcare as
well as diagnosis and treatment services projects in both HK and
the PRC. Our first Chinese Medical Clinic (the “Clinic”) in Shek Mun,
Shatin, Hong Kong was operated since June 2017. There are two
Clinics in the Nanjing City of the Jiangsu Province, the PRC, the first
one named Nanjing Hin Sang E-Park TCM Outpatient Department
Co., Ltd. (ARITAEMEREFREMZHBMRAF]) was operated
since May 2018 and the second one named Nanjing Hin Sang
Shuangzha TCM Outpatient Department Co., Ltd. (R {74 £/
FREEFS2EBABR A A]) is in the process of obtaining the Healthcare
Permit and aim to open in July 2018.

The Group has also constructing a production plant for
manufacturing health supplements in Yunfu City of the Guangdong
Province, the PRC, aiming to reduce the product cost by self-
manufacturing rather than Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”)
to outside supplier, and increase the efficiency and attaining more
stringent quality control on its own brand products.

The Group has laid a strong foundation for a long term development
in the healthcare segment. Although the market environment is very
competitive, the Group believes that this segment is a niche market
and in the long run, it will generate sustainable revenue and bring
in value for the Group. Most importantly, the Group is dedicated to
nurture children and sincerely believes that children are the most
cherished member of our society, and it is our top priority to care for
them.

ANNUAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group’s total revenue amounted to approximately
HK$188.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately 6.5%
from HK$201.8 million for the last year. The Group recorded a net
loss of approximately HK$7.2 million, comparing with a net profit of
approximately HK$8.3 million for the last year.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01
per Share for the Year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV S

PROSPECTS

Despite the difficult market conditions, the Board believes that
“Hin Sang ($74)” has been well positioned and able to meet
the growing demand for high-quality healthcare supplements
from consumers in Hong Kong and China. Therefore, the Group
is confident that Hong Kong market can still provide a stable
platform for its business development. To cope with the upcoming
challenges and seize future opportunities, the Group will remain
prudent and implement the following strategies to create value for our
Shareholders:

(a)

(b)

12

Actively expanding the business of Chinese
medical healthcare and treatment services

The Group is actively expanding the business of mother-infant
Chinese medical healthcare as well as diagnosis and treatment
services to grasp the fast growing market. The two-child policy
in China has brought great opportunities. With the openness
of Hin Sang Herbaby Health Centre in Hong Kong and two
Chinese medical clinics in Nanjing, China, the Board believes
that the new business will bring new profit growth for the
Group in the future. Looking forward, the Group will continue to
identify suitable healthcare projects and expand the number of
stores through mergers and acquisitions.

Developing new products and brands for
mother-infant healthcare

The Group is preparing to launch a series of new products
for the mother-infant market this year, three of which are to
meet the beauty, bodycare, nourishment and other needs of
women, especially for a new generation of women concerned
with their health. Those products will be launched under a new
brand “Hin Mei (7€) ”, and expected to be publicized in the
summer of 2018 through effective and innovative promotion
channels. Children’s series will also be added by some Chinese
patent drug products to further enhance the portfolio of our
own brand products. Owing to the huge development potential
of the market, the Group will expand the market with mid-to-
high end products, expecting new products to gain market
share in mother-infant health food products market in both HK
and the PRC.
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(c)

(d

Expanding sales opportunities in overseas
markets

As Hong Kong's business matures, the Group also plans to
expand overseas markets in addition to actively entering the
Chinese market. At present, the Group’s products are prepared
to be exported to Australia and many countries in Southeast
Asia, including Vietnam, Thailand, Burma, Kampuchea,
Malaysia and Singapore. The Group will also expand sales
network and recruit related teams in line with the future
development, hoping to increase its overall turnover and profit
from 2018 onward.

The Group will further expand cross-border e-commerce
and explore international overseas e-commerce for its own
brand products, in order to increase the Group’s turnover and
contribute to its profit.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
members of the board of Directors, management and employees
for their valuable contributions to the development of the Group as
well as to our shareholders, investors and business partners for their
continuous trust and support to our Group. We believe the year
ahead will be full of opportunities and challenges. Hin Sang Group
(International) Holding Co. Ltd. will continue to make effort to create
greater values for our Shareholders and investors.

Yours faithfully
Pang Siu Hin
Chairman

25 June 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the marketing, selling and
manufacturing of healthcare products primarily targeting at children,
among which “Hin Sang (#74)” has been a long established
reputable brand. To align with the consumer’s trend, the Group
continues to expand the e-commerce business through electronic
platforms. To leverage on existing resources to increase profit, the
Group also trades in skin care, personal care and slimming products
of reputable brands. It is also developing its business in mother-
infant Chinese medical healthcare as well as diagnosis and treatment
services projects.

For the Year, the Group’s revenue was approximately HK$188.6
million, representing a decrease of approximately 6.5% as compared
to approximately HK$201.8 million for the last year. The Group has
four business segments classified by their ownership, licensing rights
and services rendered. During the Year, the Product Development
Segment, selling the Group’s own brand products with a relatively
high gross profit margin, was still the largest segment of the
Group which contributed approximately 95.8% (2017: 88.7%) of
the Group’s revenue. On the other hand, the revenue contribution
from the Brand Development and Management Segment fell
from approximately 9.4% of the total revenue for the last year to
approximately 3.3% of the total revenue for the Year. The Trading
of Goods Segment recorded a continuous drop in revenue and its
revenue contribution remains in low level of approximately 0.4%
(2017: 1.9%). Healthcare Segment, being in start-up stage, only
accounted for approximately 0.5% of the total revenue for the Year.

The Group’s business operations are mainly based in Hong Kong,
though its products are distributed through distributors appointed
in the PRC, Taiwan, Macau, and export to markets such as
Malaysia. Revenue generated from Hong Kong market for the Year
recorded approximately HK$145.9 million (2017: HK$155.3 million),
representing approximately 77.4% of the total revenue for the Year
(2017: 77.0%). On the other hand, revenue generated from the
PRC market for the Period recorded approximately HK$41.0 million
(2017: HK$42.2 million), representing approximately 21.7% of the
total revenue for the Year (2017: 20.9%). The revenue generated
from sales in Hong Kong decreased due to weakened purchasing
power of tourists from the PRC under the Individual Visit Scheme.
Also, the revenue generated from sales in the PRC decreased due to
weakened purchasing power of citizen of the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Product Development Segment

Under the Product Development Segment, the Group develops and
sells healthcare products, personal care products and household
products under its own brand names, mainly being “Hin Sang (£7
A )7, “Tai Wo Tong ( AFIE ) ”, “Beautymate (ZEJLM3%) 7, “Shuang
Long (Z8E) " and “King’s Antiseptic (3% & £ ) ”. The Group started
developing the “Hin Sang (#T4) ” brand in year 2004 mainly for its
health supplements. “Tai Wo Tong ( KF1%E ) ” was developed in year
2012 mainly for the Group’s proprietary Chinese medicine category
with a view to further enhancing brand recognition of the Group'’s
own brand products.

The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$180.6 million
for the Year, represented a slight increase of approximately 1.0%
compared to approximately HK$178.9 million for the last year. This
segment’s profit for the Year was approximately HK$36.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately 52.1% comparing to
approximately HK$24.2 million for the last year, which was mainly
due to (i) increase in profit contribution from products developed by
the Group under its own brands with improved profit margin and (ii)
there was an unrealised net exchange gain for the Year, as compared
to an unrealised net exchange loss for the last year. This segment’s
profit margin for the Year was approximately 20.4% while the profit
margin for the last year was approximately 13.5%.

Brand Development and Management Segment

The Group has a proven history of managing and developing
a number of brands for its brand proprietors (who are mainly
manufacturers and brand proprietors of the products) in respect of
their personal care products mainly in the Hong Kong market since
1999. The Group entered into an exclusive distribution agreement
with each of the brand proprietors and provided them with one-stop
marketing, sales and distribution, logistic and delivery services for
their branded products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Amongst the products managed and developed by the Group for
the brand proprietors, the major brands are “See Young CZR) ",
“Pahmi (E23E) *, “Venic (fEt ) ", “Zici (&) " and “Sunew
(B8%7) . The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$6.3
million for the Year, represented a decrease of approximately
66.8% compared to approximately HK$19.0 million for the last
year. Such significant decrease was mainly due to the shift of focus
by the management of the Group to the Product Development
Segment during the Year in order to enhance the brand image
of the Group’s own-branded products. This segment recorded a
profit of approximately HK$0.6 million for the Year while a loss of
approximately HK$2.6 million was incurred for the last year.

Trading of Goods Segment

The Group has served its trade customers with high quality products
sourced from authorized dealers and overseas suppliers. Products
within this segment with low profit margin will be phased out, and
more resources will be put into Product Development Segment which
is expected to yield higher profit margin.

The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$0.7million for
the Year, represented a significant decrease of approximately 81.6%
compared to approximately HK$3.8 million for the last year and it
accounted for approximately 0.4% and 1.9% of the Group’s revenue
for the Year and for the last year respectively, as the management of
the Group focused on the Product Development Segment during the
Year. This segment’s loss for the Year was approximately HK$71,000
as compared to approximately HK$371,000 for the last year.

Healthcare Segment

Healthcare segment provides different types of healthcare related
services and products in Hong Kong and the PRC for mothers and
children by establishment of Clinics with medical treatment and
consultation by experienced Chinese physician who specialised in
mother-infant Chinese medical healthcare.

The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$0.9 million and
it accounted for approximately 0.5% of the Group’s revenue for the
Year. This segment’s loss for the Year was approximately HK$15.8
million as compared to approximately HK$3.8 million for the last
year, the significant increase due to this segment is still in start-up
stage with heavily operating costs incurred before generating decent
revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had a total of 219 staff as at 31 March 2018. The
employees of the Group are paid based on fixed salary, sales
commission individually and year-end discretionary performance
bonus. The Group has devised an assessment system for its
employees and the Group uses the assessment result for salary review
and promotion decisions. All of the employees undergo a performance
appraisal once a year. Such an appraisal provides the Group with
an opportunity to assess each individual employee’s strengths and
areas for improvement, thereby enabling the Group to effectively train
and develop each individual employee. A Share Option Scheme was
adopted in September 2014 to recognise and acknowledge those
employees who have made contribution to the Group.

PROSPECTS

The Group is confident that Hong Kong market can still provide a
stable platform for its business to expand. The Group continues
its effort in new product development in order to enrich health
supplements portfolio and enhance the brand image as being a
specialist in providing health supplements. The Group ensures
that only those products with high sales volume potential should
be retained in its product portfolio. At the same time, the Group
will also focus on China’s market development, especially in the
health supplement market for children. The Group believes that this
market will be greatly benefited by the launch of China’s “two-child”
policy. To seize this opportunity, the Group will continue to expand
its distribution network by recruiting additional distributors and put
more resources to promote corporate image in order to expand its
customer base.

The Group has outlined the following strategies for its future business
development, with caution but aim to creating values for the
Shareholders:

(@) To expand in the mother-infant healthcare market
through joint venture with the Fullshare Group

The Group has established a joint venture company with
Fullshare Group to expand the business of mother-infant
Chinese medical healthcare as well as diagnosis and treatment
services to capture this fast-growing market in both Hong Kong
and the PRC. The first Hin Sang Herbaby Health Centre in Shek
Mun, Shatin, Hong Kong was operated since June 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(c)
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In addition, the Group formed two joint venture companies with
EREPEYREFEZRAERAA (Nanjing South Chinese
Medical Fullshare Health Institute Company*) (the “Health
Institute”) to operate another two Clinics in Nanjing City of
the Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The first Clinic was operated
since January 2018 and the second Clinic was soft opened
on 29 May 2018. The Directors believe that these joint venture
companies can further leverage on the financial resources,
management experience and expertise of the Group and Health
Institute, in light of the huge opportunity brought by the“two-
child’policy of the PRC. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 June 2017.

To continue enhancing brand recognition of the
Group’s own brands

The Group has developed the “Hin Sang ($74) ” brand into
a well-recognised brand in Hong Kong through an effective
targeted advertising program which is well-positioned
emphasising on product safety and quality.

The Group continued focusing on and applying its brand
strategies of multichannel marketing and diverse product
portfolios. The Group adopted a market oriented research
and product development strategy to meet evolving customer
demands and needs while achieving rapid growth. The Group’s
new product development initiative for the coming year will
focus on developing more products in mother and children
health supplements in Hong Kong and the PRC.

To expand the manufacturing arm of the Group

The Group plans to enhance the production efficiency of its
own brand products in order to capture future opportunities.
With reference to the Company’s announcement dated 21
June 2017, the Group intends to develop a production plant
for manufacturing health supplements in Yunfu City of the
Guangdong Province, the PRC, aiming to reduce the product
cost by self-production rather than Original Equipment
Manufacturer (‘OEM”) to outside supplier, and increase
efficiency and attaining more stringent quality control on its own
brand healthcare products. On 9 October 2017, the Group paid
RMB17.4 million (equivalent to HK$20.7 million) as land use
right payment in relation to acquisition of a piece of land, and
the production plant is under construction stage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Furthermore, with reference to the Company’s announcement
dated 25 April 2018, the Group acquires an industrial property
with a gross floor area of approximately 29,000 square feet at
the consideration of HK$158,380,000 located in Shatin, Hong
Kong. The Group intends to use certain portion of the industrial
property as a GMP manufacturing plant to serve the post-
processing procedures for its own brand products, and the
remaining part will be used as warehouse. The Director believes
that it will achieve rental saving in the long run and better cost
control, and also provides more stringent quality control on its
own brand healthcare products.

To expand e-commerce for own-branded
products

The Group will continue to enhance its e-commerce platform
which focus on online sales of the products under “Hin Sang
($74) ", through which customers, particularly those in
the PRC can place orders online and enjoy home delivery
services. Revenue from e-commerce platforms accounted for
approximately HK$16.5 million (2017: HK$9.1 million) of the
Group’s total revenue for the Year. The Group will continue
to introduce more high quality health supplements on online
platforms to expand our product portfolio and market scale.

The English name is for identification purposes only

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$188.6 million for the
Year as compared to HK$201.8 million for the last year, representing
a decrease of approximately 6.5%. Such decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in its sales of products under the Brand Development
and Management Segment and Trading of Goods Segment.

—E—t 2 N\FER

GEEE Y i

YAl R AR 2 ) B #520184 525
Bz g NEEAKE158,380,000
BRMBRESY B2 TENE
3R SEE L 529,000F 5 R - & &
B3 8146 TR EE T80 MIERA
REFRERAEL EERE U E
AEARRBIEERNBEER TR
s T OB AR EERA X
B REHEE S RE TR
R ERRBREEREEERE
ZHEE L -

d) BAEXREERZETHY

AEEREBEEAREETEBYSE
EXRPELERER LERZETH
FTEVYHEEZARXIRREHF
EEFHEMTE]EM-RAEEFH
BEaZWAMREEBRAFEE B
AZ #1658 E BT (2017F 918
BEL) AKBBEENRLETEH
PEZSEERERAAM BAXER
EREERTIGHEE-

5 % (51 &

A
AREEAEEZ WA BH188.6H BT
BEF 1201 .87 BB TR L 416.5% © R
OTHEBHRRIMARRER D BURE

an B B 7 8B 2 7 an $H & BB D o

PTEEE (ER) ZRERLDF 19



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the Year, the revenue generated from the Product
Development Segment increased by approximately HK$1.7 million,
representing an increase of 1.0% as compared to the last year. The
revenue generated from the Brand Development and Management
Segment and the Trading of Goods Segment decreased by
approximately HK$12.7 million and HK$3.1 million respectively,
representing a decrease of approximately 66.8% and 81.6% as
compared to the last year. The decrease in revenue for these
segments was mainly due to the decline in revenue from the Hong
Kong market, as a result of the stagnant retail market in Hong Kong
which result in a cautious sentiment of the local customers. Revenue
generated from Healthcare segment was approximately HK$0.9
million and it accounted for approximately 0.5% of the Group’s
revenue for the Year.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by 16.3% from approximately
HK$68.6 million for the last year to approximately HK$57.4 million
for the Year. Such decrease was primarily due to the drop in the cost
of sales under the Brand Development and Management Segment
and Trading of Goods Segment by approximately 62.2% and 79.6%
respectively as compared to the last year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 1.5% from approximately
HK$133.2 million for the last year to approximately HK$131.2
million for the Year. The gross profit margin for the Year increased
from 66.0% to 69.6%, which was mainly resulted from introduction
of higher profit margin products from the Product Development
Segment.

Other Income

The Group’s other income increased from approximately HK$5.1
million for the last year to approximately HK$6.4 million for the Year.
Such slight increase of other income was mainly due to the dividend
income from an available-for-sale investment of approximately
HK$2.0 million which is partially set-off by the decrease in interest
income from bank deposits of approximately HK$0.7 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses for the Year recorded a loss of approximately
HK$11.6 million (2017: a loss of approximately HK$6.7 million). The
loss was attributable to an impairment loss on an available-for-sale
investment of approximately HK$16.3 million and it is partially set-off
by an unrealised net exchange gain of approximately HK$5.8 million
for the Year (2017: an unrealised net exchange loss of approximately
HK$7.5 million).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 7.6% from
approximately HK$41.0 million for the last year to approximately
HK$37.9 million for the Year. Such decrease in selling and distribution
expenses was attributable to the decrease in advertising expenses
in Hong Kong due to the change of the Group’s marketing and
advertising strategy by conducting more marketing and advertising
on paper media rather than on TV media in Hong Kong.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by HK$9.4 million or 12.1% from
approximately HK$77.7 million for the last year to approximately
HK$87.1 million for the Year which was mainly attributable to
(i) the increase of depreciation and amortisation expenses from
approximately HK$7.4 million for the last year to approximately
HK$10.2 million for the year; (ii) the increase in travel and
entertainment expenses from HK$6.2 million for the last year to
approximately HK$8.7 million for the year; (i) the increase in staff
costs (excluding share-based payment expenses) from approximately
HK$29.4 million for the last year to approximately HK$30.8 million for
the Year; (iv) the increase in donation from HK$0.8 million for the last
year to approximately HK$2.1 million for the year and the increase in
office expenses from approximately HK$5.2 million for the last year
to approximately HK$6.4 million for the Year. Healthcare segment
accounts for 68.1% among the increment of HK$9.4 million.
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Taxation

The Group’s tax charge increased by 76.6% from approximately
HK$4.7 million for the last year to approximately HK$8.3 million for
the Year. The increase in tax charge was due to adequate provision
of Hong Kong Profits Tax at 16.5% which has been made based
on the assessment of profit before tax of the individual operating
companies.

Loss/Profit for the Year

During the Year, the Group recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$7.2 million for the Year compared to a net profit of approximately
HK$8.3 million for the last year.

Other Comprehensive Income

The Group recorded other comprehensive income increased by
2,772.1% from approximately HK$4.3 million for the last year to
approximately HK$123.5 million for the Year as result of a fair value
gain on an available-for-sale investment of approximately HK$108.1
million and exchange gain on translation of foreign operations of
approximately HK$15.4 million.

Available-for-sale Investments

The Group held available-for-sale investments for medium to long
term purpose, and it represented investment in two listed equity
securities which are stated at fair value.

The first listed equity security represents 118,765,000 shares in
Fullshare (stock code: 607), and there was no addition or disposal
of the shares of Fullshare during the Year. As at 31 March 2018,
the carrying amount of these shares amounted to approximately
HK$516.6 million (as at 31 March 2017: HK$408.6 million), with the
fair value gain of approximately HK$108.0 million was recognised
as other comprehensive income for the Year, and these shares
represented approximately 0.6% of the issued ordinary shares of
Fullshare as at 31 March 2018. The carrying amount of these shares
represented approximately 50.9% of the total assets of the Group as
at 31 March 2018.
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The second listed equity security represents 45,411,600 shares in
Nanijing Sinolife United Company Limited (“Nanjing Sinolife”) (stock
code: 3332). With reference to the Company’s circular dated 21
September 2017, the Company purchased these shares from
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fullshare at the consideration of
HK$73,112,676 and the transaction was completed on 18 October
2017. There was no addition or disposal of this investment during
the Year. As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of these shares
amounted to approximately HK$56.8 million, with an impairment
loss of approximately HK$16.3 million recognised for the Year due to
significant decline in the market value compared with the purchase
cost, and these shares represented approximately 4.8% of the issued
ordinary shares of Nanjing Sinolife as at 31 March 2018. The carrying
amount of these shares represented approximately 5.6% of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 March 2018.

The fair value of these securities as at the date of this report was
approximately HK$457,037,000.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories increased by 7.9% from approximately
HK$8.9 million as at 31 March 2017 to approximately HK$9.6
million as at 31 March 2018 which was primarily due to the increase
in finished products for distribution by 10.5% from approximately
HK$7.6 million as at 31 March 2017 to approximately HK$8.4 million
as at 31 March 2018. The inventory turnover days increased from
58.5 days for the last year to 58.8 days for the Year.

Held For Trading Investment

The Group held several listed equity securities for short term trading
purpose and they are stated at fair value. The largest portion of
listed equity security represents 5,746,000 shares in Nanjing Sinolife
which were purchased from the primary market during the Year. As
at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of these shares amounted
to approximately HK$7.2 million, and these shares represented
approximately 0.6% of the issued ordinary shares of Nanjing
Sinolife as at 31 March 2018. The carrying amount of these shares
represented approximately 0.7% of the total assets and 80.0% of
the held for trading investments of the Group as at 31 March 2018.
The fair value of these securities as at the date of this report was
approximately HK$6,263,000.
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Trade Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables increased by 30.5% from
approximately HK$16.7 million as at 31 March 2017 to approximately
HK$21.8 million as at 31 March 2018, which was primarily
attributable to the decrease in trade receivables from distributors
arising from the purchase of healthcare products of the Product
Development Segment. Trade receivables turnover days slightly
deceased from 38.0 days for the last year to 37.2 days for the Year.

Trade Payables

The Group’s trade payables decreased by approximately 1.0% from
approximately HK$9.6 million as at 31 March 2017 to approximately
HK$9.5 million as at 31 March 2018. The trade payables turnover
days increased from 45.8 days for the last year to 60.7 days for the
Year.

Liquidity, gearing ratio and capital structure

The Group’s bank balances and cash were mainly denominated
in HKD and RMB, the balances were decreased by approximately
35.6% from approximately HK$288.9 million as at 31 March 2017
to approximately HK$186.0 million as at 31 March 2018. As at 31
March 2018, the Group had no outstanding bank borrowings; and
the amount of unutilized banking facilities was approximately HK$120
million. The gearing ratio (total debts divided by total equity) as at
31 March 2018 was nil (31 March 2017: nil). The current ratio (total
current assets divided by total current liabilities) as at 31 March 2018
was 7.5 (31 March 2017: 11.4).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, the Directors were not aware of any significant
events that would have resulted in material contingent liabilities.

Charges on the Group's assets

As at 31 March 2018, none of the assets of the Group were pledged
in favor of any banks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total capital commitments of
HK$6.3 million in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

Event after the reporting period

On 25 April 2018, Beautymate Hong Kong Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a provisional sale
and purchase agreement with the vendor, Emwell Limited, an
independent third party, for acquisition of an industrial property and a
car parking space at the consideration of HK$158,380,000 and the
transaction shall be completed on or before 8 October 2018. The
Group intends to use certain portion of the industrial property as a
GMP manufacturing plant to serve the post-processing procedures
for its own brand products, and the remaining part will be used as a
warehouse.

Financial Management and Policy

The Group continues to adopt prudent financing and treasury
policies. The Group’s entire financing and treasury activities are
centrally managed and controlled. Implementation of the Group’s
related policies is made under collective but extensive considerations
on liquidity risk, financing cost and exchange rate risk. The executive
Directors, with the assistance of the Group’s chief financial officer,
are responsible for identifying, reviewing, evaluating and analyzing the
investment opportunities of the Group. The executive Directors also
regularly monitor the cash position and funding requirements of the
Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (B4 £7) , aged 53, was appointed in October
2010 as an executive Director. He is the founder of the Group
and has been the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group since 1996. He is responsible for the overall strategic
planning, formulation of the corporate policies and the day-to-
day management of the Group. Mr. Pang has about 20 years of
experience in the distribution, marketing and sale of healthcare
products, personal care products and household products, the
experience of which was gained from the operation of the Group.
Mr. Pang was appointed as the director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce since 2005, the honourable president of The
Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong Kong Limited ( & /&t
mAEBE B A A]) in 2008, the honourable chairman of the Hong
Kong Chinese Medicine Industry Association Limited ( &% FF % 3 13
2 AR AR in 2009. Mr. Pang was appointed as the vice president
of Hong Kong & Kowloon Kit Yeung Clansmen General Association
Limited (BB NEEBERMLEGHERAF) in 2009, the executive
vice president in 2013 and became perpetual honourable president
in 2017. Since 2009, Mr. Pang was appointed as the director of Chiu
Chow Clansmen’s Association of Yuen Long District, Limited ( 7t EA
@ EIZFE B R AT, the vice president in 2011 and became the
chairman in 2017. In 2010, he became the life honorary chairman of
Hong Kong Listed Chinese Medicine Practitioners Association ( & /&
KPP EWRE ), and titled as the advisor in 2016.

Mr. Pang is an active participant in the work of charities, appointed
as the director of Pok Oi Hospital in Hong Kong from 2009 to
2011, the vice chairman since 2012, the chairman since 2017,
and became the perpetual adviser since 2018. He worked as the
honourable president of Junior Police Call (Yuen Long District)
since 2010, a member of the standing committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Jieyang City, the PRC, a
member of Yuen Long Town Area Committee under the Home Affairs
Department in 2012, a member of the Committee on the Promotion
of Civic Education under the Home Affairs Department in 2014, the
honourable president of Yuen Long District Healthy City Association
Limited in 2017, and the standing vice president of the1st session of
Friendship Association of the Political Consultative Conference (Hong
Kong Provincial Committee) in Jieyang in 2018.
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Moreover, Mr. Pang became the co-chairman of New Territories Walk
for Millions Organizing Committee of The Community Chest of Hong
Kong (B8 A% %) since 2014 and appointed as the chairman in
2017. He was titled as the vice president of Shenzhen Enterprise
Confederation ORI EE A2 ) in 2015, and the executive vice
president of Tin Yan Charity Organization (X ZE /% T ) and
the honourable president of Shen Kong Jiexi Chamber of Commerce
Limited OREIBFAEE AR A F]) in 2016. In 2017, Mr. Pang was
appointed as the honourable advisor of Hong Kong Children, Babies,
Maternity Industries Association Limited (B2 2 EE e FR
A 7A]) , the honourable president of the management committee in
Hong Kong Love & Care Charity Foundation Limited (& /& & (44
ZH4EHRAF) and the vice president of the Jiangsu Province
Reflecting Health Industry Association (JT & & R T IREITEHE)
and president of its children’s health preservation branch. He is also
the life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan Education Fund Association
focusing on the development of education work in the PRC since
2010. Mr. Pang Siu Hin is the husband of Ms. Kwan Lai Man.

Ms. Kwan Lai Man (BAEES) , aged 46, was appointed in October
2010 as an executive Director. Ms. Kwan is a founder of the Group
and has been the Managing Director of the Group since 1996. She
is responsible for supervising the Group’s business operations. She
has about 20 years of experience in the distribution, marketing and
sale of healthcare products, personal care products and household
products, the experience of which was gained from the operation of
the Group. She is also devoted in the development of education work
in PRC and is the life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan Education
Fund Association since 2010. In 2017, she is appointed as the
vice president of Hong Kong Children, Babies, Maternity Industries
Association Limited (B2 L EXHEHMRAR) . In 2018, she
is appointed as the member of Committee for Yun Fu City of the
People’s Political Consultative Conference and the chairman of board
of directors of Pok Oi Hospital in Hong Kong. Ms. Kwan Lai Man is
the wife of Mr. Pang Siu Hin.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (B2 ¥ ), aged 57, was appointed in
November 2010 as a non-executive Director. Ms. Wong has more
than 25 years of experience in accounting, taxation and auditing.
She received a bachelor’'s degree in arts from the University of
Hong Kong in November 1983 and a diploma in Accounting
and Finance from the London School of Economics and Political
Science, University of London in the United Kingdom in July 1985.
Ms. Wong was registered as a certified public accountant of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in June 1991 and an
associate of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in April 1990. She has worked for more than seven years in major
international accounting firms and major local accounting firms
before she set up her own accounting firm, W. L. Wong & Co.,
in Hong Kong in 1993. Since then, she has been practising as a
Certified Public Accountant. Ms. Wong is an independent non-
executive director of four Hong Kong listed companies, namely,
Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (stock code:
3608), China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited (stock
code: 527), Overseas Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3366), AVIC International Holdings Limited (formerly known
as CATIC Shenzhen Holdings Limited) (stock code: 161). Ms. Wong
also acts as the chairperson of the audit committee of each of these
listed companies. Ms. Wong was an executive director of Tonking
New Energy Group Holdings Limited (previously known as JC
Group Holdings Limited) (Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) stock
code: 8326) and resigned on 18 October 2016. She was also an
independent non-executive director of Glory Flame Holdings Limited
(GEM stock code: 8059) and resigned on 22 March 2016.
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Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (E&F), aged 39, was appointed in July
2016 as a non-executive Director. Mr. Yuen is qualified lawyer in both
Hong Kong, and England and Wales. Mr. Yuen has over 12 years of
experience practicing as a lawyer in the PRC and Hong Kong, and
has extensive experience in corporate law, China-related public and
private mergers and acquisitions, and capital market transactions.
Mr. Yuen obtained a bachelor’s degree in Laws in 2001 and
completed the PCLL programme in 2002 in the University of Hong
Kong, then undertook his traineeship and worked as a lawyer in
various leading international firms. He worked as a special counsel in
the Shanghai office of Baker & McKenzie and was responsible for the
firm’s securities practice in Shanghai. Mr. Yuen is also an executive
director, the vice-chairman of the board and the co-chief executive
officer of LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited (stock code:
1281) since April 2018, the chief executive officer and an executive
director of Applied Development Holdings Limited (stock code:
519) since September 2016, and a non-executive director of China
High Speed Transmission Equipment Group Co., Ltd. (stock code:
658) since December 2016. Mr. Yuen has been a director of Pok Oi
Hospital (a charity organisation) since April 2017. Mr. Yuen was the
chief operating officer of Fullshare Holdings Limited (stock code: 607)
from October 2014 to March 2018, Fullshare Holdings Limited is a
substantial shareholder of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chi Kit ( 818 ) , aged 73, retired from The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (‘HSBC”) in December 2000
after more than 35 years’ of service. Among the senior positions he
held in HSBC, he was the assistant general manager and head of
Personal Banking Hong Kong and assistant general manager and
head of strategic implementation, Asia-Pacific Region. He is a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers (the “Institute”). He was the
chairman of the Institute’s executive committee (from January 1999
to December 2000) and is currently the honorary advisor of the
Institute’s executive committee. He has served as a member of a
number of committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administration Region, including the Advisory Council on the
Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001), the Advisory
Committee on Human Resources Development in the Financial
Services Sector (from June 2000 to May 2001), the Corruption
Prevention Advisory Committee of the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (from January 2000 to December 2003), the
Environment and Conservation Fund Committee (from August 2000
to October 2006), the Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment)
Projects Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004)
and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee (from
February 1990 to March 2006). He has also served as the chairman
of Business Environment Council Limited (from September 1998
to December 2001). Currently, he is also an independent non-
executive director of Royale Furniture Holdings Limited (stock code:
1198), Leoch International Technology Limited (stock code: 842),
Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 509) and
Janco Holdings Limited (stock code: 8035). He is also an executive
director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997).
The shares of Royale Furniture Holdings Limited, Leoch International
Technology Limited, Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited,
Chinlink International Holdings Limited are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. The shares of Janco Holdings Limited are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. He was an
independent non-executive director of Hua Long Jin Kong Company
Limited (formerly known as Highlight China loT International Limited)
(stock code: 1682) from September 2010 to September 2017.
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Mr. Lee Luk Shiu ( ZEi#Jk ) , aged 60, was appointed in September
2014 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lee has about
30 years of experience in commercial accounting and corporate
finance. Mr. Lee became a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in April 2001 and an associate of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February
1987. He obtained a diploma in business administration from Hong
Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) in July 1983. He has worked in the Stock Exchange for
around 15 years from 1986 to 1993 and from 1997 to 2005, his
duties included regulating and monitoring the Hong Kong listed
companies in relation to their compliance with the Listing Rules and
processing new listing applications. His last position with the Stock
Exchange was an assistant vice president of the Listing Division. Mr.
Lee was also a senior consultant of an investment bank for 5 years
from 2007 to 2012. Mr. Lee has been an independent non-executive
director of Huabao International Holdings Limited (stock code: 336)
since 1 May 2006 and Yee Hop Holdings Limited (stock code: 1662)
since 25 November 2015 the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (&8 & # ) , aged 49, was appointed in
November 2010 as an independent non-executive Director. Dr. Tang
has over 15 years of experience in the financial and securities sector.
He is the Election Committee Member (Financial Services) of HKSAR.
He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business, majoring in finance
from Edith Cowan University, Australia in February 1993 and holds a
PhD. degree in Economics from Renmin University of China in July
2007. He became a senior associate of the Australian Institute of
Banking and Finance in December 1995 and was appointed as Hong
Kong Chief Analyst by the Finance and Securities Institute of Renmin
University of China in December 2010. He is also the executive
director of AP Assets Limited and the Non-Executive Director of
Edvance International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 8410).
He is also the chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Financial
Analysts and Professional Commentators Limited and the executive
committee member of the Hong Kong Securities Professionals
Association. He is the Committee Member of The Listed Companies
Council, Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association. He was an
Executive Director of Power Financial Group Limited (formerly known
as Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited) (stock code: 397) from June
2015 to June 2018.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

o3 5 o AR P

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Polien Kho (¥8E ), aged 35, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 1 July 2017.
Ms. Kho is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators respectively. She has more than 10 years of
experience in producing company secretarial services to private and
listed companies.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheuk Wah Kit ( SEZf) , aged 35, is the Assistant Sales
Director of the Group. He joined the Group in July 2005 since
graduation. He is responsible for managing the daily operation of
the sales department. In particular, he is responsible for managing
skin care products, personal care products, general food products
as well as Chinese medicine products in Hong Kong and oversea
markets. He graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in science in 2005. Since
then, he has been working at the Group’s sales department and
made valuable contribution to the Group. Mr. Cheuk is familiar with
the Group’s internal operation and external sales strategies. He has
accumulated 12 years of relevant experience.

Mr. Mak Wing Keung (ki) , aged 51, is the assistant
information technology director of the Group. He joined the Group
in May 2004 and is responsible for its network administration and
provides information technology support. He received a certificate
of an advanced diploma in computer studies and in electronic
commerce in the London International College for Further and
Higher Education in June and September 2001 respectively. Prior to
joining the Group, he has worked as a technical support supervisor
providing information technology support, network administration,
hardware and software development in a firm from 2002 to 2004 and
has worked as a supervisor supervising a team of technicians and
servicing personnel from 1993 to 2002 and has accumulated more
than 20 years of relevant experience.
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2)
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SCOPE OF REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report was
prepared in accordance to the Listing Rules’ Appendix 27
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”. It
covered the operations of the head office of the Group (Tsim
Sha Tsui) and the principal place of business (Yuen Long) of Hin
Sang Hong Company Limited in Hong Kong during the period
from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018. The report is published
once a year.

GROUP’S POLICY

The Group has been consistently practicing and striving
to improve its work in the areas of environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”). Consequently, policies have been
established to disclose the Group’s visions to Shareholders and
public on the followings:

o To devote to the society through contribution and
services;

o To pursue continuous improvement in the culture of
governance;

o To collaborate with business partners and employees by
upholding accountability, fairness, devotion and integrity;

o To dedicate to attaining sustainable development and
achievement for all Shareholders and stakeholders; and

o To emphasise on environmental protection.
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3) COMMUNITY SERVICE

“The Eternal Extension of Life” is the Group’s motto. By
connecting with the community, the Group is striving to instill
hope and provide support to the disadvantaged and contribute
to the society, while cultivating a sense of belonging among
the Group’s employees. Driven by this social responsibility, the
Group took every effort to participate in community services
and charity events over the past years. Hin Sang Hong
Company Limited has attained the award of “Caring Company”
from The Hong Kong Council of Social Services for 11 years in
a row.

Board members of our Group actively dedicated to charity
events. Mr. Pang Siu Hin, Chairman of the Group is cordially
participating in public positions of social and charitable
organizations, including but not limited to chairman of Pok
Oi Hospital 2017/2018 board, event co-chairman of The
Community Chest New Territories Walk Organising Committee,
honorary president of Yuen Long District Junior Police Calls
honorary president committee, school manager of POH Tang
Pui King memorial College and committee member of Home
Affairs Department — Yuen Long Town Area Committee since
2010/2011. Besides, Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Executive Director
of the Group is vice president of Hong Kong Children, Babies,
Maternity Industries Association Limited and life honorary
chairman of Xuan Yuan Education Fund Association. Mr. Yuen
Chi Ping, Non-Executive Director of the Group is a director of
Pok Oi Hospital 2017/2018 board.
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Hin Sang Scholarship

“Hin Sang Scholarship” was established in 2015 and aims at
awarding and sponsoring students from low-income families in
order to bring upon positive impact to their lifes.

The 3rd Hin Sang Scholarship was opened for application
and review since April 2017 with judging panel from famous
people in academic and commercial sectors. As compared
with the 2nd scholarship, the 3rd Scholarship has enlarged
the scope of beneficiaries with the aim to support more
students from low-income families. The judging activities were
divided into 6 groups, which covered kindergartens (2 sub-
groups), primary schools, secondary schools, universities, and
Kids4Kids, from which a total of 83 students was awarded.
Each student winner was awarded with scholarship of ranging
from HK$2,000 to $5,000, gifts worth of HK$1,000 as well
as the Certificate of Award. Awards Ceremony for the 2nd
scholarship was organised in August 2017 with participants
from various sectors, including councillors, academia, business
celebrities and artists shared the experience to encourage the
awarded students. The Group’s continued sponsorship hopes
to enhance competitiveness edges of more students from low-
income families for their contribution to the society in the future.

[~ | &

Hin Sang Volunteering Team

The Group encourages employees to participate in volunteering
work, “Hin Sang Volunteering Team”, was formed by our
employees in 2006 which actively participated in various
community and charitable activities. During the reporting period,
the team participated in various events including “Pok Oi Cycle
for Millions”, and “Pok Qi Charity Heritage Walk” to raise charity
funds for relevant institutions.
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AREEBBRNERAFTRER
BitREE BEHE BE BRRR

The Group is striving to allocate resources to support different
aspects of community activities, including education, charity,

environmental protection, community cultural and entertainment
events. During the reporting period, the Group mainly organized
or participated the following community services/events:

Organisation

Hin Sang Group

(International) Holding Co. Ltd.
ITESE (HE) ZRERAF

Event Description

EBAR

Organised the 3rd “Hin Sang Scholarship”,
provided financial aid to students from low-income
families in Hong Kong to help them improve their
learning environment and promote diversified
development.
BRF-ETER2S ] EHTEERREN
B4 EROMNERERERS LI ER:

MR E AR - RARE MR A%
BEEREMPNB2ET AT HRRSE,

e

Cash Donation/
Sponsorship
ReRE/
H®E

Product
Donation

EmRR

Staff
Involvement/
Volunteering

RIs8/
BIR%

Pok Oi Hospital

BEER

Provided cash donations to support the needy in
society

RERRXBATELMEAL

Pok Oi Hospital

BEER

Provided cash donations at Pok Oi Yuen Long
Charity Banquet
ReRTABETNRALERS

Pok Oi Hospital

BEER

Provided in-kind donations to subsidiaries of Pok
Oi Hospital, including nursing home, care-and-
attention home, district elderly community centre,
neighbourhood elderly centre, elderly health
support and learning centre, hostel for single
persons, family development centre
ERNBLEEERB TRERR ERRENR
REER O REBEDL RERRIERE
ErL EFALES FEERTL

Pok Oi Hospital

BEER

Provide in-kind donations to education subsidiaries
of Pok Oi Hospital, including day nursery, primary
school, secondary school
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Organisation

Pok Oi Hospital
HEBR

Event Description

EBAR

Sponsored various activities organised by Pok Oi
Hospital, including Pok Oi Hospital New Territories
Flag Day, Pok Oi Banquet for Nourishing Elderly
Health, Pok Oi Milk Tea Day, Pok Oi Hospital
Charity Xiqu Night, Pok Oi Hospital Charity Heritage
Walk, Pok Oi Musical Celebration for Mid-Autumn,
Pok Oi Old Master Q Charity Run, Pok Oi Chinese
Medicine & Dental Services, Pok Oi Hospital 100th
Anniversary and Set Sail Ceremony for “Pok Oi
Hao" elderly home in Lam Tei, Tuen Mun.
EYRERBLZELY BF BERBRNARE
HE BEHRZLMBELETHAE BENAEE
B BEBRZEBMR BEASXYT BE

PBREPN BEZXTRENR BERBRER
FRRG BERREN-BEAFEEE Bk RN
Bz ks BERAm AR

Staff
Involvement/
Volunteering

RIse/
BIR%

Cash Donation/

) Product
Sponsorship

Donation

EmRE

naRl/
"

Pok Oi Hospital

mewEk

Sponsored the “Pok Oi Cycle for Millions” to
support the needy in society

By BEEEFETIUNEREREZHEA
+o

Hong Kong General
Chamber of Pharmacy Limited

PNEFREES

Provided cash donations to Xuan Yuan Education
Fund Association for supporting Beijing Xuan Yuan
education fund during the charity banquet of the
Chamber

ERENEEERREL BOLATEHEES
2 UAXHIIRHERFHEES

Hong Kong Yuen Long
Chiu Kiu Engor
Association Limited
%/%75% /iq% 9&?/\/’& ég

Provided in-kind donations to support the dancing

activities hosted by the Association for celebration

of the 2018 Chinese New Year in Yuen Long

REMEEDETHRBTONNFRNERE
BEEe

Hong Kong Rope Skipping Club

Sponsored the first kindergarten championship of

BEEANES rope skipping, which was participated by more than v -
120 children from 14 kindergarten »‘(‘*
ENE-EHEREREREREE  H4RDER
RB120%RBERN
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Awards and Achievements

The Group has attained considerable number of awards for
the year ended 31 March 2018. Apart from 11 consecutive
years awarding the “Caring Company” by The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service, the Group also continued with the
last year winning awards from the other institutions for “Chinese
Medicine Award”, “GCCA 100% HK Branding Award”, and
“Consumers’ Most Favourable Hong Kong Brand Gold”,which
assured the contribution of the Group in the aspects of
employee benefits, promotion of community services, product
quality and value creation to the society.
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“Outstanding Corporate Social Responsibility
Award” by Mirror Post
HEEmmE [HE e ET SR EE]
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Qaringoon"r mREMRE

“Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service

BB BB SRS (7 REBR

“Chinese Medicine Award” by Hong Kong
Chinese Medicine Industry Association
ERBPEXGSME
[MEE P B 2oL h B 5T

“Consumers’ Most Favourable Hong Kong
Brand Gold” by China Enterprise Reputation &
Credibility Association (Overseas)
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“GCCA 100% HK Branding Award” by
Greater China Corporation Association
BARHPETIHCEBEGRE
[RPERHBEBBMALE]

4) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s corporate governance policies are based on the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” as required by Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
which are committed to promoting a corporate culture of
trustworthiness, professional ethics and business integrity.
The Group’s corporate values, missions and strategies are
integrated with ethical business practices; also the collaboration
with customers, suppliers and employees are also based
on this corporate culture. The Board and management at all
levels strictly undertake these important responsibilities at both
individual and corporate level.

Code of Conduct

The Group has established Code of Conduct for the
employees. The Board adopts the provision in the “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Report of the Directors” in the annual
report as the basis for the Code of Conduct.

The Code is applicable to both management personnel
and general staff within the Group, and has been clearly
communicated to all employees, including the new staff. The
Code of Conduct mainly covers these three categories:

o Requesting for, receiving or providing benefits;

° Conflict of interest; and

° Confidentiality of information.

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

“Consumers’ leading Hong Kong Brand” by
China Enterprise Reputation &
Credibility Association (Overseas)
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5)

Anti-corruption

The Group strictly requires all employees to abide by local
regulations, perform duties with integrity, and prohibit
acceptance and offer of benefits. Anti-corruption policy has
been established and included in the Code of Conduct. For
reinforcing the effectiveness of the policy implementation, the
Group has arranged relevant training to employees. Training
classes of 25 hours in total had been provided, with the
participation of about 100 attendees. In the same period, the
Group did not identify any legal violation or complaint related to
corruption.

Whistle-blowing Mechanism

The Group has established a whistle-blowing mechanism
to handle misconduct under the supervision of the Group’s
Chairman, Managing Director and the representatives of the
Audit Committee.

Employees are allowed to report and submit evidence of the
suspected or confirmed misconduct to the Group’s Chairman
and/or Managing Director and/or an Audit Committee
representative in verbal or written form (either anonymous
or bearing a name), and thereafter the Group shall carry out
internal investigation. In case of violation of the laws, the Group
shall follow procedure to report to the relevant authority.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group has formulated employment policies and guidelines
that are in accordance with the local regulations, and complies
with the labour laws and related regulations listed in the PRC,
Hong Kong and other business regions. Owing to the needs
of business nature, the Group currently does not employ
personnel below 18 years old and has never engaged forced
labour. The Group also assures that no employee’s salary is
paid lower than the legal minimum wage level as defined in
the government regulations of all judicial regions. During the
reporting period, the Group did not identify any legal violation
regarding employment of child labour or forced labour, and did
not identify or receive any legal violation or complaint regarding
discrimination or recruitment.

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group provides equal opportunity for each employee and is
committed to eliminate any discrimination against gender, race,
family background, age and disability, etc. during recruitment
and job placement. The Group hires and promotes employees
based on their capabilities and performance.
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During recruitment, the Group checks identification documents
according to the local laws for avoidance of child labour
recruitment and prevention of forced labour engagement.
In case of child labour and/or forced labour, the Group
shall terminate the employment immediately. For other
illegal incident, the Group shall report the case to the local
enforcement agencies.

The Group shall proceed in compliance with the local
employment regulations in case of termination on employment.

Retirement

Despite the mandatory retirement policy in place, the Group
will not refuse to consider applicants who are near retirement
age but still want to continue to work after retirement. For
each application of this category, the Group shall evaluate
the relevant staff's individual situation, competence, past job
performance and the Group’s retirement policy, in order to
prevent age discrimination.

Wages and Welfare

The Group’s wages and welfare policy is based on local
industry norms which shall be appropriately adjusted according
to work performance, experience and qualification of the
employee. Employee’s working hours, holidays, and other
benefits are based on the common practices of the local
industry and reasonably adjusted based on the employee’s
experience and seniority. The Group adopts key performance
indicators as one of the criteria for defining the employee
incentive scheme.

As of 31 March 2018, there were 54 employees in Hong Kong,
who all were full-time employees and their distribution was
depicted as follows:

During the reporting period, the monthly average employee
turnover rate was 6%.

Total number of employees in Hong Kong
BEBETIHY

® o
o4

39

Male %

21

61

FemaleZ 1%

33

18-30

BER SEREEWANEESH
BRI R REEE T KB L F
BHIB T - HREBBETR, R
BTHER EESTHRIEEER
R WA EMELAEY  ERERE
b 0,7 A S R

EEAFEEGRERBENOBRLT
AEBIKEE WA REEDIFIT

RAK

SETERHBHIERARBRMERBE
BRI FRESZRKEEET
FMABNBUSRF EEZEBRH
wR gZRENEENER 8
THERIR - RABIRGRIRBOR - AR LE
FRBRMEL -

B R

SENHH R EFBRRABBITRE
RRER YTHREEBENITIER
B EREEREFLEEAR -EEN
TR RO REMENFERE
BHITRERRREERRNLFE
TEH A IR - RER A BERE ISR
ERE TREHEmHE S —E%E]-

HZE2018F3A31H BB T A
Ho4AN 2HAEERET  EOMEE
W

EAXARESHE SAFHNEITRE
ER6% °

Employee age groups
ETFin!

31-45 46-60 >60

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2017/2018
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7)

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group has been striving to provide a safe, healthy
and comfortable working environment by ensuring that the
workplace has adequate lighting and ventilation systems and
is always kept clean and tidy with sufficient work space. The
Group maintains safety conditions of equipment and arrange
firefighting facilities in accordance with the local laws as well as
fire drill in the reporting period, also provides security measures
to prevent unauthorized persons from entering and leaving the
Group’s operating areas.

The Group provides safety training for new employees and
provides relevant occupational safety and health training based
on the job nature of employees. This includes provision of
employees with information about the laws and regulations
in occupational health & safety for employees’ understanding
of such importance. During the reporting period, the relevant
employees were provided with around 10 hours of training in
occupational health & safety.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
violation against the local regulations in occupational health
and safety, and did not identify any fatality or lost work days
resulting from work-related accidents.

EMPLOYEE TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group believes staff quality is an important factor for
maintaining growth and improving profitability, whilst the level
of service and product quality are closely related to employee
training and development. Therefore, the Group strives to
allocate resources for implementation of effective training
system:

° Orientation training for new employee(s);

o Regular relevant training sessions for existing employees;
and

° Training sessions conducted by internal or external
qualified personnel.

Scope of training covers product knowledge, sales techniques,
quality control, as well as the latest laws and regulations that
may have possible impact to business operations. This not only
enables employees to acquire the latest information or skills,
but also enhances their self-confidence and increases their
sense of belonging. Assessment would be conducted after
training to evaluate the effectiveness and to follow up on the
skill development of employees.
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During the reporting period, the relevant training figures for the RASREHRE EESE EHRHE

operating sites in Hong Kong were depicted by gender and BB BBRRERN REBSRERE B
employee category as follows: B
Gender Total number of employees trained Total number of training hours
: 3] ZiER AR 3 BN R
Male
19 38
5.% I|‘E
Female o3 46
7

Employee Category
ERER

Senior Management 6 10

SREIEE

Middle Management
o 11 22

FREIRE

Junior Employees

: = 2

RETL ° 50

Total 42 84

8

8) SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 8) HIEHEEE
The Group strives for partnering with suppliers who share the EEXKEEAMRSHIESHMHE
same business philosophy in running business at a fair, honest EEE URF FERBECREL
and diligent manner. When selecting suppliers, the Group also B ERIEHENER TEHENLD
evaluates environmental, social and governance factors in BEE I RR -2 LREBREIN
addition to the commercial and quality issues. E EMFE AR -
Apart from requesting the supplied products (including T ERKEHEER (BIEBREYE)
packaging materials) to be free from any toxic substances, the A EBSYE  EENEFEBAAFT I
Group also sets the standards of conduct in the procurement FIBR T AEE S EHERENE
contracts to encourage suppliers to share the same vision with BE BB -TAEENEEE
the Group. The scope of the standard of conduct shall include BETREMMMEETNE SER:

the governance aspects of environmental protection and social
responsibility:

e Ensure that suppliers and their upstream entities do not o MRHEEREHELFEREITEIN
force employees to work in any form of violence or threat FR R DR EwF kB EE T
and do not employ child labour; ERTBEBEET:

° Employment is solely based on work performance and not o BIEREEXRIBEIEE N BB
affected by any discrimination against race, gender, age, TATER R T BEMH
disability, sexual orientation or marital status; Y ) sk 48 40 AR O T 3B AT A] I

X
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9)

o Salary is paid at fair value and all other entitled benefits;

° Safe and healthy working environment shall be provided in
compliance with the local laws;

° Business decisions shall adhere to the principle of
sustainable development. Business processes shall
comply with the local regulations on environmental
protection; and

° Integration of the business and organization into the
circumstances of the community.

The Group also encourages suppliers to achieve certification for
management systems (Including but not limited to ISO 9001,
ISO 14001, SA 8000, and ISO 22000). In addition, the Group
shall regularly evaluate the performance of suppliers for defining
strategies of continuous improvement.

As at 31 March 2018, there was a total of 40 suppliers
distributed within the Greater China region. During the reporting
period, the Group engaged 10 new suppliers, and has
evaluated them on their product conformance with the relevant
quality and safety requirements prior to the engagement. For
some existing critical suppliers, the Group also evaluated them
and where necessary arranged on-site assessment for assuring
the comprehensive and reliable evaluation.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Since the Group launches its own brands and acts as agency
of personal care and health products for international brands,
there is strict control in product quality. The scope of this report
has adopted ISO 9001 quality management system to assure
effective procedures and processes are adopted for production
of excellent and safe products. Upon receipt of materials,
quality inspection process is clearly defined and implemented
according to the relevant regulations. Each batch of products
shall only be formally released after it passed the inspection. All
food, Chinese medicine products must go through the testing
on remained pesticides, heavy metals, and micro-organisms.
The Group also regularly monitors the production and quality
inspection procedures of the suppliers for verifying and
confirming the suppliers’ capabilities in provision of compliant
and safe products to the Group.

22—+t "B \FER

9)
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The Group has established the crisis management team for
handling emergency issues and defining emergency instruction
for remediation of any issues and potential risks incurred from
product safety.

Fair Promotional Information

The Group requires staff to provide true and accurate product
and service information to customers when selling the
products. The Group would also provide adequate product
information to customer service personnel, and arrange
appropriate training to ensure they could acquire the accurate
product information. Customer service hotline was also set
up, and each box of product is printed with the company’s
customer service hotline for customer to make after-sales
enquiries when necessary.

Handling of Customer Complaints

Being a responsible supplier of health and personal care
products, the scope of this report has handled all matters
relating to product quality in accordance with the I1ISO 9001
procedures, including customer complaints about product
quality:

° When receiving customer’s complaint or request for
goods return, initial reply to customer will be given within
the time frame specified in the procedure;

° The Group’s customer service representative or sales
team will resolve the complaint through phone, online or in
person; and

° Serious complaints will be followed up by the crisis
management team.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify
any customer complaints or violations against the relevant
regulations in product responsibility, and no product was
recalled for the reasons of safety and health concerns amongst
all products sold.

SEXIEREENEREEESSE
B HEEEEINEERNERT S
BYEENEMEERER -

AFEFFE

SEZRBTHHEERAEFREHRE
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900112 FF B AR 2 i G IREE 2 88 48
MOFE AEEFHEREENR
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s NREEXPRFHIEMEMB
Ko @R Fr R E B0 A R AT
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Management of Intellectual Property Rights

Intellectual property rights managed by the Group mainly cover
its own-branded products registered in the business regions. To
protect the rights of the registered brands, the Group allocates
resources to uphold confidential information like product
specifications. The server storing such information is equipped
with firewall which restricts access from external systems.
Users are required to log in with passwords and are allowed to
access the authorized information only.

Apart from protecting own intellectual property rights, the
Group respects the intellectual property rights of the others
and will not use third party’s intellectual property without prior
authorization.

Maintenance of Customer Information

Although the Group’s direct customers are mainly enterprises,
their information is strictly handled in the same manner
as dealing with personal privacy. The Group bases on the
“Personal Data Protection (Privacy) Ordinance Cap. 486
(“Ordinance”) of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
for its own Privacy Policy, which ensures all collected, stored,
transmitted or used personal/corporate information are handled
according to the requirements specified by the Ordinance. The
Group’s management and staff maintain confidentiality and
properly retain all personal/corporate information collected,
stored, transmitted or used by the Group.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
complaint relating to the privacy issue.

10) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group upholds environmental protection as corporate
culture and recognizes the operational impact on the
environment as an indispensable element in the decision-
making process. The Group is committed to comply with all
applicable local environmental regulations and other related
requirements for promoting sustainable development and
preventing environmental pollution.

a) Control of Emission

Although the operations do not discharge industrial
effluents, the Group strives to identify sources of
greenhouse gases (GHG) for defining the appropriate
resolution to reduce emission, including reduction of
GHG emission sources, improvement in efficiency of
related processes with GHG emissions, reduction in use
of gasoline and increase in use of more environmental-
friendly fuels, etc.
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b)

HIN SANG GROUP

The Group’s current emission reduction measures include
the use of the EU 5 trucks across the board, adoption of
detailed inventory plan to reduce the number of shipments
in procurement, and maximization in the use of waterway
transport.

GHG emission volume
(Tonne carbon dioxide equivalent)

BERBHRE
(M-S tREE)

50.59

GHG emission volume
(Tonne carbon dioxide equivalent)

BERBHRE
(M-S tRER)

158.39

Total annual
consumption

2FHARE

293,314

Total annual consumption

2FHARE

18,397
0

Diesel (Litre)
Sm (DT

Electricity used by
operational facilities (kWh)

EEREHRE (TRE)

Waste Disposal

During product design and sales planning, the Group
adopts the principle of waste reduction through innovative
product design, supply chain management, and waste
recycling. The Group does not generate hazardous
wastes from its current operations, however part of
the operation areas had been renovated for layout
rearrangement during the reporting period, this generated
91.72 tonnes of wastes, in which 72.7 tonnes belonged to
the construction wastes and the remaining 19.02 tonnes
were those discarded because of this renovation.

Recyclable materials are placed at the specified recycling
locations, for instance the waste carton boxes would
be handed over to the recycling agencies. As regards,
employees are encouraged to engage in double-sided
photocopying and single-sided used papers are collected
for reuse in order to reduce wastage.
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Total GHG emission volume
(Tonne carbon dioxide equivalent)

BEREHFRER
(B=F(LHER)

208.98

Annual shipment .

volume (box)

2FEHES (5)

1.06

kg carbon dioxide
equivalent / box

D —EHER/E

196,304

Annual shipment GHG emission intensity
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c)

Use of Resources

In addition to the efforts for reducing emissions, the Group
has also taken appropriate measures to conserve natural
resources for environmental protection. The Group’s
conservation measures are mainly conveyed through
energy management.

The Group adopts both administrative practices and
equipment installation for energy conservation as well as
requesting staff to turn off the air conditioning and lighting
during lunch time and after work hours. The office situated
in Tsim Sha Tsui continued to adopt LED lights throughout
the area, which compared on the energy efficiency with
light bulbs in the past office, daily saving of 11.62 kWh
was achieved.

For utilization of water, our operations do not consume
significant amount of water and the major water
consumption is general office usage. The Group is aware
of scarcity of water resources and educates employees to
save water.

For those operating sites located in Hong Kong, the main
type of packaging materials used by the Group is paper
and the total consumption in the reporting period was 71
tonnes.

c)
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d)

Environment and the Natural Resources

To protect environment and enhance the utilization rate of
natural resources, the Group has included the elements
of environmental protection and sustainable development
in its operations. Through supply chain management,
the Group encourages suppliers to cooperate, jointly
promote and adopt good environmental management
measures, as well as to assess suppliers’ operations for
continuous monitoring and improvement of environmental
performance.

The Group is also actively implementing green office
management, for example use of ERP management
system to promote the use of electronic files. For
paper printing, the Group supports the use of Forest
Stewardship Council certified paper (‘FSC paper”), all the
office papers consumed in the reporting period belong to
the FSC paper, that reflected the Group’s operation is fully
supporting the environmental protection in the perspective
of office paper consumption.

In addition, the Group organises employee trainings
to promote environmental policies in order to enhance
their environmental awareness and strengthen their
competence in policy implementation. In this year, the
number of employees participated in the environmental
related trainings is 42 (including those newly recruited
employees), and the associated trainings totally amounted
to 42 hours in the whole year.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
violation or complaint against the relevant environmental
regulations.

d)
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REFERENCE TO STOCK EXCHANGE ESG
REPORTING GUIDE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

Section in This Report

AA

A1
At1.2
A1.3
A1.4
A1.5
A1.6

A2

A2.1
A2.2
A2.3
A2.4

A2.5

A3
A3.1

B.1

B1.2
B.2

B2.1
B2.2
B2.3

B.3
B3.1
B3.2

B.4
B4.1

B4.2
B.5

B5.1
B5.2

B.6

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4
B6.5

B.7

B7.1

B7.2

B.8

B8.1
B8.2

Emissions

Types of emissions and respective emissions data

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results achieved

Use of Resources

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity
Water consumption in total and intensity

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved

Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference to per
unit produced

Environment and Natural Resources

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them

Employment

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical
region

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region

Health and Safety

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

Lost days due to work injury

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they
are implemented and monitored

Development and Training

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category

Labour Standards

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered
Supply Chain Management

Number of suppliers by geographical region

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored

Product Responsibility

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they
are dealt with

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored

Anti-corruption

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of
the cases

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how
they are implemented and monitored

Community Investment

Focus areas of contribution

Resources contributed to the focus area

10a. Control of Emission

10a. Control of Emission
10a. Control of Emission
10b. Waste Disposal
10b. Waste Disposal
10a. Control of Emission
10b. Waste Disposal

10c. Use of Resources
10c. Use of Resources
10c. Use of Resources
10c. Use of Resources
10c. Use of Resources

10c. Use of Resources

10d. Environment and Natural Resources
10d. Environment and Natural Resources

5. Employment

D oo o, o

~ N

5.
8.

. Employment

. Employment

. Health and Safety
. Health and Safety
. Health and Safety
. Health and Safety

. Employee Training and Development
. Employee Training and Development
. Employee Training and Development

. Employment
. Employment

Employment
Supply Chain Management

Partially Reported

8.

w

Supply Chain Management

. Product Responsibility
. Product Responsibility

. Product Responsibility
. Product Responsibility

. Product Responsibility
. Product Responsibility

. Corporate Governance
. Corporate Governance
. Corporate Governance
. Community Service

. Community Service
. Community Service
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and senior management of the Group strive to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance, to formulate sound
corporate governance practice for improvement of accountability and
transparency in operations, and to strengthen the internal control
system from time to time so as to ensure Shareholders’ expectations
are met.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has
applied the principles and complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
except for the below deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Pang Siu Hin, is both the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. In view
of the fact that Mr. Pang is one of the co-founders of the Group
and has been operating and managing the Group effectively since
1996, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group
to have Mr. Pang taking up both roles for effective management and
business development with his profound knowledge and experience
in the industry. The Board therefore considers that the deviation
from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is reasonably justified under such
circumstances.

Code Provision F.1.1

Under the code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company
engages Ms. Wong Ting Dan (resigned on 1 July 2017) and Ms.
Kho Polien (“Ms. Kho”) (appointed on 1 July 2017) as Company
Secretary during the Period. Ms. Kho is an associate member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators respectively and in
performing her duties as the company secretary of the Company, she
reports to the Board and maintains contact with the chief executive
officer of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
oE 3igi R

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries
with all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the standards required by the Model Code during the Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and reports to them at
general meetings. All Directors are required to pursue excellence in
the interests of the Shareholders and fulfill his/her fiduciary duties by
applying the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard
in accordance with the statutory requirements.

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises a total of seven Directors including
two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors, and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board members for the
Period and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pang Siu Hin Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer

Managing Director

(resigned on 1 March 2018)

Ms. Kwan Lai Man
Dr. Dong Meixian

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wong Wai Ling
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Kit (appointed on 16 October 2017)
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Mr. Tsui Nam Hung (retired on 16 October 2017)

Mr. Pang Siu Hin, the Chairman, is the spouse of Ms. Kwan Lai Man.
Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship), among the
Directors.
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During the Period, the Company at all times met the requirements of
Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board and it exceeds the parameters of
the CG Code.

Board Diversity

We believe diversity of the Board helps foster different perspectives
and the existing Board composition means that the Board would be
more alert to different opportunities and risks. Board diversity leads
to a greater knowledge based, more creativity and innovation within
the Board. This helps us to better understand the varied needs of our
customers, which in turn results in a further multiplicity of customers,
a richer and more extensive customer base and more opportunities
to grow. During the Period, the Board has been diversified in terms of
professional experience, industry experience, age and gender.

Board Meetings

During the Period, the Company held 4 regular board meetings, the
AGM on 8 September 2017, one extraordinary general meeting (the
“‘EGM”) on 16 October 2017, two audit committee meetings on 23
June 2017 and 22 November 2017, respectively, two remuneration
committee meetings on 4 October 2017 and 21 December 2017,
respectively and one nomination committee meeting on 4 October
2017. Details of each Director’s attendance in the aforesaid meetings
are set out below.
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Number of meetings attended/entitled to attend

EHEGE FHHREEZAY
Regular Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee

Directors meetings meetings meetings meeting AGM EGM

EH2E ENERET FHERE® REZAE
B Exged L L] g8 REEFEXE REENIXE
Non-executive Directors FRTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERUT 44 NATEE NATER NATER 1A 0/
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping RETEE 44 NATER  NATER  NATER 0 oA
Independent non-executive Directors BIEHTESR
Mr. Lau Chi Kit (Note(i)) BB LA (M) 202 11 1 0/0 0/0 0/
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu TRk 4/4 2/2 2/2 11 1A 1
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny HREET 4/4 2/2 2/2 11 11 VAl
Mr. Tsui Nam Hung (Note(ii) BB (IR 2/2 11 0N 0/ 11 0/
Notes: Bt At

0} Dr. Dong Meixian resigned as an executive Director on 1 March 2018.

(ii) Mr. Lau Chi Kit was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
16 October 2017.

(iii) Mr. Tsui Nam Hung retired as an independent non-executive Director on 16
October 2017.

The Board and the Management

The Board is responsible for the overall conduct of the Group,
formulating Group policies and business directions, and monitoring
risk management, internal controls and performance of the
management. The Board delegates and gives clear directions to the
Management as to their powers and circumstances in which the
Management should report back or obtain prior the Board approval.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
company matters, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a
view to ensuring that board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations are followed. Each Director is able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense upon making request to the Board.

Executive Directors delegate some day-to-day management,
administration and operation to the senior management. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to significant transactions
entered into by the aforesaid officers. The Board also has the full
support of the executive Directors and the senior management for
the discharge of its responsibilities.

Management for the purpose of this corporate governance
report includes the executive Directors, senior management and
departmental heads. They are responsible for the day-to-day
operations, management and administration of the Group under
the leadership of the executive Directors. They also execute and
implement strategies and directions determined by the Board.

Members of our management are frequently invited to attend the
Board meetings to report and engage in discussions with the Board
in respect of strategy, budget planning, progress and performance
updates to ensure that the Board has a general understanding of the
Group’s business and to enable them to make informed decisions for
the benefit of the Group. They are required to answer any questions
or challenges posed by the Board.

In addition to regular Board meetings, monthly management
meetings were held to review, discuss and make decisions on
financial and operational matters.
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Board Meetings and Board Procedural Matters

The Board meets regularly and has formal procedures to include
matters to be referred to it for consideration and decisions at the
Board meetings. The formal notice and agenda of meetings are
usually sent to all Directors at least 14 days before each meeting
and they are consulted and given an opportunity to comment on the
agenda.

Meeting materials are usually sent to Directors in advance of each
meeting to ensure that the Directors have full and timely access to
relevant information. With a view to becoming more environment-
friendly by reducing paper consumption, meeting materials are
distributed in electronic form and Directors are encouraged to read
the electronic version.

Draft minutes recording substantive matters discussed and decisions
resolved at the meetings are circulated to all Directors for their
comments (if any) within a reasonable time (generally within seven
business days) of each meeting. The final version of the minutes
is approved at the subsequent meeting and a copy is sent to the
Directors for their records. The final executed version is placed on
record and made available for inspection.

The Company generally convenes at least four regular Board
meetings a year. During the Period, four regular Board meetings were
convened:

1. approved the appointment of the Directors and grant of share
option;

2. reviewed and approved the 2016/17 annual report of
the Company and its related results announcements and
documents;

3. reviewed and approved the 2017/18 interim report of
the Company and its related results announcements and

documents;

4. reviewed the operational and financial reports of the Group;
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5. formulated business development strategies and approved the
budget for the financial year;

6. discussed and considered recommendations made by the
board committees;

7. reviewed, discussed and considered the Group’s affairs,
including strategic plans, financial affairs, progress and updates
of business performance, and budget summary/proposals; and

8. reviewed the effectiveness of corporate governance practices,
internal control and risk management.

Independence

We have strong elements of independence on the Board, providing
independent and objective opinions on strategic issues and
performance matters as well as extensive expertise, experience and
insight of each Director to the integration of the Board. The Board
follows the requirements set out in the Listing Rules to determine
on the independence of Directors. The Board determines that the
Directors do not have any direct or indirect material relationship
with the Group. Furthermore, the Company has received an annual
confirmation from each of its independent non-executive Directors
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Professional
Development

All Directors have kept abreast of their responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continuously updated with the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance with and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

Directors are encouraged to participate in professional development
courses and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has devised a training record to assist the
Directors in maintaining their training record.
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All the Directors have confirmed that they participated in continuous FFEESZCHERENAEER EFERE
professional developments to develop and refresh their knowledge & AERIFEFHEEAE B MM
and skills as Directors during the Period. BE ©

The below chart summarises the participation of Directors in training T 2= 8 2t & = 70 B B HA S 2 i o)l K 4%
and continuous professional development during the Period under #BEEZEREKNIBMN -
review.

Types of Continuous Professional Development
FRSXRRRY
Reading Material regarding
regulatory update and

corporate governance Attending seminars/

Name of Directors matters conferences/forums
RETREEEHR HEHRE
BEEl4E PEERFEZCHH Bl RE
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Pang Siu Hin EOTEE v v
Ms. Kwan Lai Man HEZZT v %
Dr. Dong Meixian (Note (i) EXEL (PR v
Non-executive Directors ERTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling HERLT v v
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping RETEE v v
Independent non-executive Directors BUKUTES
Mr. Lau Chi Kit (Note (i) D18 A5 A (BIRE(G)
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu FrkEE v 4
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny HEREEL v v
Mr. Tsui Nam Hung (Note (i) RS A (FIRE () v v
Notes: B 5T
0] Dr. Dong Meixian resigned as an executive Director on 1 March 2018. 0] EXNIE L2018 F3A 1A ERITES -
(i) Mr. Lau Chi Kit was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on (i) 2% #E5E £ 2017510 16 H E R T A BT
16 October 2017. FEIITESE -

(i)~ Mr. Tsui Nam Hung retired as an independent non-executive Director on 16 (i) R EI S £ R2017F10 A 16 B R (EB 7 JEH
October 2017. TESE-
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Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Company has been maintaining an adequate Directors’ and
officers’ (‘D&0”) Liability Insurance, which gives appropriate cover for
any legal action brought against the Directors and officers since the
Company went listed. To ensure sufficient and appropriate insurance
cover is in place, we review the Company’s D&O insurance policy
annually based on recent trends in the insurance market and other
relevant factors. The Insurance Policy is available for inspection by
the Directors upon request. As at today’s date, no claim has been
made since the Insurance Policy came into effect.

Deed of Non-Competition

In order to protect the Group’s interests, the deed of non-competition
dated 25 September 2014 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”)
was executed by the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the
Company. Pursuant to the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition,
Mr. Pang, Mrs. Pang and the Controlling Shareholders have jointly
and severally undertaken that they would not engage in any business
or manufacturing any products which are in competition with those
of the Group. The Company’s independent non-executive Directors
will review, at least on annual basis, the compliance with the Deed
of Non-Competition by the Controlling Shareholders and their
respective close associates on their existing or future competing
business.

Conflicts of Interest

All Directors are required to comply with their common law duty
to act in the best interests of the Company and Shareholders as
a whole. Any perceived, potential or actual conflicts of interest
between the Group and its Directors are to be avoided. The Directors
are requested to disclose their interests, if any, in any transaction,
arrangement or other proposal to be considered by the Board at
Board meetings, and abstain from voting if any conflicts of interest
arise or where they become aware of any perceived or potential
conflicts of interest. All declared interests are properly recorded and
made accessible by the Board members. Directors have a continuing
duty to inform the Board of any changes to these conflicts.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Pang serves as the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company. The reasons have been explained in the section headed
“Compliance with Corporate Governance Code” of this annual report.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (INCLUDING
INEDS)

Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) (including independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”)) make a positive contribution to the
development of the Group’s strategy and policies and scrutinise the
Group’s performance through informed insight and independent
judgement. They constructively challenge the management, which is
vital to fulfill the objectives set out by the Board. In order to preserve
well-balanced governance, the Board has ensured that all members
of the Audit Committee are INEDs, majority of the members of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committees are INEDs, and that each
committee is chaired by an INED.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All our NEDs (including INEDs) are appointed for a term of one year
and are required to offer themselves for re-election at the first AGM
following their appointments. Under the Articles of Association of the
Company, at least one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at the AGM at least once every three years. Retiring
Directors are eligible for re-election at the AGM at which he or she
retires. We confirm that all Directors’ appointments and re-elections
were conducted in compliance with the Articles of Association of the
Company and the CG Code for the period under review.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance and to enhance
the function of the Board, the Board has established the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing specific aspects of the Company’s affairs
under its defined scope of duties and terms of reference. The terms
of reference of each of the Board Committees are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Details of the
Board Committees are discussed below.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required, amongst
other things to review and monitor the Group’s relationship with
the external auditors and the auditors’ independence; monitor the
integrity of the Group’s financial information and review significant
reporting judgments contained in it; oversee the Group’s financial
reporting and review the effectiveness of internal controls and risk
management procedures; and consider major investigation findings
on internal control matters and management’s response to these
findings.

As at 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee consisted of three
members who are the INEDs, namely Mr. Lau Chi Kit, Mr. Lee Luk
Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Lee Luk Shiu.

During the Period, the Audit Committee convened two meetings and
performed the following work:

1. reviewed the 2016/17 annual report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

2. reviewed the 2017/18 interim report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

3.  reviewed and recommended the re-appointment of the external
auditors, taking into account its independence;
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4.  reviewed the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements;

5. approved terms of engagement including the remuneration of
the external auditors and audit service plan;

6. assessed and evaluated the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management procedures and internal control systems; and

7. reviewed and discussed the internal control review projects
conducted by the Internal Audit function, including:

i. internal audit function and progress;

ii.  significant internal audit findings and follow-up remediation
status;

ii.  annual internal audit planning memorandum; and

iv. ~ major investigation findings on internal controls and
management’s response to those findings.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under its
terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee is required, among
other things, to review, determine and make recommendation to the
Board on the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to the Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee has also taken into account a number
of relevant factors such as remuneration packages offered by
companies of comparable business and scale, market practices, and
the financial and non-financial performance of the Group to ensure
that the remuneration packages offered remain appropriate and
competitive.

The Remuneration Committee ensures that no individual Director or
senior management approves his or her own remuneration.

4. WAL ZEHRFELH AR
B HR 2 EERE

5. HEZBGER(BEIBZEEH S
NEZRSETE])

6. RHEAREEEREIEEFRARREEE
EROBYE: K

7. FEHRFWABDEZBEEETHNAR

EEEMER 21

i ABEPEZEBEE NBE

i BARNMEZERLBERENE

iii.  FEA

3 B
N
E'I\_
it
|
E
=
X

AARERER2010F11 A5HBBZES
RERNLFHEER - Aaﬁ%%ﬁlﬁ
ERETAZIRE o B IEE B2 &0 E - % B
%EEM(E$@%ﬁﬁﬁ#mFH%$
KaRERENTMNGSE AFREMEE
kpttmEEgEHEBRZ -

FHEZEeREEZHEABRE  WXK
&ﬁﬁﬁ SRR H BN & - 15
BH RAEB O H RIEFFRIR - URER
RHEAENMABF OGS

FHEZ B eRRMEERE
%ﬂ&ﬁ%%%%°

FRSRER

64 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2017/2018



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As at 31 March 2018, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
four members (one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors), namely Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lau Chi Kit, Mr.
Lee Luk Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny. The chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Lau Chi Kit.

During the Period, the Remuneration Committee convened 2
meetings and performed the following work:

1. reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and

2. reviewed the remuneration of the Directors.
Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under
its term of reference, the Nomination Committee is, among other
things, to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and the management of the Board
succession; to make recommendations to the Board for potential
Board members; to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board; and to assess the independence of INEDs.

As at 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee consisted of
four members (one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors), namely Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lau Chi Kit, Mr.
Lee Luk Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny.

During the Period, the Nomination Committee convened 1 meeting
and performed the following work:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

2. assessed the independence of INEDs;
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nominated suitable and qualified individual for directorships;
and

made recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for the
Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

During the Period under review, the Board as a whole is responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties including:

1)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and the senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the CG Code and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company’s independent external auditors is HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited. The roles and responsibilities of our external
auditors are stated in the Independent Auditors’ Report.
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The remuneration paid or payable to HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited in respect of the audit services and non audit services for
year ended 31 March 2018 are as follows:
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2018 2017

Fee paid/ Fee paid/

payable payable

eft EFABR O EAEA

Nature of services HK$’000 HK$’ 000

RHME B¥TT BT T

Audit services EIZRTE 850 750

Non-audit services IETZRTE

— Review services — 2 5 AR 150 150

— Other services —H M AR 190 -

Total = 1,190 900
Directors’ Accountability and Auditing EEHEREH

The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2018 to reflect a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position as at 31 March 2018 and of its results and cash flows for the
Period.

In preparing of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018, the generally accepted accounting principles
in Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards are adopted, with consistent
use of appropriate accounting policies, for making reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 were prepared on a
going concern basis.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report in this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the effective conduct
of meetings and that proper procedures are followed (including
organising meetings, preparing agendas and the written resolutions
or minutes, collating and distributing meeting materials, and keeping
records of substantive matters discussed and decisions resolved
at the meetings). She also advises the Board on compliance and
corporate governance matters (including updating the Board on
any legal and regulatory changes and facilitating the induction and
professional development of the Directors).

The Board has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary at all times. Ms. Kho has confirmed that she has attended
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
Period.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth (10%) of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association of the Company
or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to
move new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns together with
their names and contact information to the Board by addressing
them to the head office in Hong Kong at Unit 1213-1215, 12/F,
Seapower Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or by e-mail to
contact@hinsanggroup.com for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Constitutional Documents

During the Period, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association. The updated version of
Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company believes that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables Shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.
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The members of the Board, the Board committees and the external
auditors will be present to answer Shareholders’ questions in the
annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be distributed
to all Shareholders before the annual general meeting and any
extraordinary general meetings in accordance with the timeline
requirement as laid down in the Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association of the Company. All the resolutions proposed to be
approved at the general meetings will be taken by poll and poll voting
results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company after the relevant general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any
enquires.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing
basis. The Board acknowledged that the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board places great importance on the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and has ultimate responsibilities for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
wiling to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Board
is also responsible for overseeing in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. The Board is committed to review the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least annually.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
the qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions. The Audit Committee
oversees the systems of risk management and internal control of the
Group and continuously communicates any significant matters to the
Board.

Risk Management Framework

The Group’s risk management framework comprises the following
phases:

° Identification:
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives;

Identify ownership of risks, business objectives

° Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio according to such analysis; and

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and ongoing monitor the residual
risks.

Such framework provides a systematic approach to risk
management process, which is embedded in the system of internal
controls as an integral part of corporate governance. The risk
management framework helps sustain business success, creates
value for stakeholders and supports the Board in discharging its
corporate governance responsibilities by proactively identifying,
addressing and managing key risks within the Group. The Risk
Management framework is aligned with the Committee of the
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO)
Internal Control — Integrated Framework. The components of the
framework are as follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for internal control across the
Group;
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° Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should be
managed;

° Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to
the achievement of objectives are carried out;

° Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

° Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is in place and
functions.

The management takes direct risk management responsibilities as
risk owners.

Risk Assessment

During the year, management of the Company: 1) conducted risk
assessment to identify, filter and prioritize the key risks faced by the
Group; 2) established a risk register to document the Group’s key
risks and their respective risk levels; and 3) identified the mitigating
measures for the identified key risks, and the person-in-charge to
monitor and follow up the implementation progress of the mitigating
measures.

Moreover, there are top eight priority risks which have been identified
under four categories: 1) business and strategic risk; 2) operational
risk; 3) regulatory compliance risk; and 4) financial & reporting risk.

Internal Audit Function

The Internal Audit Department (“IAD”) is an independent and
objective body, which performs the Group’s internal audit function
and directly reports to the Audit Committee and the Board at least
annually. The manager of IAD has a direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Board.
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The IAD has an unlimited access to reviewing the Group’s activities,
internal control, risk management, and corporate governance related
issues. One of the functions is to assist the Board in independently
assessing the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control
systems, risk management process, and more importantly seeking
continuous improvement.

To align with the Group’s growth and latest business developments,
the IAD will always review its adequacy and competency of
knowledge and attend corresponding workshops and/or seminars
whenever thinks fit.

Internal Audit Activities

The IAD has adopted a risk-management based approach in
developing the annual internal audit planning memorandum, which
corresponds to the risk management framework. Risk assessment,
which is regarded as a major and dynamic process, is performed
on a regular basis so as to identify, prioritize and scope business
activities and simultaneously cover business activities with significant
risks across the Group. The Audit Committee reviews and approves
the annual internal audit planning memorandum. In each individual
audit assignment, significant risk areas such as finance, operation,
compliance and fraud risk would further be assessed in order to
evaluate internal control effectiveness and the mitigation efforts made
by the management.

All audit findings and corresponding recommendations on control
deficiencies of each audit assignment would be well communicated
to the management, who needs to initiate any remedial actions to
correct those control deficiencies within a reasonable period of time.
Subsequent reviews are purposefully done to monitor whether those
remedial actions have been performed right on time and correctly.
Significant deficiencies of individual assignment are reported to and
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Through the ongoing reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the
management’s awareness of some key operational processes, the
IAD discharges its duties of performing audit assignment on those
areas on an ad hoc basis if necessary.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company’s
assets and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The Audit
Committee oversees the system of risk management and internal
control of the Group and continuously communicates any significant
matters to the Board. The IAD has submitted its internal control
review reports for the Group to the Audit Committee and the Board
in November 2017. Findings and recommendations concerning
improvements to the Group’s internal controls have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee and the Board. The Board considered that
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems were
effective and adequate during the Period under review.

The Audit Committee has annually reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications, experience and training programs of
the Group’s IAD and accounting and financial reporting staff
and considered that staffing is adequate. All staff has sufficient
competence to carry out their roles and responsibilities.

Findings and recommendations concerning improvements to
the Group’s internal controls have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and the Board. The Board considered the Group’s risk
management system and internal control system of the Group,
including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the accounting, internal audit, and financial reporting function,
and their training programs and budget, are effective and adequate,
and have complied with provisions of the CG Code during the
Period.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present to the Shareholders their annual
report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the marketing, selling and
manufacturing of healthcare products primarily targeting at children,
among which “Hin Sang (#74)” has been a long established
reputable brand. To align with the consumer’s trend, the Group
continues to expand the e-commerce business through electronic
platforms. To leverage on existing resources to increase profit, the
Group also trades in skin care, personal care and slimming products
of reputable brands. It is also developing its business in mother-
infant Chinese medical healthcare as well as diagnosis and treatment
services projects. Details of principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements. There has been no significant change in the
principal business of the Group during the Period. The segment
information of the operations of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2018 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018 including a fair review of the business and discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, indication of likely
future developments in the Group's business, and the environmental
policies and performance of the Group are set out in the “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate
Governance Report”, “Five Years Financial Summary”, and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” sections of this
Annual Report. These discussions form part of this Report of the
Directors.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”) for the disclosure of information and corporate
governance. Event affecting the Group occurred since the end of
the financial year is set out in note 38 of the consolidated financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

B,

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING AND

PLACING

The shares of the Company became listed on the Stock Exchange
on 16 October 2014. The offer price was HK$1.18 per share and
200,000,000 Shares were allotted. The net proceeds from the Listing
was approximately HK$217.3 million after deducting underwriting

fees and related expenses.
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As at 31 March 2018, the net proceeds from the Listing were utilized 70201853831 H » £ AT H¥EARE
as follows: R
Balance of
the Proceeds
as at
19 February Proceeds
2016 used Balance
FrRRARR
#20165
2A19A CHRBRE &
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBTL BEET BEAT
Exploring business collaboration SREFREREEALZ
opportunities with new brand proprietors EBeEke 2.0 2.0 -
Expanding the sales and distribution network B A4 & & 2 #5845 24.1 12.0 12.1
Expanding the product portfolio BAEmMMAE 1.3 1.3 -
Expanding the manufacturing arm of BRAEENHEERR
the Group and exploring opportunities RRBITXSKHe
in health industry 41.5 29.7 1.8
Acquiring commercial property REBRBEEEMEARE
in Hong Kong to use as Group's AEEESNER
own Office 80.0 80.0 -
General working capital —ReEEES 8.7 8.7 -
157.6 133.7 23.9
As at 31 March 2018, the unused net proceeds were placed with 720183 H31H » KR{E M 2 F 1S I F 5

banks in Hong Kong as short-term deposits.

TFRNEB ZRITIEE TR -
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OPERATING RESULTS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 104 of this annual report. The
details of the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 107 and note 37 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01
per Share for the year ended 31 March 2018 (the “2018 Final
Dividend”) with a sum of approximately HK$10,935,080, which
is subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2018
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Monday,
3 September 2018 (the “AGM”). The 2018 Final Dividend will be
distributed on or about Tuesday, 2 October 2018 to Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Wednesday, 12 September 2018.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to its Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movement in the investment property of the Group are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Details of the subsequent event are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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AEBHZE2018F3A3 1AL FEMNEESH
RAFREIVAE ZirE B M EMEEK
WK o AR ERANA RN 2 F#H
HEORENRBIOTEZ A EEEBR K
IRE TG R FRMIFEST o

iR =

BReEZRMNEZ2018F3A31HLEFE
2 RHARR B &R 150.017 T ([2018F K
HIRR B 1) - 425847 /510,935,0807%8 7T A
FRERA R A #1KR2018F9A3H (£ H
—)BITZ2018FEERFBEFARE ([
RIBEFARE]) LHER - FAER - 20184
REFAR B 1§ R2018F 10828 (2 H =) 5
A& K2 T R2018F9H12H (28 =) %
BIARDRIE R AT Z AR -

BERRERR
ARRABTAEEAAEARARKHA
AR T 5 10 1A 190 %5 4R 45 2 7 B T
o

M= BER&E

AEENYE  BEMRBESFBFEN
AP RRMI 5 -
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AEBENRENEEDABENKREHME
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BEPRREHZFRBIANGE M BRI
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Wednesday, 29 August 2018 to Monday, 3
September 2018, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the above meeting, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
28 August 2018.

Subject to the approval of the proposed 2018 Final Dividend by the
Shareholders at the AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 10 September 2018 to Wednesday,
12 September 2018, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered for ascertaining Shareholders’
entittement to the proposed 2018 Final Dividend. In order to
qualify for the proposed 2018 Final Dividend, all transfer forms,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share register in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 7
September 2018.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held on 3 September 2018 and the
notice of AGM will be published and dispatched to Shareholders of
the Company in due course.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 212 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the Period are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

TENEROBFEER

AETERINEARREERRAEFTFAS
kg LREZE®E KRQEHR20185F
8A29H8 (E 8 =)%201849A3H (£
—) (BRREEWMB) BHYERERN B
FERFE BEARRTETERRD
BPEEL - REEABEFE LR RNEG
SE A BPRBERMBEREATER
2018F8A28H (R8I -) THF MUK =+%
RKRXARB 2 BEBROBPELEIREE
BHEELARQAR (HMUABTEERKER
1835% & M AR 2218 ) 1T B R

FRERR AT RS i #EEZR2018F
REFRR B 18 - A A A R2018F9H10H

EH—)Z2018F9A12H (EH =) (&
EEEMB) AHEEHEROHBPERLF
& BT EITRMBEER UETEE
ERREZ2018FRREZRE - BEE
BEIREZE2018FREARE - FTEBP XK
BREEAKNEATER2018F9A7H (£H
) TR =+ ERREARR 2B ERSG
BEELOYRBEESFELABRAR (it
AEE L/ ABRI8IGRA FI R 02218 ) i

1T

BREREFRSE

ARG R2018F9HASH BT R B F K
@ THREERERHZEBRRABFRGES
NEETRRE-

EFEHERE

AEESROhEMBRFENES BERE
BN EHNAFRE212H -

N
AARRARIBRA RSB BERREA
B 7 3 2% W 27 o
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 March 2018 were approximately HK$731.9 million. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, subject to the provisions
of memorandum of association of the Company or the articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”), the Company’s share
premium account may be applied to pay distributions or dividends
to shareholders provided that immediately following the date of
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company repurchased a total of 1,336,000 Shares on the stock
Exchange during the period and details of which are as follows:

B

ARz AR Ik e

20183 A31H A A A Aok T AR R
BN RIIIBEBE T - RENSHS
RENERERARRMEB SR AMNAES
RAR ([ERMEA]D)MESERT AR
AR EERABES RSN TREZ
ARE - AT AR BBEERIEL 9IRS %
BER®E ARRBRENEEEE —MER
BREPEHNES-

BrRBERE
ERMAINA S BB K T mAREL

BEENGREARRRARRABRRDN
FrIRLL DI 2 B E R

BE HEIED KRG
E/\$Hﬂﬁﬂ Z’S 9%5&)5):[&%@ /\

1,336,000/% #% 17 /\a$|ﬁ I E

Purchase Price per Share

SERECEBRE
Number of
Shares
Repurchased Highest Lowest
Date of Repurchase FOARA =Y () dvg g 1= ®{E
HKS HK$ HKS
BT AT AT
25 April 2017 2017545258 1,142,000 1.35 1.33
26 April 2017 20174 H26H 186,000 1.35 1.35
27 April 2017 20174 H27H 8,000 1.35 1.35
1,336,000

—EBE—+ =
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The Shares repurchased were subsequently cancelled on 19 May
2017. Save as disclosed above, the Company has not made any
repurchase of the Shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or
otherwise) during the Period.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group’s total charitable donations for the Period amounted to
approximately HK$2.1 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The followings are the percentage of sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers of the Group for the Period:

Sales

— the largest customer 17.5%
— the five largest customers 39.6%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 41.8%
— the five largest suppliers 68.8%

During the Period, none of the Directors, or any of the associates or
any Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, hold over
5% of the issued share capital of the Company, had any beneficial
interest in the major customers or suppliers of the Group noted
above.

BB E RN R TIR2017F5 H19B T iE
B EXFTHEEIN RASHBAR G HE
B8 [ (TR B 19 (N 5f A2 72 B 22 BT DA E Ath i
&) o

M —]

T

RABE AEENEZBRE K218
BETe

TEEFRHER

RABER AEBE2EF RHEHAE
HERKBEAOLLMT

HE
—BAERF
—RAKXKEF

17.5%
39.6%

RE
—&AHER
—hAHER

41.8%
68.8%

RARE EFHECABEASEMEER
(EREEMARARAREETREATESR
HBiEs%Em) MER LAANEREETRER
SHEEREA M EaEs -
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Period were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Dr. Dong Meixian (resigned on 1 March 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wong Wai Ling
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Chi Kit (appointed on 16 October 2017)
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Mr. Tsui Nam Hung (retired on 16 October 2017)

Pursuant to Article 108(a) and (b) of the Articles of Association, at
each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to obtain the
number required) any Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-election. In addition, code provision A.4.2 of the
CG Code also stipulates that each Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting.

Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Ms. Wong Wai Ling and Mr. Lau Chi Kit will be
retired at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will be available
for re-election as Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from the three independent non-executive Directors pursuant with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them are independent.
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BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 26 to 32 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service agreement with the Company. Each service
contract is for an initial term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless and until it is terminated by the Company or the
Director giving to the other not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company under which each of them is
appointed for a period of one year. None of the Directors has or is
proposed to have any service agreement with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries (other than contracts expiring or determinable by
the employer within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation).

EEREREEEBERE

AEBEENaNEEEBRBEEBEHNA
FIRE26E32H ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or which were required to be disclosed, under the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

(@) Long position in Shares

B

ESRFETHRAERRKRSG M
RO REREIENERR AR

M2018F3H31H " EERARNAEEITH
ABRARRIREREEZE (TEREHFK
HAE R B EXVER) B - IHE IR 1D sk E#E
B BEEREES MAEEGEXVIE
78D B AN G AR R F) M B 2 P RO M o oA
B (BIERBEEFRBAERNEBIEES
WEEKEABEENESZLAR)  HRE
BH S (55 E35216 B AR B
BFERMAmEDS RAR R E R A
MIEE+FATE EMBITAERETESRS
MWIZEFRIETHRENERRABIT

@ REROPHNEFE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity Shares held (Note 3)
#BinksRaESL
EEpS 1 FrisB @A (P¥&E3)
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 8,385,000 0.77%
ZOITRE EnfEAA
Interest of spouse (Note 1) 5,025,000 0.46%
FoiBiE e (PEE1)
Interest of a controlled corporation 554,242,000 50.68%
and family interest (Note 2)
REGIEEER K GER
(Ht&E2)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 5,025,000 0.46%
AEER L ERBAA
Interest of spouse (Note 1) 8,385,000 0.77%
foiBiE e (PEE1)
Interest of a controlled corporation 554,242,000 50.68%

and family interest (Note 2)
REtEEER kK kg
(HizE2)
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(b)

84

Note 1: Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are married couple. ekl : ELTEERBBER LT ZEB-
Each of Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man is therefore Bt 2o EEREBEZZ Y
deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares held by each WARAREFEEEARG T #ESR
other. KES o

Note 2:  Genwealth is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu M2 : TTERRBEITEERBEER
Hin and 10% by Ms. Kwan Lai Man. Accordingly, Mr. Pang Siu TESEFI0% M 10%AER ° EI -
Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are deemed to be interested in the RIEZ A LG RD - 20078 4%
554,242,000 Shares held by Genwealth under the SFO. RABRZEATHEREARITERAEN

554,242 0008% f& 17 /7 5 # 25 ©

Note 3: This percentage was compiled based on the Shares in issue as at MIzES : 3% B » b I ER2018F3A31H K
31 March 2018 (i.e. 1,093,508,000 shares). B 817 I 43 (B11,093,508,0008% B
MIFE -
Long position in the underlying shares of the (b) REATEBROPNER
Company

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Interest of

Number of spouse
Name of Director Capacity options held (Note 2)
BEEHNE S
EENA 53 FRisigBx B (PisE2)
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 8,125,000 0.74
TR E EmEAA
Interest of spouse (Note 1) 5,885,000 0.54
femsEz (MisE1)
14,010,000 1.28
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 5,885,000 0.54
BEZ X+ E=mEAA
Interest of spouse (Note 1) 8,125,000 0.74
feEsEsm (MisE1)
14,010,000 1.28
Note 1: Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are married couple. Wikl ELTEEREBER T 2B
Each of Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man is therefore Eit 20T EERBEEZT LT
deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares held by each WARABREFFEERO T #ESR
other. Mo
Note 2:  This percentage was compiled based on the Shares in issue as at MsE2 © B2 hEMR2018F3A31H
31 March 2018 (i.e. 1,093,508,000 shares). B 277 9 (B11,093,508,0000% Mk

D)FHE-
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Long position in Genwealth, an associated REQAREBEZETEFNER
corporation of the Company

Approximate
Number of  percentage of

Name of Director Capacity Shares held shareholding
EENA 210 FriSRE IS E #BHISKRa S
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 9,000 90%
TR E E=EAA
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 1,000 10%
BAEEZ XL E=mEAA

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive Ff EXFrEEIN HIBESHARFEE
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, fTEA BRAR G EE(IAEEEE (E&
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its &7 MG RGIEXVER) Z Bt - 1HEIAX
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the M ERIFREBERIEZ S LS KRD
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the S#XVEBET7&8H HAIE AR Al K EEZFr 2
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the EfAlEmIUAR (BIFERIEEZ L EEEDI
SFO (including interests or short positions therein that they shall BBIGRXRERR SR 2 EHSIXE) -
be deemed to have pursuant to such provisions of the SFO), or IRIEFEH & HIE GHIFE 352K AR Q]
any interests or short positions which were recorded in the register BETFEZ ELMAZEMERIOXE 3k
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the 1R 1E F M AR BIPT &% + P&z EHEITAE
SFO, or any interests or short positions which have to be notified to  FETTREHFRX H 2 EEFAEHNE AR A
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code for BB PT 2 AR AR SOA B ©

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2018, so far as it is known to the Directors, the
following persons, not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company, will have an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or, who is interested, directly or indirectly, in 10% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to

TERRRASD TR LB EE
W1 B G R EER

BakXR

M2018F3A31H MEFMM AT AL
(UFEFHARREIBITHRAE)HRA
DA K AR B R A R AR RE 5 S
B RBIEXVERFE2 37 58 Z R X AR AR
AIWBENERIORR  ERKEREBMH
SRENARAABR TEREBEEAKE
RABRRARE LRENEMERBRAEE

vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the ~ 10%3k A £ 2 # %5
Group:
Long position in Shares REGOHNEFR
Approximate
percentage of
Number of interest
Name Capacity Shares held (Note 2)
EREVESL
i1 V8% {3 FrisB i 8 B (P E2)
Genweallth Beneficial owner 554,242,000 50.68%
= EmEEA
Viewforth Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.86%
EnEAA (1)
Fullshare Holdings Limited Interest in a corporation 250,000,000 22.86%
(Note 1)
ERERER QT EEER (1)
Magnolia Wealth International Limited Interest in a corporation 250,000,000 22.86%
(Note 1)
EE RS (1)
Ji Changgun Interest in a corporation 250,000,000 22.86%
(Note 1)
=5 EEER (M)
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Note 1:  The 250,000,000 Shares are held by Viewforth Limited, a Company

which is wholly owned by Fullshare Holdings Limited, which in turn is
owned as to 46.58% by Magnolia Wealth International Limited, which in
turn is wholly owned by Ji Changqun. Ji Changqun also directly owns
4.75% of Fullshare Holdings Limited.

Note 2: This percentage was compiled based on the Shares in issue as at 31

March 2018 (i.e. 1,093,508,000 shares).

Save as disclosed above, so far as it is known to the Directors, there
was no other person (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2018 were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective associates nor was the Company
and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective associates to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted two share option schemes on 25 September
2014, namely the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme under the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the
Company.
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(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

88

The purpose of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize
the contribution of certain employees, executives or officers of
the Group made or will make to the growth of the Group and/
or the listing of Shares on the Stock Exchange. The Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period from
25 September 2014 to 15 October 2014, after which no further
options will be granted. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one Share. The total number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
24,640,000 Shares, representing 3.1% of total number of
Shares in issue as at 30 September 2014. The offer of a grant
of share options shall be accepted when the offer letter has
been duly signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has been
paid by the grantee.

The exercise price per option under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$0.826, being 30% discount of the offering price
per Share in the initial public offer on 16 October 2014.

During the Period, total 120,000 options was forfeited and
total 4,728,000 options was exercised. Details of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme has been disclosed in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 September 2014.
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The following table discloses movements in the Company’s

TREBENEE2018F3831H 1L

share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme ERBEE X AFEE R BARERT SR
during the year ended 31 March 2018: 2 A B B R e )
Exercise As at Forfeited Exercised As at
Category or name of price per 1 April Grant during during during 31 March
participant Date of grant share Exercise period 2017  the period  the period  the period 2018
11104 20175 #2018
BEEDEHERE RHBEH fTER fTER 4R1H A H ARk HnTE 3A31H
(HK$)
(A7)
Directors
S
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2015 - 24/9/2024 - - - - -
EOEE 25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2016 - 24/9/2024 - - - - -
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2017 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - (2,720,000) -
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2018 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2019 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
8,160,000 - - (2,720,0000 5,440,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2015 - 24/9/2024 - - - - -
BEZNT 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2016 - 24/9/2024 - - - - -
25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2017 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - (1,600,000) -
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2018 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2019 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
4,800,000 - - (1,600,000) 3,200,000
Employees
&R
Employees at aggregate 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2016 - 24/9/2024 - - - - -
EE (&%) 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2017 - 24/9/2024 528,000 - (120,000) (408,000) -
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2018 - 24/9/2024 288,000 - - - 288,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2019 - 24/9/2024 288,000 - - - 288,000
1,104,000 - (120,000) (408,000) 576,000
Total 14,084,000 - (120,000)  (4,728,000) 9,216,000
it
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(2) Share Option Scheme

90

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions
that Eligible Participants (as defined below) have made or may
make to the Group so as to motivate the Eligible Participants
to optimize their performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group, and attract, retain or otherwise maintain ongoing
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are, will or expected to be beneficial to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on 16 October 2014,
after which no further options will be issued. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one Share. The total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
Shares (10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of listing of
the Shares), unless approved by the shareholders in general
meeting (the maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time). No option
may be granted to any Eligible Participant which, if exercised
in full, would result in the total number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options already granted or to
be granted to such Eligible Participant under the Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant exceeding 1% in aggregate of the Shares in
issue as at the date of such grant. The offer of a grant of share
options shall be accepted when the offer letter has been duly
signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has been paid by
the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors and ends on a date which is not
later than ten years from the date of the acceptance of the offer
of share options.
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Eligible Participants include: (i) any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
(the “Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of
which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to
the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a company beneficially owned
by any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or
an Affiliate.

The exercise price of options shares shall not be less than the
highest of: () the closing price of the Share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the relevant option, which must be a business day; (i) an
amount equivalent to the average closing price of the Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the relevant option; and (i) the nominal value of the Share on
the date of grant.

During the Period, total 2,160,000 under the Share Option
Scheme was granted, none options was forfeited and none
options was exercised. Details of the Share Option Scheme
has been disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 30
September 2014.
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The following table discloses the movements in the Company’s TRFEBEBREEZ2018F3A31B L5
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme during ERBEERESSRE CARABR
the year ended 31 March 2018: R
Exercise As at Forfeited Exercised As at
Category or name of price per 1 April Grantduring  duringthe  during the 31 March
participant Date of grant share Exercise period 2017  the period period period 2018
sk 20175 #2018
BEEHENERE RHBEH fTER TR 4R1H A H ARk HniTE 3A31H
(HK$)
(A7)
Directors
EE
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 225,000 - - - 225,000
EOEE 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 300,000 - - - 300,000
3/10/2016 2.144 3/10/2017-2/10/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2.144 3/10/2018-2/10/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2.144 3/10/2019-2/10/2026 432,000 - - - 432,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2018-20/12/2027 - 324,000 - - 324,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2019-20/12/2027 - 324,000 - - 324,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2020-20/12/2027 - 432,000 - - 432,000
1,605,000 1,080,000 - - 2,685,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 225,000 - - - 225,000
HEZRL 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 300,000 - - - 300,000
3/10/2016 2.144 3/10/2017-2/10/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2.144 3/10/2018-2/10/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2.144 3/10/2019-2/10/2026 432,000 - - - 432,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2018-20/12/2027 - 324,000 - - 324,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2019-20/12/2027 - 324,000 - - 324,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2020-20/12/2027 - 432,000 - - 432,000
1,605,000 1,080,000 - - 2,685,000
Employees
&R
Employees at aggregate 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 - - - - -
BB (A#) 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 90,000 - - - 90,000
28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 120,000 - - - 120,000
18/11/2016 2.264  18/11/2017-17/11/2026 27,000 - - - 27,000
18/11/2016 2.264  18/11/2018-17/11/2026 27,000 - - - 27,000
18/11/2016 2.264  18/11/2019-17/11/2026 36,000 - - - 36,000
300,000 - - - 300,000
Consultant
L1
Consultant 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 180,000 - - - 180,000
| 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 180,000 - - - 180,000
28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 240,000 - - - 240,000
600,000 - - - 600,000
Total 4,110,000 2,160,000 - - 6,270,000
st
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or
Controlling Shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2018, the Directors were not aware of any business
or interest of the Directors and their respective associates that had
competed or might compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interests which any such person had or might have
with the Group.

REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code, the Company has established
the Remuneration Committee to formulate remuneration policies.
Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
the Company’s Directors are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors, secretary or
other officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profit of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he
or she may incur or sustain or about the execution of their duties
in their respective offices. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of the
relevant legal actions against the Directors.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules since the date of the Listing to 31 March
2018.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Controlling Shareholders, including the company wholly owned
by each of them respectively, have confirmed to the Company of
their compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided to
the Company under a deed of non-competition dated 25 September
2014. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings
under the deed of non-competition have been complied with by the
Controlling Shareholders and duly enforced since the Listing Date
and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Please see the “Corporate Governance Report” set out on pages
53 to 74 of this annual report for details of its compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire as auditors of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and a resolution for its re-appointment will be proposed at the said
meeting. Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditor
during the past three years.

ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report is printed in English and Chinese and is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk under the
“Listed Company Information” and our Company’s website at www.
hinsanggroup.com. Printed copies in both languages are posted to
Shareholders.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are the details of the continuing connected
transactions of the Company as required to be reported under the
Listing Rules (including the significant related party transactions as
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements during the

Period).

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

1.  Sale of products under the Group brands to Brighten Hong

Limited

Date of Agreement

Parties

Term

Objective

Annual cap for
the year ended
31 March 2018

Actual consideration
for the year ended
31 March 2018

30 March 2017

Hin Sang Hong (HK) and Brighten
Hong Limited

Commenced from 1 April 2017 until
31 March 2020

Brighten Hong Limited sources
the Group products for sales and
distribution to anywhere in the
World save for Hong Kong, Macau,
Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan

HK$9,900,000

HK$3,056,921

For details of the connected transactions, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 30 March 2017.
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All the above continuing connected transactions did not exceed
the relevant annual cap amounts. The Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Company and confirmed that they
were:

entered into on normal commercial terms;

i in the ordinary and usual course of business and are fair and
reasonable to the Group; and

ii. the terms of the agreements are no less favourable to the
Group than terms offered by Independent Third Parties,
and therefore are in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board has
appointed the auditor of the Company to carry out certain
procedures on the above continuing connected transactions
in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions.

By order of the Board
Pang Siu Hin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B g EH AR F

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hin Sang
Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
104 to 211, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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30 . % B il A o

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FRAREXER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional REEZHNFEHE BREZFTERESE
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated ~ BwZNANEHE MG A M BRRTREEN
financial statements of the current period. These matters were 1 - EZEEFERERGEMBHRE L3tk
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial EXERREELFRE MIASHUEFS
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we EEFHHERER -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HREZER

Recoverability of trade receivables

B 55 il % T 19 7T A o]

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.
2486 M EHRER W E22 ©

The carrying amount of trade receivables is
approximately HK$21,780,000 as at 31 March 2018.
R2018F3A3IH BEZERKREHNEREEENA
21,780,000/ 7T ©

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the use of judgement
and estimates by management in assessing the
recoverability of trade receivables.
FEWRESHRWFEN KB REREFET
BN EIRE L E 5 R IGRIE R AT Y B MR E A 2
i N Ak gt e

In determining not to make allowance for trade
receivables, management considers the credit quality
of individual trade receivables, including default or
delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent
settlements and aging analysis of the trade receivables.
RETEEREZRKFIBELEER BEESE
BERIE ZEKFENEEE R BEHERIGEERN
Ao BYEHE REENELNRE HRUGRIEN KRR
DT e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESZERNMARIAAREXER

Our procedures in relation to the recoverability of trade
receivables included:
EEAHE SRV IER R BIMEMIRF 21

° Testing the aging analysis of the trade receivables,
on a sample basis, to the source documents,
including sales invoices and good delivery notes.
RHEREERE 5 FEWGIER BRI D AT ER S (8
BHERERREE ) #ETRE -

o Assessing the reasonableness of recoverability of
trade receivables with reference to the credit profile
including default or delay in payments, settlement
records, subsequent settlements and aging analysis
of individual customers.
2EZEFEPNEELHE (BEBRITEENK
BRGCH  REERBERALERERSI) FHEE ZEK
SIER W E MRS IR
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESZERNMARAABERER

Key audit matter

HREZER

Valuation of inventories

FRHA & (E

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial  Our procedures in relation to the valuation of inventories
statements. included:

2R MBEwEME21 -

The inventories comprised of raw materials and
finished goods for resale amounting to approximately
HK$9,590,000 as at 31 March 2018.

20183 A3H  FE (BRERMH EKMHEEKM)
%9 59,590,000/% 7T °

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the management judgement required in
estimating the allowance for inventories.
EERRFEHERMAREFTEANEFFER
iR T Z(F LB TR E I -

Management assessed the recoverability of the
amount based on an estimation of the net realisable
value of the inventories which involves the analyses
of the status of the subsequent sales and the
current market price of the inventories. If the actual
net realisable values of the inventories are less than
expected as a result of change in market condition,
material allowances for inventories may result.
ERERBMATFENER FEMNAREN KD
- BEARI R EFEREBHERARBAIMENS
ﬁ:hlmﬂ“ﬁﬁ%ﬁrfmﬁm IR FEER
TEHA - RIFJRE B F EEREE -

EEEHFERENEFBE:

Obtaining an understanding of how the allowance for
inventories is estimated by management.

THREEBWAGFERE -

Assessing the reasonableness and sufficiency of
allowance for inventories with reference to the
subsequent usage and movement of raw materials,
historical sales records, current market conditions,
aging analysis and subsequent selling prices of the
finished goods; and challenging management for
long aged inventories without any provision.
DERMHNRETRBEARES BEHECH
BRIMR RSk m KB EENEEERE
WEAARERAR THERGENRBTFERER
Bl & -

Testing the aging analysis of the inventories, on a
sample basis, to the source documents.

MR EESFENRE DT RR X ETZE

Tracing a selection of finished goods with
subsequent selling prices to the source documents
to test the net realisable values.
PEEEX BN EEEEZ R AR AT #RF
B
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a bodly,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs wiill
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent
auditors’ report is Chan Ching Pang.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Ching Pang
Practising Certificate Number: PO5746

Hong Kong, 25 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ot 3 T 2t B A1 2 i O e %

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 &, 22018435431 H 1 F/E

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T BYTT BT T
Revenue g A 5 188,550 201,815
Cost of sales 555 R AR (57,375) (68,572)
Gross profit E 7 131,175 133,243
Other income H i U A 6 6,409 5,141
Other gains and losses HEazm REE 7 (11,587) (6,676)
Selling and distribution expenses HE &2 A (37,854) (41,006)
Administrative expenses TR (87,082) (77,679)
Finance costs BE KA 8 - 8)
Profit before tax Bk 15 B e ) 1,061 13,015
Income tax expense FrisfifMsz 9 (8,282) (4,707)
(Loss)/Profit for the year F£R(ER) &7 10 (7,221) 8,308
Other comprehensive income/ Hth2mikA
(expense) (F3%)
Item that may be reclassified HEpEE# 7482
subsequently to profit or loss: BmlHE -
Exchange differences on translating BMEINREE 2
foreign operations P&+ =58 15,417 (3,980)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AHEEREZ
investments NFEER 91,728 8,314
Reclassification adjustment on RA] &
impairment of available-for-sale BE AR
investments BB 16,348 -
123,493 4,334
Total comprehensive income FAZEKARE
for the year 116,272 12,642
Profit/(Loss) for the year DUTE&FEEER
attributable to: ®&F (B#R):
— Owners of the Company —ARAEHEE A 530 9,798
— Non-controlling interests —JEVE AR = (7,751) (1,490)
(7,221) 8,308
Total comprehensive income/ DTEFEEEREZ
(expense) for the year migA(BA)#
attributable to: #]:
— Owners of the Company —ARRAHEAA 120,216 14,094
— Non-controlling interests — IR = (3,944) (1,452)
116,272 12,642
Earnings per share ERER 13
— Basic (HK cents) —HAR (B 0.05 0.96
~ Diluted (HK cents) —#58 OB 0.05 0.95
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
w1 I B5IR DL

AT 81 MARCH 2018 #20184%3/31H

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 BETRT BT T
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment RN ] 15 125,584 117,399
Prepaid lease payments BN HEERE 16 53,728 30,268
Intangible assets | EE 18 - 1,548
Deposit and prepayments for life AESRE iR RTEN
insurance policies FKIA 19 5,113 4,954
Deposits for acquisition of property, WEEM % - = M st
plant and equipment e 6,441 2,871
Available-for-sale investments A EHERE 20 573,392 408,552
764,258 565,592
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 21 9,590 8,899
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H At FE B IE 22 48,636 33,562
Held for trading investments FEEERE 23 8,986 -
Tax refundable AREBRK 14 2,983
Bank balances and cash RITHEGBR AR S 24 186,030 288,851
253,256 334,295
Total assets BE#E 1,017,514 899,887
Current liabilities mEAaE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFKIE 25 30,304 28,937
Current tax liabilities BNEffIE & & 3,399 395
33,703 29,332
Net current assets mENEERE 219,553 304,963
Total assets less current liabilities BWE#ERARTHARS 983,811 870,555
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
w1 IR DL A

AT 31 MARCH 2018 R20184#3/31H

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 BETRT BT T
Capital and reserves BXR R

Share capital & s 27 109,351 109,012
Reserves f# % 828,421 725,573

Equity attributable to owners of the RAFIER AELER
Company 937,772 834,585
Non-controlling interests IR = 46,039 35,970
Total equity EBaEe 983,811 870,555

The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to 211 were F104BEF211BMH 2 FRE M B HRED
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 H2018F6H258 E & =g #it ) &% # T

June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: EOWAHNTREESE:
Pang Siu Hin Kwan Lai Man
B FESR
Director Director
= =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o o Ao 52 T o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/&

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTRAAELS
Foreign
Investments currency Share Non-
Share Share Merger revaluation translation options Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
k&  ROER 2 AKKE REEREFE 2 ERRFE MREREF REEN ait  FnREa @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr AT B¥Tr AT BETr A%t A%Tr  EETn AT BETx
(Note 27) (Note)
(Fi3Eo7) (i3]
At 1 April 2016 72016E4A1A 80,047 219,949 (71,463) - (4,510) 8,286 110,988 343,297 3,201 346,498
Profit/(Loss) for the year ERER/ (BB - - - - - - 9,798 9,798 (1,490) 8,308
Other comprehensive income/  #E A 2 EMA/
(expense) for the year F' %)
Exchange differences on BENEXHZ
translating foreign operations ~ EXZE - - - - (4,018) - - (4,018) 38 (3,980)
Fair value gain on AHLEREY
avallable-for-sale investments AT EME - - - 8,314 - - - 8,314 - 8,314
Total comprehensive income/  EE2EYA/ (BX) &8
(expense) for the year - - - 8314 (4,018) - 9,798 14,094 (1,452) 12,642
Dividends recognised BRADENRE
as distribution - - . . - S 569 (32,569) S 32569
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 34,418 34,418
Changes n ownership interests in WA AN AAEE
subsidiaries without change BYMASE 5
of control - - - - - - 197 197 (197) -
Issue of shares by subscription LA 28 X %47 28,000 469,512 - - - - - 497,512 - 497,512
Issue of shares on exercise of  R{TERREMETRE
share options 965 12,832 - - - (5,486) - 8,311 - 8,311
Recognition of equity-settled Rz & E LR
share-based payments BERNFH - - - - - 3,743 - 3,743 - 3,743
At 31 March 2017 2017E3A31R 109,012 702,293 (71,463) 8314 (8,528) 6,543 88,414 834,585 35,970 870,555
Proft/(Loss) for the year ERER/ (B8 - - - - - - 530 530 (7,751) (7,221)
Other comprehensive income/  EEEf2ERA
(expense) for the year (Ax)
Exchange differences on RENEEK 2
translating foreign operations EREE - - - - 11,610 - - 11,610 3,807 15,417
Fair value gain on AHLEREY
avalable-for-sale investments ~ AFEUZE - - - 91,728 - - - 91,728 - 91,728
Reclassification adustment o~ RAT{EHEREFHER 2
impairment of available-for- EEiby 3% Hig
sale investments - - - 16,348 - - - 16,348 - 16,348
Total comprehensive income/ ~ EF2ERA/ (B A
(expense) for the year - - - 108,076 11,610 - 530 120,216 (3,944) 116,272
Dividends recognised BRRD RN
as distribution = = = = = - 1823 (21829) - (1829
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 14,013 14,013
Shares repurchased and cancelled & 1 &z 3% #k (7 (134) (1,656) - - - - - (1,790) - (1,790)
Issue of shares on exercise of  E{TEBREMETRG
share options 473 6,090 - - - (2,658) - 3,905 - 3,905
Recognition of equity-settled RiEREELRY
share-based payments BEROH - - - - - 2,679 - 2,679 - 2,679
At 31 March 2018 2018F3A31R 109,351 706,727 (71,463) 116,390 3,082 6,564 67,121 937,772 46,039 983,811

M AGREEREEEEAARQRNRALAR
SEETEMATARANASHE (EHEEE
NARIREKER) ZHRZHE -

Note: The merger reserve represents the difference between the share capital
of the Company and the aggregate amount of share capital of other
companies comprising the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation,
after elimination of intra-group investments.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

w1 Bl L LR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 #;Z201843A31H I F/Z

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYTT BT T
Cash flows from operating activities E&;EEIFREBH&RE
Profit before tax B 5% A A 1,061 13,015
Adjustments for: TN BIEFE
Finance costs A& B A - 8
Interest income B YA (3,581) (4,655)
Dividend income R B A (2,013) -
Gain on fair value change of KEMENTFEE
investment property Wz - (729)
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEME  BEK&
plant and equipment mEz (B8,
& 68 97)
Reversal of write-down of inventories 7% & $ifl &l 5 3] - (522)
Share-based payment expenses AR 0 B ETE A
BEEFT 2,679 3,743
Amortisation of prepaid lease TEfS A E FRIE 2 #EE
payments 1,112 954
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEE o BN 1,548 1,932
Amortisation of premium and ASRBRE R
charges on life insurance 2 #E 58 57
Depreciation of property, WE WEMEE 2
plant and equipment e 9,040 6,431
Loss on fair value change of held for ~ H{EEEHRE 2 A F
trading investments B8 2 EE 994 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ~ AIfEH &R E 2
investments REEE 16,348 -
Operating cash flows before movements & i& & AN & &) 5] 2 48 &
in working capital BeR= 27,314 20,137
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories & (gm) ,Esd (507) 4,626
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and Z 5 I E A pE YK IE
other receivables (1) kA (12,926) 4,364
Increase in held for trading BIEEEIRELM
investments (9,980) -
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and B 5 K E A FE R RIE
other payables CRA) /& (170) 2,918
Cash generated from operations REEBMBHRS 3,731 32,045
Income tax refunded REIFTSH 415 -
Income tax paid EfFTE (2,724) (8,365)
Net cash generated from KRBT F5E
operating activities 1,422 23,680
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
B 3 Bl AU AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/&

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Cash flows from investing activities REEHREH&RE
Interest received 2 UF B 3,363 4,438
Dividends received BB 2,013 -
Decrease/(Increase) in short-term RE|EREB@=EA W
deposits with original maturity REFETORLD
over three months () 20,224 (1,131)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BEX
plant and equipment REPTIFIA - 131
Purchases of property, BEWE -HE
plant and equipment N5 (12,956) (82,541)
Deposit for acquisition of property, WHEMZE  H =
plant and equipment NEB RS (5,735) (2,880)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHLEERE
investments (73,112) -
Purchases of leasehold land HEHEE LN (21,300) -
Net cash used in investing activities KE SRR e FE (87,503) (81,983)
Cash flows from financing activities BIEEEIFSHERE
Dividends paid EfRE (21,823) (32,569)
Interest paid 258 - )
Capital contribution from EERERITE
non-controlling interests 14,013 34,418
Repurchase of shares EAEN ) (1,790) -
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PT1EFRIE 3,905 105,585
Net cash (used in)/generated from mMEES (FTA),/
financing activities FTiSIR & 558 (5,695) 107,426
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and H&RBE & EEM
cash equivalents (D), BnSHE (91,776) 49,123
Cash and cash equivalents at FIHRER
the beginning of year ReSsEY 266,542 217,195
Effect of foreign exchange Efgnpe
rates changes 6,328 224
Cash and cash equivalents FROBEER
at the end of year He&EED 181,094 266,542
Representing: (e
Bank balances and cash RITHEB AR S 186,030 288,851
Short-term deposits with =& A LA L EIHAM
maturity over three months FEEITE R (4,936) (22,309)
181,094 266,542
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s 3 Y05 A Y ik

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 #;Z201843A31H I F/Z

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Island and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
and ultimate parent is Genwealth Group Holding Company
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report.

The Group is principally engaged in developing, marketing,
selling and distributing of personal care products, healthcare
products and household products as well as provision of
Chinese medical healthcare related services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Financial Instruments'’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the Related
Amendments'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRSs

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’

As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

—EBE—+ =

AEE 1 AR IR AT A AT E R E
RERZHE] REER] TRV RS

BUMBREED @I
9%

BEEMBREEN RREEHRA
F15% HBER

AT BERSEL HE
1658

BEEMEREEN  RigsH
175

BE (BBRHBRE MNERFRBFRE
REZEQ)RE
8008

BE (BRUBRE FIEHEENTHET E2
REZER)RE
5035

EEFBREEDN URDAERNZHZS
EVAA H D ERATE

BAMBHREER REFEVHHREER
P4 ZERTA FARRE A DR
EREEMBRE
EREORERIA
BAMBHREER ABRMEN
FOPR 2 EETA B A& SR 12
BRAMBHEER REFZREBZNFH
FIORRBERET AELERD
ERFBF B BEHEHIE

2N

BAGERF10% &HEIET ARG E
PATIR

BAG R RBERARAEEEY

Fos BRI A REER?
BE G EL EERENE
FAR 2 BRI A
BB g £l BB B BHREER
F28 2 BRI R 20144 2201645
B2 FENE
__LB/'M
BEEMBREER (AR ENBREER
FIRZBIAR 2014F £2016%F

B2 F R
i_LB/\w
EEMBREEDN BEYBHREER
A HE 2015 220174
B FEE?

—NEER STEEE (ER)ZERERAT 111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 05 A W ik

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 #;Z201843A31H I F/Z

112

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o T 0 9 A Y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BRFIREETERUK
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEA ((EEMBHREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 1) )

(“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

ERMBRELNFSREHMT
B (#)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continuea)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group HAKBE BB BBMEMELERSE
are: O EEME R MM

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI”). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value
at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 #;Z201843A31H I F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors of
the Company anticipate the following potential impact on initial
application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

114

Listed equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at fair value as disclosed in note 20:
these securities qualified for designation as measured at
FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however, the fair value gains or
losses accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
amounting to approximately HK$116,390,000 as at 1
April 2018 will no longer be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss under HKFRS 9, which is different from the
current treatment. This will affect the amounts recognised
in the Group’s profit or loss and other comprehensive
income but will not affect total comprehensive income.

Deposit and prepayments for life insurance policies have
contractual right to cash flows that do not represent
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding.
Upon initial application of HKFRS 9, deposit and
prepayments for life insurance policies will be classified
as financial assets as at FVTPL. The directors of the
Company consider that the carrying value of deposit and
prepayments for life insurance policies as at 31 March
2018 approximate its fair value.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continuea)

Classification and measurement: (Continued)

o All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are
currently measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment
provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company,
the application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9
will have no material impacts on the results and the financial
position of the Group.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continuea)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

U Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continuea)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continueq)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the
same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17,
and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continueq)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of approximately HK$35,711,000 as
disclosed in note 31. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has the power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of the other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset. Other than investment properties measured under fair
value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s 3 Y5 A WY ik

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire property
is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

—EBE—+ =

3.

—\FF3{

FESIEE (#2)

K ()

HERINEBRE (AL EREENIE
SNEFS R 2B R - S B RAA RS
HHIEINEE BB A 5 894E B4 -
Y EEERINEE MIRDB =K A
CREENASERH SIS QRN
DHEm)  ARFEBABIEBEBEZE
B AR #Em R AE R Z% - Al
B BEEER

SN - BEER D 6 H B R M I ARG B
REEREZWBARIEHIENS @ 18
P A RFTE L ZRI BN BR
RIFERE R - AR B AR

SLPTAE E bRy & (BN & 800 B
ERAEAERFBA TSI BRAEHE
REBAZENIARESE) M E -
BB AN RETERLZEHEHRD

xEEHE-
BERAE

E&ﬁﬁf’ﬁﬂ&ﬁ% RERAREAERE
E(AFE-RERBTT A ZWHE
ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’ngé%)21ﬁ‘&}i$ﬁmk§2
FEEZRA BEEZFEERHA
FFRERERME /L -

REHREEEANABREEL
A BT 2 A N B 7 & A A
(EaHE 2 fEBRRF R -

FIAEEMEERARNELRE 2B

AR

STEEE (BB ERERAT 127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 05 A W ik

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 #;Z201843A31H I F/Z

128

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Share-based payment arrangements
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve. For share options that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Share-based payment arrangements (Continued)
Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than properties under construction less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for production
or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease
payments provided during the construction period is included
as part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings
under construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when
they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a

group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”),
sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

held-to-maturity investments, available-for-
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueqd)
Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

asset is (i) held for trading or (i) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;

or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueqd)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and is
included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueqd)
Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans
and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial
assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period except for unquoted equity
investments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS debt instruments
relating to interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS
equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueqd)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueqd)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueqd)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETBXR (&)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueqd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

3

FEETHE &)

TRMIA (&)
AU TER ()

—HRIEREREE  EEMNKREE
HEWFEENREMEREMEE
Yook P ERR S fE M o RAEHY R AT W an
BRZENEESERaPRER -

AEERBEERAEENTEEREE
BUBfEmi R ItERERAE K
AN BENRAEREN K
ENNREZENERE BT

X7
Ao

A5

R ER A TR E AT i BIAR A
ELRER [ R -

(@ ZA/—BATHRBALZIE
BMEGKE Bz AL

) HASEAEGIERERE
I

(i) HAREBERTEN %

(i) AAEEXREEFNRE
EEBABMKE:
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETBXR (&)

(Continued)
Related parties (Continueq) B E (&)
p
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions b) ZAHBFTETIERMEHZE
applies: B2

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBRASEBR—%E
group; #I K 8B A 7

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy —FERBAEE—E (L&
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary S—EBHNEAR - -HWEA
of the other entity); BEAEESEEANEDEN =

NAEIREERE:

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) FRERNMAEEESHERS
same third party; ZHMAENE

(v) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —EERBAE=THE%EME
other entity is an associate of the third entity; EXME—EBAZE=-THW

il /NCI

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the V) ZEBANASENHEARE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity BEEBBNERNESRA
related to the Group; 0 &% B B B 1 1E AR &)

(v the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a vi) ZEBX@FATZATE
person identified in (a); il X H Bl

(viij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (Vi) @RISR EATHZER
over the entity or is a member of the key BERTEN IZLER
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent (ZEBHERG)EE
of the entity); and BBABHKE &

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZERBIZEEBMBEET
part, provides key management personnel services A B ARIRAEBEHAL
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. ERSARIREEEEEA

B AR -
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4.

148

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on a
product-by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventory
items. Management estimates the net realisable value for such
items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions.

EEF AN ERRIR

EEEERAMNIHANAEES
AR B AR R BE RN R H A
KRFANEERABREEELDH
B AT R RER - R Fh AT AR R &
THR B AR 5 I B A 1% 50 B AE B8
MEAREL BERGERATEEEZE
EREEE

At R BABBRRERHE T AR o
GEHEEHERT R BB At A
A AEZHEER MEFTREZE
B R AR MSEETHER
RIREAEIRERR o

AT RIS FRME T AR R
TERR FRATHAHRZHAEE
HEERBENREER T —MERE
EAELKIEHENE AR -

FERE

AEBEEBNSMERRILZEE
mEEER T EE BN B MOFH
FTERBEERGE EEEIERE
RN BERER LB AT RAE AR
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of trade receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer.

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue:

(CRENEE S EX P
(%)

82 BYCREN A ETRE

REF I EE 5 YR IRR R EIRE
B AR KREHE  BESERPZ
B8 MR SBE WK RE 8% -

ERRAEBENTEIERE  A%H
ERMHRRRESRE - REEE
NeHgKEEREEENEREE
MRRERENE (BRV T HERTE
WERME) IR RRRERE
RE(TRRAEENAKREEEE)
MEBFE - WERRKRBERER
RIEE - Ak g HIRE KRERE-

WA 7 & E#

TR EBENWADH

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT IT BT T

Sales of goods HEEY 187,989 201,815
Provision of healthcare services R IE RS 561 -
188,550 201,815

Information reported to the board of directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under “HKFRS 8 Operating Segments” are as follows:

—EBE—+ =

ARARIESEE (MEREERRE)
BEADBEERLFEDBERIRNE
B Z2ERXNIRUNERARBG R

=8 i%i mE *ETF T%%Bﬁfxﬁ&iﬁ
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150

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA KD ZER (&)
(Continued)
1. Product Development Segment — sales of products 1. EmRAEZESH-—HERKEME

developed by the Group under own brands

2. Brand Development and Management Segment — sales 2.
and distribution of products with exclusive distribution
rights

3. Trading of Goods Segment — sales and distribution of 3.

products purchased from authorised dealers, independent
traders, manufacturers or parallel importers

4.  Healthcare Segment — development of mother and child 4.
related health products, hospital,

related services

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by reportable and operating segment.

medical center and

Z B R E

mERELREESIL—HE
HER D IEEEM

i&z)

EmBEEN R -HERDHAR
MR HE B AR BEE
KEHBEZEM

—BRFEAEREE

e %IF B0 KR AR R AR5
DEBMAR XA

TR RE R E D EBE 2 R

SERA RGO -

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E2018F3A31HLLFEE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development Management of Goods  Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
ERAE RMARR HRRH R
a8 EESD a8 a8 &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BRTT Rt BRTT Rt Rt
Revenue KA
External sales HMHE 180,574 6,341 700 935 188,550
Segment profit/(loss) AEEH/ (EB) 36,784 573 (71) (15,775) 21,511
Interest income M EHA 3,581
Dividend income BREMA 2,013
Loss on fair value change of held for 1’E EERAZ
trading investments ~AEES FE (994)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale M%ﬁzm@s &
investments (16,348)
Unallocated expenses APERX (8,702)
Profit before tax B A& 1,061
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZHEFR (#)

(Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEBMAREE (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE2017F3A318ILFE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management of Goods Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
EnRE pERAER ERER fe B
N EEHH N 7 Ch

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETTL BETT BETT
Revenue B A
External sales HIMEE 178,931 19,042 3,842 - 201,815
Segment profit/(oss) Aiirl/ (BR) 24,242 (2,562) (371) (3,801) 17,508
Interest income FS WA 4,655
Unallocated expenses AABRX (9,140)
Finance costs BERR G
Profit before tax BRI AT A 13,015
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the 1D E 2 g 5T B B 3R i AR
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. SEZEBEMER D EEF B
Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from = ?5%% BRI 2w EE 2 BB
each segment without allocation of corporate expenses, loss ( SEPERY BIEEEREY
on fair value change of held for trading investments, impairment n $ @ BEoER THEEREZ
loss on available-for-sale investments, dividend income, interest BEEBE  REWA - FEWARE
income and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the FXAN) o Bt IR E SR E RS B RET
board of directors for the purposes of resource allocation and D ERIBMBE 2B -

assessment of segment performance.
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152

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segment.

WARDEHER (&)

THMEERAE

THRLAHwE REEDFE D HA

SEMEERBENDN-

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Segment assets SEHEE
Product Development Segment EmAZESY 212,715 182,302
Brand Development and on 2R 3% R B IR 5 B

Management Segment 1,626 4,098
Trading of Goods Segment EmEEDES 200 456
Healthcare Segment D 29,381 7,635
Total segment assets DEPEERE 243,922 194,491
Unallocated AN BC 773,592 705,396
Consolidated assets HEEE 1,017,514 899,887
Segment liabilities SEHEME
Product Development Segment 2= 2 o E 27,463 26,968
Brand Development and o hE 3 R B IR 5 &

Management Segment 1,011 1,780
Trading of Goods Segment EmEEDES 172 76
Healthcare Segment 25 o &P 1,658 113
Total segment liabilities DEBERE 30,304 28,937
Unallocated FOE 3,399 395
Consolidated liabilities weEamE 33,703 29,332
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZERESR (&)

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continuea) THEERERE (&)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and RERSHBRB RS BEIELER
allocating resources between segments: o

e  all assets are allocated to operating segments other than FIBEEEDRAKLE S (7]

available-for-sale investments, bank balances and cash, HEERE RITEHERS
deposit and prepayments for life insurance policies, held ASREZES RTERMHIE
for trading investments and tax refundable. RIEEERE RTREVHR
HN) e
e allliabilities are allocated to operating segments other than s MEABENEALEDE (A
current tax liabilities. HATH IR B &R o
Other segment information Hihp HER
For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E2018F3A31HLEE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development Management of Goods  Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
ERHR ABARR HAaRR -1
a8 EESD a8 a8 &t

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT #BTT  ERTR  EMTRT  RRTR

Amounts included in the measure of &7 5w FlaE 185
il

segment proft or 10ss or PHEERTALZ

segment assets: &
Addition to non-current assets ENPEERE 31,679 11 1 11,629 43,320
Amortisation of intangible assets BVEEEH 1,548 - = = 1,548
Amortisation of prepaid lease BREERE S

payments 1,360 - - - 1,360
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% BRERZEZTE

equipment 7,983 105 12 940 9,040
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER

plant and equipment REcER 68 - - - 68

—T—t /=T \EEH TEEE (BB ERERAT 153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s 3 Y05 A Y ik

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 #;Z201843A31H I F/Z

154

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZHEHR (#)

(Continued)

Other segment information (Continuea)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Hib 2 7REH (%)

HZE2017FE3A31HIEEE

Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management of Goods Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
EmRE mERER ERER fe B
ok EESH nE P &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Amounts included in the measure of 512 7 &0 Fl& /5 2t
segment proft or loss or PHEERTAL L
segment assets: &
Addition to non-current assets ERDHEERE 83,046 681 138 1,934 85,799
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEEZEE 1,932 - - - 1,932
Amortisation of prepaid lease BREERE S
payments 954 - - - 954
Depreciation of property, nE BERRELTE
plant and equipment 6,139 235 48 9 6,431
Gain on fair value change of RENEATEED NS
investment property 729 - - - 729
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment REo MR % 3 - - 97
Reversal of write-down of inventories 77 & s 2l 522 - - - 522
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WAKRZ&ESR (2
(Continued)
Geographical information b 15 & K

AEEREE PEARLME (T4

QBT LT

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Taiwan. B])

BRARNKEKXBINBEPOHRAER
REEXBONUES D25 -AREA
SEFRBDEE (TEEAHLER
BERASREZ2ZS MANTIEA)NE
MREEMMIEVESI D27 -

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on location of the operations. Information
about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding available-
for-sale investments and deposit and prepayments for life
insurance policies) is presented based on the geographical
location of the assets.

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REIMBERHBA FRBDRE

2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
A¥TT BB T AETRT AT IT
Hong Kong 575 145,912 155,327 101,018 106,367
PRC H 41,006 42,161 84,735 45,645
Taiwan aE 1,632 4,327 - 74
188,550 201,815 185,753 152,086
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZEBESR (#)

(Continued)
Information about major customers FRTEEFNER
Revenues from customers for the corresponding years REBFEEASEERAKAREIRBI0%
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as HEPHWALT :
follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Customer A' ZPEA 33,064 36,843
Customer B! EFB 19,367 21,701
! Revenue from Product Development Segment and Brand ! KEEMAEDBALRERERE
Development and Management Segment. B EBEY A o
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HMWwA
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Interest income on bank deposits SRITFIA B U A 3,363 4,014
Interest income on deposit and ASREZEZESRBNREZ
prepayments for life MEHKA
insurance policies 218 217
Interest income on loan receivables FEWE R 2 F B A - 424
Consultancy income B8 LA 307 -
Dividend income i& B g A 2,013 -
Rental income He WA - 199
Forfeiture of customers’ deposits RREFEE 351 199
Others HAth 157 88
6,409 5,141
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HitlhmKEiE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Gain on fair value change of REMENTEZES 2 Wa
investment property - 729
Loss on fair value change of held for ~ FEEBIRE 2 AT EEE 2
trading investments &8 (994) -
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BEX
plant and equipment wEZ (BE), /K (68) 97
Impairment loss on AR ERE 2 RESE
available-for-sale investments (16,348) -
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) HNEE T U 2k, (E548) 5,823 (7,502)
(11,587) (6,676)
FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMAK
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Interest on bank loans RITE A E - 8
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9.

158

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

9. FIBHAX

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
HBETT BT T
Current tax: B EATR I8
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEH
— Current year —KREEFE 7,486 3,646
— Under provision in prior year - BEFERETR 796 666
8,282 4,312
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B FTISH
— Current year —RFE - 395
Total income tax recognised RIEEERZ
in profit or loss FriSTiasa 8,282 4,707

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

No provision for taxation has been provided for companies in
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands as they are
not subject to any tax during the current and prior years.

No provision for Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax has been
provided for the Taiwan subsidiary as there was no assessable
profits for both years.

REMEFERBBELENRERE
B R SR A1 1216.5% 1 K 51
BENEHEME -

BEPEARLIMBECEMERE
([EMRBRE]) REEMBREER
FEAE) - R BB A R A M EF E R
&1 B25% o

HRAFERBEFERSHE LR
BB BB R R ) B A BN AR
8 W ERZF QAR A -

M B T B A R % M (B F 2 &
ERERTORN - # EEHE R E B
ESES 8L
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continuea) 9. FISE®M%(®
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FEBBIHEGEEEREMEZE
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and W KR HIBR B A a A E R T
other comprehensive income as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Profit before tax B 758 B g 7] 1,061 13,015
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BREBMSHHZE16.5%:TH
of 16.5% By FE IR 175 2,147
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A 155 5 2 B B 5 o &
for tax purpose 4,242 2,337
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARMBANT BT E
tax purpose (1,839) (588)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIBBHENHEZE 5,152 1,108
Utilisation of tax losses not previously — B R FB A HER M B EE 12
recognised - (446)
Effect of different tax rates of £ ﬁ B ERE R 4 & BB B
subsidiaries operating in other NEE TR R 2
jurisdictions (867) 39
Under provision in prior year BEFERETR 796 666
Others Ht 623 (551)
Tax charge for the year FEHIBEL TN 8,282 4,707
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10. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

160

(Loss)/Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/

10. £ N (&E) EF

FR (E1E), s hEme, (GEA)

(crediting): TS IEEER:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE{ & k18 2 # £ 1,360 954
Less: amounts capitalised in B ERETIEERRIAE
construction in progress (248) -
1,112 954
Staff costs, including directors’ BEIXA(BEESHE)
emoluments 46,456 42,971
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E HH
(included in cost of sales) (G ASHERA) 1,548 1,932
Depreciation of property, Y- BEMREEIITE
plant and equipment 9,040 6,431
Cost of inventories recognised as BRERZ ZFERAR
an expense 49,805 65,332
Auditors’ remuneration %S BB & 850 750
Reversal of write-down of inventories 77 & iU # [2]
(included in cost of sales) (Gt ASHERA) - (522)
Gross rental income from KREWE Z #HEES KA
investment property - (199)
Less: direct operating expenses B BERERX - 50
Net rental income from investment wEYHE 2 FHSBKA
property - (149)
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief

executive of the Company were as follows:

"M EERFTETHRAEHME

BN SRENAARTEEREBFHA
BHMSmT

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B FE2018F3A3THILLEE
Other emoluments
EfhEl &
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other  Share-based benefits
Fees benefits payments schemes Total
HeR HEkhE BHERAME
e Rt E# ERMAR #® &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI ERTT ERTT Rt BT
Executive directors piTEE
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Note (i) FONTEE () - 2,715 1,447 21 4,183
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BEZUL - 2,184 1,050 18 3,252
Ms. Dong Mei Xian (Note (i) EXzL (M) - 165 - - 165
Non-executive director EUTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling "EERLT 180 - - - 180
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Note (i) RETEAE (HEki) 180 - - - 180
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTEE
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu FRkEE 240 - - - 240
Dr. Tang Sing Hing Kenny HE®Et 180 - - - 180
Mr. Lau Chi Kit Edwin (Note (iv) 2Rk (M) 83 - - - 83
Mr. Tsti Nam Hung (Note (v)) REERAE (W) 97 - - - 97
960 5,064 2,497 39 8,560
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S M. EERFETHRAEME

EMOLUMENTS (continued) (%)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE2017F3A318ILFE
Other emoluments
Hitfi &
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other  Share-based benefits
Fees benefits payments schemes Total
Fe Rk Ukind  BAEREE
e HEf BB R it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BETT BT BETT
Executive directors piTEs
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Note () g o0r5E (HEEG) - 2,368 1,087 25 4,380
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BREZaT - 1,939 1,322 18 3279
Ms. Dong Mei Xian (Note (i) BEZ L (HE) - 134 - - 134
Non-executive director EUTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BEROT 180 - - - 180
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Note (i) RETEAE (FEki) 133 - - - 133

Independent non-executive directors BIFHITES

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu £ 240 - - - 240

Dr. Tang Sing Hing Kenny HEEET 180 - - - 180

Mr. Tsui Nam Hung (Note (v) rEEEE (Miy) 180 - - - 180
913 4,441 3,309 43 8,706

Notes: MI5E -

)  Mr. Pang Siu Hin is the chief executive officer of the Company. () BOUTRERRNABNITHREE -

(i) Appointed on 4 July 2016 and resigned on 1 March 2018. iy  H2016F7 H4HEZ(ERF20184F3 A7

1H B

(i) Appointed on 4 July 2016. @iy  M2016F7H4HEZ -

(iv)  Appointed on 16 October 2017. (iv) M2017F10B16HEZ T

(vy  Retired on 16 October 2017. (v)  R2017F10A16HRE -
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The non-executive directors’
emoluments and the independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

None of the Company’s directors waived any emoluments
during the year (2017: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the Company’s directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2017:
Nil).

"M EERFTETHRAEHME

(#&)

EXFARMITESE e T2 HRK
FHARBRAEBEEREHRER” 2
ARTG o EXPIRIEMITE = MBI 3F
HITEEME T EHEEFER/EAR
AIEFRH RS-

FRNARAREEHERETMEE
(20174  f®) o

FA AREALEAORRREAESES
B - AERBEEIMAZS AR EE
BEEREN SRR E (20179 : &) -
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two (2017: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2017: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

12.

hEBREHFNES

FR AEENIERSFTHEER
FEMG (2017F M B)ESE - H
HEEN EXHFEI - FRAEBKB=R
(CO17TF ZR)FARAEERETE
TBRABH &S HWMNEENTHMNFE
E RPN

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

BWTT BT T

Salaries and other benefits e kHAMEF 1,781 2,234

Share-based payments VARR 0 B E TR R 39 -
Contributions to retirement RIREFIFT S

benefits schemes 49 54

Total emoluments & 4B %8 1,869 2,288

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

164

FHMORATHEMNARRESR
SEEEE ABMT

2018 2017

(Number of (Number of

employees) employees)

(ERA#) (BEEAZ)

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000 7T 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T2

1,500,000/ 7T - 1

3 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the five highest paid individuals of the Group
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2017: Nil).

FR-AREBTERTIMAEERS
BEREHEMWATIAME  UEBBE
ISR hn A K 5 B 14 1) 52 Bh =k Bl B v
8 (20174 #&) -
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share ARREAANBEERERREER
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the MTER TN ERD

following data:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Earnings a¥
Earnings for the purpose of basic and AT ESIEAR K #EE T
diluted earnings per share (Profit for B (RABHE AEIE
the year attributable to owners of the 4 3% Fl| )
Company) 530 9,798
2018 2017
’000 000
TR T %
Number of shares BinE B
Weighted average number of R ESRERERF 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of T B AR N Y 81
basic earnings per share 1,090,847 1,020,672
Effect of dilutive potential BUEEELRR O FE:
ordinary shares:
— Share options —RE MR 3,794 9,397
Weighted average number of RAATESREERT 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of T B AR N Y9 81
diluted earnings per share 1,094,641 1,030,069
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14. DIVIDENDS 14. K&
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Dividends recognised as distribution RERNERIED KBRS
during the year
- 2017 Final - HK$0.01 — 2017 REIR B
(2016: HK$0.01) per share - §80.017B T
(20164 : 0.017%8 L) 10,888 10,853
- 2018 Interim — HK$0.01 — 2018F R HRR B
(2017: HK$0.01) per share - §80.01B T
(20174 : 0.01%8 L) 10,935 10,858
- 2017 Special — HK$0.01 per share ~ — 2017F 45 R I &
- FR%0.01%8 T - 10,858
21,823 32,569
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend RBERRE EFLEBARNTEE
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 of HK$0.01 2018F3ABIA L FEZ KRR E &
(2017: HK$0.01) per ordinary share has been proposed by the fi% & 38 B%0.017% JT (20174 : 0.01/8
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the 7T) MR EER R AE L1t
forthcoming general meeting. S e
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -BERRE
Leasehold Building Leasehold
land held held for ~ Construction  Furniture and Motor  improvements
for own use own use in progress equipment vehicles and fixtures Total
fHEARAN #feaR HENE
HALH ki B3 EBIE RER R RE RERKE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EETT BETT EETT BETT BBTT EET T EETT

Cost BE

At 1 April 2016 2016854 A1R 18,603 17,217 - 8,939 6,874 8,298 59,991

Additions NE 67,233 8,040 - 1,999 2,439 3,217 82,928
Transfer from investment property B % & 1 B # - 1,005 - - - - 1,005
Disposals HE - - - - (815) - (815)
Exchange adjustments ERAZ - (668) - (54) (48) (197) (967)
At 31 March 2017 2017434311 85,836 25,654 - 10,884 8,450 11,318 142,142
Additions RE - - 4,640 2,829 726 7,384 15,679
Disposals HeE - - - (485) - (133) (618)
Exchange adjustments ER % - 1,235 180 305 104 524 2,348
At 31 March 2018 2018434311 85,836 26,889 4,820 13,533 9,280 19,093 159,451

Accumulated depreciation RitHE

At 1 April 2016 201654 A1R 1,100 1,706 - 6,713 4,484 5,239 19,242

Provided for the year FEEE 2,007 755 - 1,035 1,409 1,225 6,431

Eliminated on disposals PR s 1 8 - - - - (781) - (781)
Exchange adjustments BHAR - (43 - 4 (39) (7 (149)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A31H 3,107 2,418 - 7,752 5,079 6,387 24,743
Provided for the year FEEE 2,733 872 - 1,632 1,485 2,318 9,040
Eliminated on disposals R B - - - (431) - (119) (550)
Exchange adjustments [ 52 - 119 - 177 54 284 634
At 31 March 2018 R2018%3A31H 5,840 3,409 - 9,130 6,618 8,870 33,867

Carrying amounts IREE

At 31 March 2018 #2018%3A31H 79,996 23,480 4,820 4,403 2,662 10,223 125,584
At 31 March 2017 201763 A31H 82,729 283,236 - 3,132 3,371 4,931 117,399
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -BERRE &)
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for BRAEZEIEIN Bl WFE KERE
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line HEUBEGEETIFERITE

basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land held for Over the lease term FIEEAH RHAEH
own use HET
Building held for own use 3% RIEERAMEFT 3%
Furniture and equipment ~ 20% — 50% RN E T 20% —50%
Motor vehicles 20% - 25% nE 20%—25%
Leasehold improvements ~ 25% or over the lease term MEMEEER  25%KIZHEH
and fixtures whichever is the shorter 3 (B & AE)
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. ERHERE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT ok
At the beginning of year REH] 31,335 28,369
Addition NE 21,300 -
Transfer from investment property EECs=EJE -3 - 5,642
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE{I 0 & k18 7 # £ (1,360) (954)
Exchange adjustments b 2 4,076 (1,622)
At the end of year RER 55,351 31,335
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYETT TS EEF T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BLERRIME 22 :
Current asset (included in trade and RBEE(BEREEES R
other receivables) Hn U sRIER) 1,623 1,067
Non-current asset ERBEE 53,728 30,268
55,351 31,335
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land AEBNBENEEFIBEREBLRF
located in the PRC. TR E o
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

17. REWYE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
HBETT BT
At the beginning of year REH] - 6,289
Change in fair value recognised in RERERZ A TEE
profit or loss = 729
Transfer to property, BEREYE B NREE
plant and equipment LA KRB R EFKIR
and prepaid lease payments - (6,547)
Exchange adjustments PE H A& — (471)
At the end of year RER - -

The Group’s property interest held under operating lease to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose is measured
using the fair value model and is classified and accounted for as
investment property.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property as at the date
of transfer to property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Chung Hin Appraisal Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property was
determined based on direct comparison method assuming
sale of the property interest in its existing state and making
references to comparable market observable transactions
of similar properties in the same locations and conditions as
available in the relevant market.

BREBLEHERFARRESHIEE
RIBERE 2 AEE Y E R TE R
NFEEAFE AN BERAKRAK

AEBRENDENERDE BEK
R LRENBEEFBER#H 2 2FETD
HEASEREEENELIEERSE
EHEMTITFEERARIZZ AL
T2 B EREEEY-

AEBREMEZ A FEBERLEER
BB REMEERRERNHEE

WESERBET G ERESRR
(VA= EEILR:IEE Y E S 0EIDS T
EIEBMI G e
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BIEEE
Licenses
- :i]
HK$’'000
BT T
Cost 5% 3
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 2016F441H ~2017F3H31H &
31 March 2018 20183 A31H 5,090
Accumulated amortisation REtEss
At 1 April 2016 201644 A1H 1,610
Charge for the year FEMRX 1,932
At 31 March 2017 M2017F3A31H 3,542
Charge for the year FEMRX 1,548
At 31 March 2018 ®2018%E3HA31H 5,090
Carrying amounts IRE(E
At 31 March 2018 7¥2018%3A31H -
At 31 March 2017 201793 A31H 1,548
The licenses have finite useful lives and are amortised on a ZERREAHTURFEH WikE
straight-line basis over 2.5 years. AREAERND 5F NG o
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DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENTS FOR LIFE
INSURANCE POLICIES

In 2013, Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical”) entered into life
insurance policies with an insurance company to insure Mr.
Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man, the directors of the
Company. Under the policies, Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical is
the beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum is
US$2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$15,600,000).
Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical is required to pay upfront deposits
of US$671,383 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,237,000)
including premium charges at inception of the policies
amounting to US$40,283 (equivalent to approximately
HK$314,000). Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical can terminate
the policies at any time and receive cash back based on the
cash value of the policies at the date of withdrawal, which
is determined by the upfront payments of US$671,383 plus
accumulated interest earned and minus the accumulated
insurance charge and policy expense charge (“Cash Valug”). In
addition, if withdrawal is made, there is a specified amount of
surrender charge. The insurance company will pay Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical a guaranteed interest of 4.0% per annum for
the first three years, followed by minimum guaranteed interest
rate of 2.25% per annum or above 2.25% per annum for the
following years.

At 31 March 2018, the deposit and prepayments for life
insurance policies amounted to approximately HK$5,170,000
(2017: HK$5,010,000), with approximately HK$57,000 (2017:
HK$56,000) being included in trade and other receivables.

The deposit and prepayments for life insurance policies are
denominated in United States Dollar (‘US$”).

19. ARREZEESRANFIEA

20134 + KMERZ (HF)ERA
Al (TRMERE]) BRI ARIFIZA
SRE ARRRESZIITAENEA
BEA TR -BBRE KM%
RIHEARREFBA  BRERER
2,000,000% 7T, (18 E 7 £915,600,000
BIL) AMEREESTNENEZS
671,3833% 7T (18 E M 495,237,000/
70)  BIERE AN A BAR E40,283
F 7t (FE K 4314,000% 7T) - KM
SRR A LR - WIRESE A
HrRERSEEREDRS LA HE
I3I8671,383% L N R 51 2 B A BB
Z2EHREMRERY ([REBEE]) AT
BETE o AN MMBUEIRAR - BIZEX 15
TEBEIZRRFEE - RBRABEN
B-FRAMBRESY F5F4.0%H
REFE  EEFEEZKERENE
BF2.25%H FF2.25% M £ e

M2018F3A31H  ASREZIRE
N FBAS 5/38 & 495,170,0007%8 7T (2017
% 15,010,000/ 7T ) * #957,0007% 7T
(20174 : 56,000/ 70) Jhst A B 5 &
H Ath & KRR o

ABREZZES RBEMNRIETIAET
([=Tl)atE.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AIHHERE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETT BT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong A& B LRI AFE 5 573,392 408,552
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20.

21.

22.

172

(Continued)

The fair value of the above equity securities listed in Hong
Kong at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements was approximately HK$457,037,000.

Included in equity securities listed in Hong Kong above as
at 31 March 2018 is the Group’s investment in Fullshare
Holdings Limited (“Fullshare”), a company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands, with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$516,628,000 (2017: HK$408,552,000). The investment
represents a 0.60% (2017: 0.60%) holding of the ordinary
shares of Fullshare and more than 10% (2017: 10%) of the
Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2018.

AHEERE ()

REZaMBHRRLAER Ll EE L
AR 35 27 ) 2 FE & #)457,087,000
BT

Lt R2018F3A31B Z2&E B L™
RABLHEPEAEERERIZER
ERAR(IEE] —ERHASH
SEEFMKIzAR)2ERE KE
B A 49516,628,000/8 7T (20174 :
408,552,000/ 7T ) ° ;21 E R E R IF
B2 5% 490.60% (20174 : 0.60% ) Z
T R I 8 i 7 & B 7201853 31
HEELMBE 210% (2017F : 10% ) °

INVENTORIES 21. &
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT EEE T IT
Raw materials R 1,236 1,303
Finished products for resale HEEK M 8,354 7,596
9,590 8,899
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ES R HMEWKIE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Trade receivables B 5 WA 21,780 16,651
Prepayments to suppliers At FE P TR RIE 2 1,463
Prepaid lease payments FENEERIE 1,623 1,067
Prepayments for other expenses HE A B FIB 18,407 9,882
Other deposits (mainly including HEiize (FEREREES R
rental and building management EFERELRD)
fee deposits) 5,133 3,626
Other receivables H i fE W IR 1,691 873
48,636 33,562
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ES REMBEWRE (#)

(Continued)

A TERBERRAEENE 5 R W
FIANRE DT (REZEHZ5) ¢

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period, presented based
on invoice date:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT T

0-30 days 0£30K 8,825 7,433
31-60 days 31E60X 6,991 4,604
61-90 days 61290K 3,797 3,833
Over 90 days EEGIS 0N 2,167 781
21,780 16,651

The Group’s sales to most customers are made on cash on
delivery, whilst the Group generally allows an average credit
period of 60 days (with 15 days of grace period in certain
cases) to certain major trade customers with established
trading records.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customers.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
below for aging analysis) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not recognised an
allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it
have a legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the
Group to the counterparty.

AEBRAABIFEPHHEEAGRM
R NET MAKE-—RETRS
FRHRHFNETEEE HEFE0KM
FHEEH ETHERATREFIGKR
RIRH-

REBEMERHEEA NEBEFEE
EEPHMEEARMREFPEEEE
PREE

EXRBEZEHEBFTABER &
THRREBHNEE (R TIXREKED
) ERRNEEERYELREAE
B RERESRIDBR R AIRE - R
EYERAEREIREREMB K
SEWEIZFBRT A TAETR
A5 B IE AR TR AR5 B R A
R FHOEARBRBELFTEHZ
RTEHER
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2. B REMERKIE 2)
(Continued)
Aging of trade receivables that are past due but CEBERHRENE S ERRIE
not impaired AR iR
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
61-90 days 61Z290K 3,797 3,833
Over 90 days FRBI0K 2,167 781
5,964 4,614
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the FETESBWRFIARE ] UKE -
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade AEBZRAVERLEEERRE
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the =HmEPRR FHEESREFIBENGE
end of each reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is EEERALEREMESH - BREF
limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. HRAMRFZEETHE HEE

REoEFREEAR-

At the end of the reporting period, the amount due from a R|ER FTAREEE 5 KK
company controlled by a relative of Mr. Pang Siu Hin included in HRMWEREAE DIThRE —BEIE
the Group’s trade receivables are: GEONGIESE/ =P
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Brighten Hong Limited HIBIT AR AR
(“Brighten Hong”) ([$6¥7171) 293 588
23. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 23. FIEEERE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong R & B TR AFE 5 8,986 -
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24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24. RITHEBEBES
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from IRITHESRIZEF0.001%E3.6% (2017
0.001% to 3.6% (2017: 0.001% to 4.8%) per annum. F:0.001%%E4.8% ) K T 35 F| X &5t
é\ o
At 31 March 2018, certain of the Group’s bank balances R2018F3A31H AEBE BT
and cash with an aggregate amount of approximately 49 /128,939,000/8 7T (20174 :
HK$128,939,000 (2017: HK$151,678,000) were denominated 151,678,000/ L) K& T IRITA# K&
in Renminbi (‘RMB”) which is not a freely convertible currency BeUAARE (AR E M
in the international market. The government of the PRC has ARBIWIEERETS FNERERE
implemented foreign exchange control and the remittance o mBEIRTEBITINEE S EEME
of funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions HARBIEINEZ P BB E A E K
imposed by the government of the PRC. PR 1 FT 4R PR ©
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. ES RHEMENRE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Trade payables B S EMNRIE 9,504 9,571
Receipts in advance FE U FR B 1,628 5,443
Accruals (mainly including salaries and st ER (EEaEHFE L
advertising expenses) BERX) 19,172 13,923
30,304 28,937
The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables ATERBERRAEBNE 5N
at the end of the reporting period, presented based on invoice FEMRRSIT (REEBHZ27) -
date:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
0-30 days 0Z30Kk 8,732 7,686
31-60 days 31E60K 681 1,169
61-90 days 61ZE90K 9 390
Over 90 days R HEI0K 82 326
9,504 9,571
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26. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

26. IEEFIE

RAFERBEFED

RN T ER

EREaE, (BE) REEEHMT:

prior years:

Accelerated Fair value

tax adjustments
depreciation on acquisition Tax losses Total

{4
MERFRE LFEERE RESR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T ek BT T AT T
At 1 April 2016 72016F4F1H - 574 (574) -
(Credit)/Charge to profit or loss (5t A) /BB - (319) 319 -
At 31 March 2017 M20179F3A31H - 255 (255) -
Charge/(Credit) to profit or loss 31 &,/ (5t A) 18z 49 (255) 206 -
At 31 March 2018 #2018%3A31H 49 - (49) -
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26. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$46,758,000 (2017: HK$22,220,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$294,000 (2017: HK$1,548,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$46,464,000 (2017: HK$20,672,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses in Hong
Kong may carry forward indefinitely. The unrecognised tax
losses in the PRC will expire as follows:

26. IR IE (#£)

MR2018F3A31H  KREBH A H
7 78 185 18 49 /546,758,0005% 7T (2017
122,220,000/ 70 ) + A] A EH 85 oK
Hs H) o B Bt 5% 55 B 18 HR £9294,000%8
7T (20174 : 1,548,000/8 7T ) FERRIE T
TRIB & E o A R 0% FI B A S AT
A 48 5L 8 T 46,464,0005%8 JT (2017
% 20,672,000 7T ) MERIEE T IH &
E-AEBEEENERBEE K

FRE B TE S 1R 5 TR I R

K

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT

Tax losses expiring in BT B B R fE i Y A 1B S 18
- 2017 t0 2018 —2017F £2018%F - 814
- 2018 t0 2019 —2018%F £20194F 950 858
- 2019 to 2020 —2019%F £20204F - -
— 2020 to 2021 —2020F £20214F 4,082 3,691
— 2021 to 2022 — 20214 £20224F 2,438 2,203
- 2022 to 2023 —2022%F F£2023F 13,855 -
21,325 7,566

At 31 March 2018, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$399,000 (2017: HK$220,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.

20183 A31H » ANEE ) A HIm
B 1 2= £ 49 4399,00078 7T (20174 ¢

220,000/ 7T ) © FR R R 2R g A1) B DA
MU EREEANREREER

HERBEENRIAEE

ZE-L/ZE-NEFR TEEE (AR ERERAT
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27.

178

SHARE CAPITAL 27. R
Number Share
of shares capital
Bir&A Bx
HK$’000
BT T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRREECI0E T2 BB
Authorised: EE:
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and R2016%F4A1H -
31 March 2018 2017%F3A318 &
20183 A31H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 April 2016 201644 A1H 800,468,000 80,047
Issue of shares by subscription AR R BEITRMD
(Note (i) (HI3EG)) 280,000,000 28,000
Issue of shares on exercise of share AT R IR T TR (D
options (Note (ii)) (B 5 Giiy ) 9,648,000 965
At 31 March 2017 R2017%F3A831H 1,090,116,000 109,012
Shares repurchased and cancelled R MAEER D
(Note (iii)) (B3 (i) ) (1,336,000) (134)
Issue of shares on exercise of AT IR TR D
share options (Note (iv)) (PR 3E (V) 4,728,000 473
At 31 March 2018 ®¥20185%3A31H 1,093,508,000 109,351
Notes: B 5
0] On 27 April 2016, Fullshare entered into a conditional subscription i) 20164 A27H - @R B AR QA B 3L

agreement with the Company for the subscription of 250,000,000

(i)

ordinary shares of the Company at HK$1.18 per share. On the same
day, Zall Capital Limited also entered into a conditional subscription
agreement with the Company for the subscription of 30,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$1.18 per share. All these
shares rank pari passu with existing shares in all respects.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, 9,108,000 share options
were exercised at a subscription price of HK$0.826 per share and
540,000 share options were exercised at a subscription price of
HK$1.46 per share, resulting in the issue of 9,648,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each. All these shares rank pari passu with
existing shares in all respects.

BIRERBHZ UWRTREMN1.18
7 7T 2 (B 1% 3R 7K &2 71250,000,000

fi% I 3E AL o R B - Zall Capital Limited7R
HARNRE LB GUHRERE  WIZ
FREMIASETZBERBARQ A
30,000,0000% E A% - FTE ZE RN T
SHEERERNEHEREUHA -

HEZ2017F3A31H It FE -
9,108,00017 i % 1 1% & 1%20.8267% 7T
H) R BE (B & 1T [2540,00017 B8 Ie i 4%
FR146B TR B EEITE  EH
9,648,0004% & % [ {B0.107%8 7T /) & 8
Mg TT - B ZERDES HEER
ERNZBREHNL
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 27. BR7 (&)
Notes: (Continued) MizE: (&)
(iiy ~ During the year, the Company repurchased its own ordinary shares iy FA-ARRBBHIMBLESSE
through the Stock Exchange as follows: FEIET
Number of Price per share Aggregate
Month of ordinary BEER consideration
repurchase shares Highest Lowest paid
W&E A 3 HEESE =& R®{E AR
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
ikes ket BETT
April M A 1,336,000 1.3500 1.3379 1,790

28.

The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

(iv)  On 31 October 2017, 4,728,000 share options were exercised at a
subscription price of HK$0.826 per share, resulting in the issue of
4,728,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each. All these shares rank
pari passu with existing shares in all respects.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company’s pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 25 September 2014 to recognise the contribution
of certain employees, executives or officers of the Group who
have made or will make to the growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
might be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
24,640,000.

No further options could be granted by the Company under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

—E—t 2 N\FER

28.

Lt EERE R ERR

(iv) 720174108318 + 4,728,000 & i%
EEREETR0826B TEITE &
B14,728,000/% & % E 1E0.1078 7T #) &
BRERT - TEZSERNES HHEE
WRERMNZERSHAL -

U5 B ERB MR
BRAFARENBRES

ARG ERARABEEREREE
(IBRAFREERBRES])BE
2014F9H25 B @A 2 RATRELRWN -
WEEAEEETEE THRABK
=B A BE RSB R REFTEL S
EHMER -

BIEE X ARSI ERET ST 8
BREZEBREMS OO EE RS
& {E1B24,640,0000%

ARABBEMRBE R A ER EHE AR
NEPNBRBEERAREENBRE
AEE -SSR NBRE-
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

180

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continuea)

28.

At 31 March 2018, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 9,216,000 (2017:
14,064,000), representing 0.84% (2017: 1.29%) of the shares

of the Company in issue at that date.

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme are as follows:

URGBERONER (2)
BRAEREMNBRES (&)

2018F3A31H IR IE & X AR
ERERENERE RERITED
FERR W KRR 1 B &9,216,000
A% (20174F : 14,064,0000% ) * 8 & ©
ANBRZBEBITIRG 2 #0.84%
(20175 :1.29% ) °

RIBERAFEE B RESTBIMX
HA R 2 F BT

Number of Exercise price

Tranche Date of grant options granted per share  Vesting period Exercisable period

#R B H MEERHAA BRITEE BEY T

1 25/09/2014 23,040,000 HK$0.826/ 7L 25/09/2014 - 16/10/2015 -
15/10/2019 24/09/2024

2 25/09/2014 1,600,000 HK$0.826/87L  25/09/2014 - 16/10/2015 -
15/10/2017 24/09/2024

Notes: B 5

(@  Tranche 1 options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (@ RBIEEHXAFEEAERET MR

shall vest as follows: HEB I ERESSEENT

(i) 20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2015 and
exercisable from 16 October 2015 to 24 September 2024;

(ii) 20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2016 and
exercisable from 16 October 2016 to 24 September 2024;

(i)  20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2017 and
exercisable from 16 October 2017 to 24 September 2024;

(iv)  20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2018 and
exercisable from 16 October 2018 to 24 September 2024;

and

(V) 20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2019 and
exercisable from 16 October 2019 to 24 September 2024.

() 20%H) i AR 7 #5 71020154104
16H 578 M o] A20156 10716
HZE2024F9H24 8 HAfE171F

(i) 20%H) & I% 4 6 7 20164F10 4
16H 5 8B & a] 1201610716
H 202499248 BT

(i)  20%HY 8 A% & 1% PA20174F10 A
1608 53 8 & 7] R2017F10H 16
H £202449 A24 8 HiE1T(#

(iv)  20%HY B iR # # 712018410 A
16H 578 M 1] A20185 10716
B ZE202449 248 EAR 1T 18 :
P53

(v)  20%H) B iR ¥ 1 742019410 A
16H 57 8 & 7] 7020195 10H 16
H 202449 B 24 8 #TTIE -
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 28. IR AEBRNNAR &)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRAHBEBRETE (&)
Notes: (Continued) MisE: (&)

(b)  Tranche 2 options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme b) IREEXAFRESATHEESTSI MR
shall vest as follows: HR LR R E S EB T

(i) 30% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2015 and 0] 30%H) 5 AR B 1% 702015510 A

exercisable from 16 October 2015 to 24 September 2024; 16H 5% B & o] 20156 10A16

HZ202459 24 R BifE17{E :

(i)~ 30% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2016 and (i) 30%H) & A% 42 1§ 7 20164F10 4
exercisable from 16 October 2016 to 24 September 2024; 16H 5 8 & Al 2016F10A16
and H Z=20249F9 248 BRI 1T1#

K

@iy  40% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2017 and (i) 40%HY 5 AR 4 1 742017410 A

exercisable from 16 October 2017 to 24 September 2024. 160 55 B & AT 2017410516

H 2202459 A 24 H BiI1T{E -

The following table discloses movements of the Company's TREBFARAGRERARAES
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during AR RIS &8I T 2 R AR )
the year:
Exercised Forfeited
Outstanding at during during Outstanding at
Category of participant Tranche 01/04/2017 the year the year 31/03/2018
#2017F4R1A FRTE Fhigh  R®2018%F3A31H
2HERN #R RiTHE BA BE RITME
Directors 1 12,960,000 (4,320,000) - 8,640,000
B
Employees 1 864,000 (288,000) - 576,000
3
2 240,000 (120,000) (120,000) -
14,064,000 (4,728,000) (120,000) 9,216,000
Exercisable at the end of the year -
RERATITE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.8267& 7T HK$0.8267& T HK$0.8263% T HK$0.8267& T
TEEMETHE

T+t /- \FER (TEEEER)ZERERAT 181
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 28. IR AEBRNNIR &)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRAHBEBRETE (&)
The following table discloses movements of the Company's THREBLE—FEARTAREARARA
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during BERIBRETET 2 BRES

the prior year:

Exercised Forfeited
Outstanding during during Outstanding
Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2016 the year the year at 31/03/2017
1#20165F4R1H FRTE Fhigh  R®2017F3A31H
2HERN #R RITHE L] BE RITHE
Directors 1 21,600,000 (8,640,000) - 12,960,000
%
Employees 1 1,152,000 (288,000) - 864,000
EE
2 420,000 (180,000) - 240,000
23,172,000 (9,108,000) - 14,064,000
Exercisable at the end of the year -
RERATTHE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.8267% 7T HK$0.8267% 7T - HK$0.82675 7T
TR EME T
In respect of the share options exercised during the year, MERNETE 2 BREMNS - R17ER
the weighted average share price at the date of exercise is H 2z e F B RRE R1.4778 T (2017
HK$1.47 (2017: HK$2.23). F:228%85L) °
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 28. IR AEBIMARK (4

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
on 25 September 2014. The Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contribution that the eligible participants have
made or may make to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of ten years commencing on the
effective date of the Share Option Scheme.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options to any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company to
subscribe for the shares of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time
to time. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

BRETE

AR AR IE2014F9A25H R B H
RBRRWERES S ([
2l]) BB ERT 8 AR BBV -
EERERETAERSEAED AN
AR AEEEL 2 B BARERT
EloBEMMAEEREE 2 EUA
RBETF

REBRESE ARBEZEAM
AEBSARERT GRS 2 AR &
RAZMBRRZENES EE-
BE-EXAL TP fiEm L8
B ABRARBAAIEKBERE LA
R AR AR AD 2 i A

R IE R A AT B R AN A R E b R
RS IRBZERESR &
ERNEE AHETEBBARQRAT
BB B 1T 230% ° FE RS EI AR
AR R BAEREZIBRT  MEMR—
FREAERALTERLD RATEER T
ZERES R BBEITRETEITR
MEE TEHBBARGIMERD %
TTIRMD 21% o [ £ ZRR R kB IE
WITEERE 2 EREBBAR AR
Z20.1% 3 fE E i 85,000,000 7T -
BIZBSE B EIAR A AR R AL 4 o

—F—t /=T \EEH TEEE (BB ERERAT 183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 05 A W ik

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 #;Z201843A31H I F/Z

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 28. LR BAERNNTRK (&)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) BREE (&)
Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to EWERER ARABMARBK
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. Options MIBT EFRERBEREZRE-B
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share RERIRIBZERERT S ZIGHRESE
Option Scheme at any time during the period as the board of AEEEE 2 X H R HAR (A
directors may determine in granting the option but in any event B QDT—JT SHRBARE T BB )
not exceeding ten years from the date of grant. A AT BF fE) 7 DAS T ©
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the IFEERARRESETE  HERTSE
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing R ()% B BIARR Rk 2 Wi (B
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (i) the EEFELBHIAEREEXBE RN
average closing price of the shares for the five business days EHYTHE  R(i)A R E RN 2 EE
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal e
value of the Company’s share.
At 31 March 2018, the number of shares in respect of which 20186 3A31H « 1R & g IR # 5t
options had been granted and remained outstanding under EEREERARITERZEBREMRS
the Share Option Scheme was 6,270,000 (2017: 4,110,000), N 7 B 1n 8 B &6,270,0000% (2017
representing 0.57% (2017: 0.38%) of the shares of the % :4,110,0000%) - HE R AR FR
Company in issue at that date. ZBEEITRD 20.57% (20174 :
0.38%) °
Details of the share options granted under the Share Option BRI IR T &M X B R B 2 7
Scheme are as follows: BT
Number of Exercise price
Tranche Date of grant options granted per share  Vesting period Exercisable period
#R B|HBM BRERHSE BiR{TEE BREH TR
1 28/04/2015 2,400,000 HK$1.4607% 7T 28/04/2015 - 28/04/2016 -
27/04/2018 27/04/2025
4 03/10/2016 2,160,000 HK$2.144% 7L 03/10/2016 — 03/10/2017 -
02/10/2019 02/10/2026
5 18/11/2016 90,000 HK$2.264/% 7T 18/11/2016 - 18/11/2017 -
17/11/2019 17/11/2026
6 21/12/2017 2,160,000 HK$1.412/8 7T 21/12/2017 - 21/12/2018 -
20/12/2020 20/12/2027
184  HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2017/2018
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28. LR AERNNSR 2)
BRERE (&)

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continuead)

Notes:

(@)

Tranche 1 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall vest

as follows:

(i)

30% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2016 and exercisable
from 28 April 2016 to 27 April 2025;

30% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2017 and exercisable
from 28 April 2017 to 27 April 2025; and

40% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2018 and exercisable
from 28 April 2018 to 27 April 2025.

Tranche 4 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall vest

as follows:

(i)

(i)

30% of the options shall vest on 3 October 2017 and
exercisable from 3 October 2017 to 2 October 2026;

30% of the options shall vest on 3 October 2018 and
exercisable from 3 October 2018 to 2 October 2026; and

40% of the options shall vest on 3 October 2019 and
exercisable from 3 October 2019 to 2 October 2026.

—E—t 2 N\FER

Wi

(@)

L PSR 0 7 15 4 e 01 B PR
HRBNT

(i)

(i)

30%HY i A% 1 145 74201654 A28
BB LA R20165F4A288 &
20254 A27 H BRI 171

30%H] i % 18 3§ 72201744 A 28
HEREB N R2017F4 8288 &
2025%F4 A27 H HAIMTTE : &

40% Y B A% 1 15 742018454 A28
BB LA N20185F4A28R &
20254 A27 B EARI 1T 1E -

AR IE s A A ST B 45 1 e IR 4R B
AR

(i)

PTEEE (ER) ZRERLDF

30%H9 il % #8372 20174F10 A3
HERB N R20174F10A3B &
202610 A2 H BRI 171

30%HY B A% 7 1% 742018510 A3
HE& B R A 72018510 A3 &
2026510 A2 R BRI 1T |2

40% Y B A% 7 145 74201910 A3

HEE & A R20195F10A3A &
2026510 H2 R B AT -
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

186

Share Option Scheme (Continueq)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

Tranche 5 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall vest

as follows:

U

(i)

(i)

30% of the options shall vest on 18 November 2017 and
exercisable from 18 November 2017 to 17 November 2026;

30% of the options shall vest on 18 November 2018 and
exercisable from 18 November 2018 to 17 November 2026;
and

40% of the options shall vest on 18 November 2019 and
exercisable from 18 November 2019 to 17 November 2026.

Tranche 6 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall vest

as follows:

)

(i)

(il

30% of the options shall vest on 21 December 2018 and
exercisable from 21 December 2018 to 20 December 2027;

30% of the options shall vest on 21 December 2019 and
exercisable from 21 December 2019 to 20 December 2027;
and

40% of the options shall vest on 21 December 2020 and
exercisable from 21 December 2020 to 20 December 2027.

28. LR BAERNNTRK (&)
IBRRESTE (&)

PsE: (&)

()

AR B A A ST B 452 A 4k R B P
AR

(i)

(i)

30% 1 fE IR 1 1% 7201 7F 11 A
18H % B K Al R2017F 11 A
18H £2026F11 A17H BRI 17
&

30% Y g A% & 15 2018411 A
18H 5 & & 7] 120184 11 A
180 £20264F11 5178 # 1T
%

40%HY 8 A% 7 #8 70201911 A
18H 57 B & 7] A2019F 11 7
18H £2026F11 A17H BRI 17
o

AR B B AT 81 1 7% ) O it I 6 A
iR

(i)

(i)
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21H £2027F12 8208 /1T
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40%H) B AR 7 % 702020412 A
21H &8 & Al 20204124
218 E2027412 8208 K 17
fi o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o T 0 9 A Y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 28. IR AEBRNNAR &)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) BREE (&)
The following table discloses movements of the Company's TREBFARAANBERESET
share options under the Share Option Scheme during the year: 2B S E)
Granted Exercised
Outstanding during during Outstanding
Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2017 the year the year at 31/03/2018
#2017%4R1H FREH FRTE  R2018%3A31A
BREFR #R RiTHE BA #E RITHE
Directors 1 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000
X 4 2,160,000 - - 2,160,000
6 - 2,160,000 - 2,160,000
Employees 1 210,000 - - 210,000
Eg 5 90,000 - - 90,000
Consultant 1 600,000 - - 600,000
B
4,110,000 2,160,000 - 6,270,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,575,000
RERATEE
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.837# T HK$1.412i& T - HK$1.691:# T
TR EMETHE
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28.

188

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continuea)
Share Option Scheme (Continueq)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

share options under the Share Option Scheme during the prior
year:

28. LR BAERNNTRK (&)

BBRERTE (2)

TREE LFARBRBERERT ST
Z R

Granted Exercised
Outstanding during during Outstanding
Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2016 the year the year at 31/03/2017
#2016F4R 10 FREH FRTE  R201753A31A
2HERN #R RITHE L] BE RITHE
Directors 1 1,500,000 - (450,000) 1,050,000
= 4 - 2,160,000 - 2,160,000
Employees 1 300,000 - (90,000) 210,000
Eg 5 - 90,000 - 90,000
Consultant 1 600,000 - - 600,000
]
2,400,000 2,250,000 (540,000) 4,110,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 180,000
RERA{TEE
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.46075 7T HK$2.14978 T HK$1.46075 7T HK$1.837/58 T
TR EME T

In respect of the share options exercised during the year ended
31 March 2017, the weighted average share price at the dates
of exercise is HK$2.78.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, options under the Share
Option Scheme were granted to directors on 21 December
2017. The estimated fair value of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme on that date is approximately
HK$1,205,000.

REE2017EIAMB I FEETHEZ
BREMS RITEBHZINEFY
RZAE A2.7878 JT °

B ZE2018F3A31H IEFE AR A
R2017F12 421 BARIE BB PR 51 &%
HiERELAEE - Nz B REBR
B EIE THOEREGSATENR
1,205,000/ JC °
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
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28. LR AEBRNNIR (&)

Share Option Scheme (Continuead)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, options under the Share
Option Scheme were granted to directors and employees
on 3 October 2016 and 18 November 2016. The estimated
fair values of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme on those dates are approximately HK$1,394,000 and
HK$82,000 respectively.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

Date of grant

BBRERTE (2)

HZE2017F3A31H L FE KAAQA]
201610438 &20165F11 A18H
BEERESESRLERELES
REB -RZIEAH REERES
IR THBEREGRT A FESROR
1,394,000/ 7T 582,000/ 7T, ©

“IEAHREEELE AR GEEBR
Bz N E - FEBREZAFEM
RzB8RBRDEREE 2 &EM
ate ﬁ%ﬂﬂgz{ﬁ@ﬂﬁl :FEE?LTE“”

)\%(T)"%ZZDT-

g = 21/12/2017 18/11/2016 03/10/2016
Share price B HK$1.410/ 7T HK$2.2307% 7T HK$2.0607% 7T
Exercise price 1TEfE HK$1.412i 5T HK$2.2647% 7T HK$2.1447% 7T
Option life et F 1 10 yearsiE 10 yearsf 10 yearsfF
Expected volatility ﬁ HH P 44.00% 40.68% 40.06%
Dividend yield Hﬁzﬂﬁ 1.42% 1.17% 0.97%
Risk-free interest rate i | 1.84% 1.34% 0.92%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the share prices of comparable companies over the
previous ten years.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$2,679,000 (2017: HK$3,743,000) for the year in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

—EBE—+ =

EHURIE SRABE T FALRAT
(8 2 FE SR e T B E

AEBERAFTFERRBEBAR IR
02 BRI 2 B L 4858 492,679,000
7¢ (20174F : 3,743,000/ 7T ) °
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29.

190

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amount to
approximately HK$2,029,000 (2017: HK$1,768,000) for the
year, and represent contributions payable to these schemes by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

9. RIREFFT &

AEBRBHETENAEERBTRH
BEMEAEEAE A ENEEBY
RASBEHERE  AXFEAEFE
TER-

AEERFEEE Ty BB RILE
BREEERAKENGTENKE KK
BZRRF AR —E A 2O L RIR K
BAEEE L R IABZBEN L E -
AEBBRARENFTENEEERR
fEH R E AR o

AEERZABEREMEERER
R ERR Y S 42 88 49 52,029,000 7T
(20174 : 1,768,000/ 7T ) * AANE
BIEZEHER TR EHZE
BRI HR
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(@) Transactions with related parties

During the year, the Group entered into the following
significant transactions with related parties:

30.

BRESRXZ
() HEELTNXRS

RARFE  NEBEREESFZ
THERRS :

2018 2017
Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’000
MESHE BB THHHE BRTRT BT T
Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan  Rental expenses for premises 2,172 669
Lai Man (executive directors of (Note (i))
the Company) WERSFE X (BTEE))
ZOTREREBER L
(RRBIMITES)
Brighten Hong (a company Sales of goods (Note (ii)) 3,057 3,562
controlled by a relative of BmiEE (KEEd))
Mr. Pang Siu Hin)
HIEIT (AP ITREZ
— BB ES A E])
Five Seasons XIV Limited Purchase of available-for-sale 73,112 -
(a subsidiary of Fullshare investments (Note (iii))
(a substantial shareholder BEAHEERE (M)
of the Company))
Five Seasons XIV Limited
(8 (KRAIEERR)
ZHMEAR)
Notes: B e

(i) The rental expenses for premises payable to the above
related parties are based on tenancy agreements entered into
between the parties involved. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors, these transactions have been entered into on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of the

Group’s business.

(ii) The sales to Brighten Hong were carried out in the normal
course of business at mutually agreed prices and terms.

(i) ~ The consideration was determined based on a mutually
agreed price with reference to the prevailing market price of

the investment.

—E—t 2 N\FER

() ENEABESNYERSHEIIAE
BRI TR L E R REE - AR
AEERR RERXGRILFRER
RAAAREE RN ETEEFBRED

RIAL e
(i)  FEEITIEHNBEEDRBEERB
TR 42 B 77 10 E B B AR KR TT ©

(iy REDRESEREZEHHEMR
BB ERET

Ll (B ERERAT 191
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

31.

192

30.

(b) Outstanding balance with related party

Details of outstanding balance with related party of the
Group at the end of the reporting period are set out in

note 22.

(c)
personnel

Compensation of key management

The emoluments of the Company’s directors, who are
also identified as members of key management of the

Group, are set out in note 11.

BEIRS (&)
PR HA SR - BN S W R T
A IB R S B M 5522 o

0 TEEEASHRH

ARBEFE(MRAEETRE
IBERCE ) RO F BN E R RE 1 o

OPERATING LEASES  RREHE
The Group as lessee AEBEREBEA
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Minimum lease payments paid under — &AZHEEE NARERENK
operating leases
— Premises S 8,938 5,606
- Office equipment YN 900 1,023
9,838 6,629
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31. OPERATING LEASES (continueq) 3. KEHE (2)
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBERAEBA(E)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments R E R NEBBRETAIREL
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable EHOH R R RIEEE N KA FEIER
operating leases which fall due as follows: BB R
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Within one year —F R 7,648 3,214
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZERF
(BEEMFREEA) 17,468 5,041
Over five years iR hF 10,595 -
35,711 8,255
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the REHENRIEAR S E L E Y X S
Group for its premises and office equipment. NERBEERNZHER-
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. ERKIE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Capital expenditure contracted for but ~ FLUKEE ¥ % ~ = M 3% 1@
not provided for in the consolidated BRI AVERTELRE G
financial statements in respect of BENELARX
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 6,342 3,270
33. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 3. FEHFBEERS
Part of the consideration for the issue of 250,000,000 shares to L% 17250,000,000/% A 17 T B B MR
Fullshare that occurred during the year ended 31 March 2017 B E2017F3A31H L FEE L 2 5
comprised the ordinary shares of Fullshare. ITREBFRER I ERR-
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34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3. EXREBEE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company (comprising issued share capital and
reserves).

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing
ratio. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of the capital, and will balance the
gearing ratio through the payment of dividends and new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:

AEBERHERNUABRASEZE
BEUFELSE RANBBELES
HRA BN FEUFERARRZ
Ol AEEEBREEEZFHTD
o

AEBHNERRBEEEARREHEAEA
FE(G s (REE BITRARFHE) -

AEEZERBEL R 2 ELERA
BARB - AEBEREARARE
BERZ BRI 5 B S AR
BRBEITHI ARBITHESNE
CREEBAFEERBEL K-

REBRBRERRZERAGBELEN
T

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT T

Debt () (=) - -
Equity 1% 983,811 870,555
Gearing ratio BEARBELE -% %

(i) Debt includes long— and short-term borrowings.

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. €T A
(@) Categories of financial instruments @ @MIBEEH
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Financial assets EMEE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 573,392 408,552
Financial assets at FVTPL BATESABIHNESREE
— Held for trading investments —RBEEEKRE 8,986 -
Loans and receivables B EWFIE
— Deposit and prepayments for ~ —ASZREBEZIRE K
life insurance policies SEENE ] 5,170 5,010
— Trade and other receivables —E 5 R E M EWFRIE 27,334 21,118
— Bank balances and cash —RITEBREIRE 186,030 288,851
218,534 314,979
Financial liabilities eMAR
Financial liabilities at REBHK AT EZERAE
amortised cost
- Trade and other payables — 85 Kk EMEMNRIE 28,676 23,494
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

196

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, held for trading investments,
deposit and prepayments for life insurance policies,
trade and other receivables, bank balances, trade and
other payables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
certain of these financial instruments include market risk
(including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain financial assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, hence risk exposure
to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Group has not
entered into any forward contract to hedge against the
foreign currency risk exposure. However, management will
consider to hedge these balances should the need arise.

35. €T A (#)

(b)

MHREREREEEREE

AEBEZTESHTABERAHE
HERE KEEERE AS
REzRERANRE -BEHK
Hib U RIE IRITEHR BH
REMBENRE ZFERTHE
ZAHBER B AR TR E S
TREcRIARBZARBRE
mHRAR (BHEINERE X
Rz R ErERE) « FEERER MR
BELER - BRNAIREZE
[\ B 2 BRI T XX = IR B
ZE R TE IR K& B AT (R
REJE Y B U SR EUE B 15 76

SR B

AREZETEMAERAMN
SN R 7 S T B
BEEZ AR AEELHTY
(EAEIIA WIS RR - 2
i ERE AN RENEEY

rh =27 &5 4+
R E R
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 35. R T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERREEEFEREE

policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(%)
S E R (E)
RI|ER  NEBAINEETE

CERAERE AR EEE
T

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Monetary assets denominated in: A R FIIMNEHER B E E
- RVB — AR 136,036 155,089
- United States dollar (‘US$”) —%7 (%)) 9,644 6,784
— New Taiwan dollar (‘NT$") —Hak((Fwakl) 779 3,122
Monetary liabilities denominated in: LA T3 NESHEH S A E
- RMB - AR 5,183 7,080
- NT$ —HaH 18 570

As HK$ is pegged to US$, the currency risk associated
with US$ and HK$ is considered minimal. The Group is
mainly exposed to the effect of fluctuation in RMB and
NT$.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB and NT$.
10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax loss or
a decrease in post-tax profit and a decrease in equity
where HK$ strengthens 10% against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 10% weakening of HK$ against the
relevant foreign currencies, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit or loss and equity.

—E—t 2 N\FER

PTEEE (ER) ZRERLDF

MRBTTEE TR BRETT
KETzEERBRILTER A
SEI2XARBEHEE RS

B/ 488
B

TREAAEEYHBETAARE
K& L R T B10%.2 8=
EFHIF - 10% 5 BIEREAEE
EIEA B 2 W|INE 2 I PR
ZHRRE L BB TR B HME
EXRNSIBAREH 2T
SOF At IE BB T AR INE
THE10%IE 0 TR 1& B 1858 hn
ol bR A 18 88 Rk > A 2R A o
L 78 7T 5 AH BRSNS B2 (E10% 1M
FoHENSEEMERSEE
EHREREARZEE -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

198

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

35. €T A (#)

MHREREREEEREE
(%)

Foreign currency risk (Continueqd) IR B (4E)
Sensitivity analysis B E T
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Impact of RMB IN: -4 1
Profit or loss and equity BmMiEs 13,085 14,801
Impact of NT$ Fakereg
Profit or loss and equity BmMiEs 76 255

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is not necessarily representative of
the inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure at the
end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is primarily exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits.

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. Management will
monitor the price risk and take appropriate actions should
the need arise.

ARBEERR BREDITAR
WRERIRE R ZSNE R BR
HEHR AR N RRAEE
P 2z B -

T fm b

AEBFEATZEETFBIRITHE
FBERZ A TFEFRRR -

RABEEAR/AEEMAR 2
MERBIWAEAX - E kW ER
S RE D

1B 1% /7 2

AEBEREN LETRAES A
i E AN EAR AR - B ES
SERERER INEHRE
REGEE T8
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
5% higher/lower:

° loss for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$3,288,000 (2017: Nil) as a result
of the changes in fair value of held for trading
investments and available-for-sale investments
which have been impaired; and

° investments revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$25,831,000
(2017: HK$20,428,000) for the Group as a result
of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

Credit risk

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

35. €M T A (@)

(b)

—E—t 2 N\FER

PTEEE (ER) ZRERLDF

MHEREREEEREE
(%)

A ()

BRESIT

AT BRI 57 To IR i 85
BMEH OB ABRERER -
WA T BB EH TR
5% :

s AEEEBRSHESBEEER
BENEREZAHOERE

3,288,000/ 7T (20174 :
/)R

o AKERESEMGHFEHESAD
HHEREAFEEZSM
0,8 A 425,831,000
70 (20174 : 20,428,00058

JC) °
EEREE

R|ERKR BAR5EF 75 REE
JEITEEM Al RSB K5
BRZAKE &R ERERR
TYIRARER A WIS Pra &
HEHREREEZF@E.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

200

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the credit risk
of the Group is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation or high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.

35. €T A (#)

(b)

MHREREREEEREE
(%)

=B (&)

SEEREKEERR BEED
Zk—x%Bh BEEEEER
B EEHEREBERER
IARE R BREUBR 1T B - Y (@ 8 R
Bt REBR S R E
REHZENREE SRR
AJ U [E] & 58 - DA B R 3 1 AT U [l
THA R MERE Bl
5 ARARESTRAAKEZE
ERRE RKKEE-

RBEeEERRER BE
RRSUFHAEER THER
2 (= RS E E T S 1 BT A
B4R 1T -

MBI E TR R

EEERBDECRERE N
BERTHFERERREHD
ReMREFEEWKFE - ARAAK
SEzEEREES WHRER
ERERBZTE-

TRAMIALAEEEREEL
RBRA KD BBER - ZRIIRE
TREBEZAMBRATRER
2 FTKIBEN RS EAFL
ERZ&xFRAM -2REEZT
HEDNZEWERRAREE
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 35. TR T H (2)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERREEEFEREE

policies (Continued) (#%&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEELREE (&)
Liquidity table THEEZLIE

On demand Total Total
Non-derivative or less than 1to3 undiscounted carrying
financial liabilities 1 month months  cash flows amount

EEXE FURAS

FERRMAR YR-ER -E=f@A RERE REEAT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ABTT  A¥Tr  BETr BT

2018 20185
Trade and other payables ZHRENMENTE 26,211 2,465 28,676 28,676
2017 20174
Trade and other payables ZHRHMENTE 18,078 5416 23,494 23,494
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis

35. €T A (#)

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs

used).

Financial assets

Fair value at 31 March

R=ZR=+—HZ2F{H

() TMITAZAFETE

()

BAAEREL L FHEITEZ
EHEERTHMEBZLF
iz}

REREHR AEEET
EREEDNRATFEAE
TR BHEZSEREE
ZRFEEETNEEER
(LEZFT R A E R N %
ABUE) ©

Valuation

Fair value technique(s)

eMEE 2018 2017  hierarchy and key input(s)
HK$’000 HK$'000 LFEFR FERTREIZTEBABRE
ERTT BT T
Equity securities listed in 573,392 408,552  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
Hong Kong classified ERF active market
as available-for-sale RIS 2 B
investments in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
REEMBRARSER
AHEEREY
HE ETRAE 5
Equity securities listed in 8,986 - Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
Hong Kong classified as F1R active market

held for trading investments

in the consolidated

statement of financial

position
RiEEMBRARSER

FIEEEREZ

B EmRAES
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(c) Fair value measurements of financial

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The directors of the Company estimate the fair value
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost using the discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

—E—t 2 N\FER

(c)

35. R T A (&)

THMTAZAFETE

(i) IHFRAEERIEL L FlER

B22MEEREMARZ
AFME

ARREFERFTRRER
ENMEFHREBHENAGE
ZeRMEENERABZA
FE-

ARAEERG NEEAER
TSR IR SHR A SR 2
TREELEBBAIKE
BEEERNFEREE-
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36. AR EEMB A RIFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
General information of subsidiaries MEBARZ—REHR
Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the R|ERAR ANEBETEMB QAT
reporting period are set out below. BEEINWT -
?Iace of . Proportion
incorporation/ .
. . . ownership interest
establishment/  Class of Paid up issued/
operations shares registered capital held by the Company
INT] ﬁtt
Name of subsidiary HEMRBL WX held ERTREE FAAREARRASLA Principal activities
MEAFREE BEHR RERNERN BE /BEMEE 2018 2017 TEEH
Hin Sang Group Holding  British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$30,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited EBRAES BRI 30,0007 (direct) (direct)  HEHER
MTEEERRAR AR (E#) (B#%)
HM Advertising Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$880,000 100% 100% Formulating and implementing
Limited A% Lak 880,0007% T (indirect) (indiirect) overall marketing and branding
(M%) (H#) strategies and preparing and

controlling annual budgets for
marketing activities for individual
branded products

HE RETRESH R R KB
RGBSR B M 2 8

EBNFEEE
Hin Sang Hong Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$280,000 100% 100% Investment holding; brand
Limited A% Lak 280,000% 7T (indirect) (indiirect) development and management;
FTEITBR AR (M%) (H#) and development, sales and

distribution of healthcare
products, personal care products
and household products
REZR mERERER: RH
¥ HERNEREER BAZ

BERRREER
PTEEREE ORI PRC Registered RMB65,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding; Wholesale of
BRRF (*Hin FE capital AR #65,000,0007T (indirect) (indlirect) healthcare products of Hin Sang
Sang Holding Group A AR (M%) (H#) ($74) and skin care products
(Shenzhen) Company of Beautymate (EMO) in the
Limited”)* PRC

REER: RPERETENRREE
mRENOTEEEE R
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36. AR EEMBE A RIFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued) MBARZ—RER (&)
Place of Proportion
incorporation/ L
ownership interest
establishment/  Class of Paid up issued/
operations shares registered capital held by the Company
INT]
Name of subsidiary M, B,/ held BRITRERE FAARERERRALA Principal activities
MELFRE HEEHE RERRER BF iREF 2018 2017 TEER
F1%E% (R BRAA PRC Registered RMB1,180,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of healthcare products of
(“Hin Tai Pharmaceutical /1 capital AR ¥1,180,0007C (indirect) (indirect) Hin Sang (#74) and skin care
(Shenzhen) Company AEX (M%) (%) products of Beautymate (E[10
Limited”)* i) in the PRC

R E R BT A NREERREN
DR EEEM

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property holding
& Research Institute Co., & L@ 18T (indirect) (ndirect)  MEHAE
Limited (F#&) (M%)
BRHUEHRMERAA
ENZFEBRERRAF  Tawan Registered NT$24,000,000 100% 100% Wholesale of skin care products
(‘Beautymate International A& capital 24,000,000%7 & & (indirect) (indiirect) under the brand of Beautymate
Limited")* AR (F#&) (H%) (EMOFE) in Taiwan
RAEEREENOFRENEEER
Tai Wo Tong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$24,000,000 100% 100% Packing of products developed and
Pharmaceutical (Hong &8 LAk 24,000,0007 7T (indirect) (indlirect) sold by the Group
Kong) Company Limited (M%) (H%) REASEREREENER
AMEREE(FE)
BRAAF
PTHERERE S (FR) PRC Registered RMB26,000,000 100% - Manufacturing and sale of health
BRAR H capital AR #26,000,0007T (indirect) supplements and products
(*Hin Sang Health and AfMER (M) HERHERREBRARRER

Medical (Guangdong)
Company Limited")*
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 #;Z201843A31H I F/Z

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

36. ARBEENBLATFE

(#&)

MEBARZ—RES (&)

Place of .
Proportion
incorporation/ .
ownership interest
establishment/  Class of Paid up issued/
operations shares registered capital /h\eld by the Company

Name of subsidiary M, B, held BRITRERE FAARERERRALA Principal activities

MELFRE HEEHE RERMRER BF iMEF 2018 2017 FERH

Hin Fai International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 68% 68% Online sale of products developed
Holding Company A% LAk 10,000,000/ 7T (indirect) (indlirect) by the Group
Limited (M%) (M%) BIHEErSERENER

TR ERAR AR

Hin Feng Group Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,000,000 51% 51% Investment holding
(nternational) Holding &/ LAk 60,000,0007 7T (indirect) (indirect)  REZR
Company Limited (M%) (E#)

(*Hin Feng”)

T2 B (BIFR) R
BRDE ([$78])

Hin Sang Children Chinese  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 51% 51% Provision of Chinese medical
Medical & Health Service &7 LAk 10,000,000 7 (indirect) (indlirect) healthcare related services
Company Limited (M%) (E%) REPEREEBRS

EREREREDLE
RRAA

# A wholly foreign-owned enterprise. # —ENEEERE-

*

The English name is for identification only.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

WXL THEHBR -

ERBIEZRAIBREAEBE

BMABEZAKENBAR EER
R 2IHMHBARIZERGER
BB IR e

LM B A RN FRBEITEAERE
%O
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:

36.

ARBREEMBAFFE
(%)

BEEAEEREZZFZEK
BRARFE

TRRIAEERER ERNIFFEBE s
ZIEEREMBLRRFSE:

Place of
Name of incorporation/ Proportion of ownership interests  Loss allocated to non-controlling  Accumulated non-controlling
subsidiary operations held by non-controlling interests interest interests
HELATER ERm EEHE FRREARFCHERERLA AREFRREESZER RitFaRER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EWTR BETTT ERTT EBTL
Hin Feng* Hong Kong 49% 49% 6,840 1,700 23,443 27,751
it 30
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controling interests 22,596 8219
BEFERRR BUFEAMBAR
46,039 35,970

*excluding non-controlling interests of Hin Feng’s subsidiary

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

[
p

Z—t /ZE2-N\FER

* NEEITEMB AR Z FERERE

AEBBEAERNFERER 2 SHEB
NAZWHERBREBIFEIN M T T
I ERMBERERESEN 2
B
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 #;Z201843A31H I F/Z

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

208

36. AR EENBELATFE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#&)
(Continued)
Hin Feng and subsidiaries TTERKEQR
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT ST IT
Current assets mENEE 74,975 61,615
Non-current assets EMBEE 8,927 95
Current liabilities mBEE (17,390) (59)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE - -
Net assets EEFHE 66,512 61,655
Revenue WA 935 330
Expenses 2 (16,482) (3,801)
Loss for the year FREE (15,547) (3,471)
Other comprehensive income FAEMEERE
for the year 6,392 108
Total comprehensive expense FRNEHAXERE
for the year (9,155) (8,363)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ENITERFEERERRE
interests of Hin Feng = -
Net cash outflow from E EBIR e R hFE
operating activities (25,306) (9,090)
Net cash outflow from KERBHES ML FRE
investing activities (9,328) (1,940)
Net cash inflow from BMEEER S RAFRE
financing activities 31,012 65,018
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRReEEY
cash equivalents CR ) /18 hnF 58 (3,622) 53,988
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37. XRAAYH BN KRR B

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRETIT BT T

Non-current assets FEREEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EERARMIEE 71,618 71,618
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 573,392 408,552
645,010 480,170

Current assets e EE
Prepayments B FRIB 314 337
Held for trading investments RIEEERE 8,986 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A B 5B 312,698 357,934
Bank balances IRIT4E R 1,680 198
323,678 358,469
Total assets SEHE 968,688 838,639
Current liabilities mBEE

Accruals FEETE A 24 38
Amounts due to subsidiaries RSB B A R FUIE 4,490 38
4,514 76
Net current assets mENEERE 319,164 358,393
Total assets less current liabilities BWEMERTHERE 964,174 838,563

Capital and reserves BEXR iR
Share capital [ 109,351 109,012
Reserves i 854,823 729,551
Total equity T PY L 964,174 838,563

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June

AR BF AR O 3R B 20186 425
AESEESHAERBRETE  WhHI

TEEREFE:

2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Pang Siu Hin Kwan Lai Man
B FER
Director Director

EE EFE
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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37. AR A MBRR TR EHE

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (#&)
(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves: AREREEE:
Investments Share
Share revaluation options  Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
BE
BRipAE ERGGF BRERXE HEED it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT A%t B¥%Tr BT
At 1 April 2016 7201644 A18 219,949 - 8,286 17,322 245,557
Profit for the year F R - - - 27,648 27,648
Fair value gain on available- ~ A[EHERE 2
for-sale investments NFERE - 8,314 - - 8,314
Dividends recognised as BRAEDIRARE
distribution - - - 32569)  (32,569)
Issue of shares by IAREE T BT
subscription 469,512 - - - 469,512
Issue of shares on exercise of FE 1T M 1T
share options Bzt 12,832 - (5,486) - 7,346
Recognition of equity-settled ~ FERRME 25 45 E AR5
share-based payments REBHRR - - 3,743 - 3,743
At 31 March 2017 P201743A31H 702,293 8,314 6,543 12,401 729,551
Profit for the year FRE A - - - 34,564 34,564
Fair value gain on available- ~ AJftHERE 2
for-sale investments NEERE - 91,728 - - 91,728
Reclassification adjustment on R At H &R &R E
impairment of available-for- B 7 & D HE R
sale investments - 16,348 - - 16,348
Dividends recognised as BRABD KA RS
distribution - - - (1823  (21,829)
Shares repurchased and e REERA
cancelled (1,656) - - - (1,656)
Issue of shares on exercise of [F T BERRE M 21T
share options & 1n 6,090 - (2,658) - 3,432
Recognition of equity-settled T F2 1 % 45 & LA B {2
share-based payments REBHRR - - 2,679 - 2,679
At 31 March 2018 ®2018%3A31H 706,727 116,390 6,564 25,142 854,823
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 # 2201843 /A31H IF F/E

38. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 38. MEMEBEMH

On 25 April 2018, Beautymate Hong Kong Limited, a wholly 2018F4 A25R  Aparlz 2 BN B
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the provisional 72 A]Beautymate Hong Kong Limited
sale and purchase agreement with Emwell Limited for the HEEASR AR EREE RS
acquisition of an industrial property located in Hong Kong at a DB RBE B2 TEME RER
consideration of HK$158,380,000. 158,380,000/% 7T °
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AR I 15 1t

OPERATING RESULTS

RExi|

For the Year Ended 31 March

HEANBLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BET T BETL BRI EBETT
Revenue A 253,171 214,959 227,460 201,815 188,550
Gross Profit E7 142,341 122,663 138,369 133,243 131,175
Profit/(Loss) for the year FREF,/ (B#B) 49,704 11,051 21215 8,308 (7,221)

~ 2 2

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE - BELKER

For the Year Ended 31 March

HEASIALEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT AR EBRTT
Non-current assets ERBEE 42,600 48,610 83,093 565,592 764,258
Current assets MBEE 115,684 313,504 290,942 334,295 253,256
Total assets HEHE 158,284 362,114 374,035 899,887 1,017,514
Current liabilities mEAE 63,989 27,432 27,537 29,332 33,703
Net current assets RHEEFE 51,695 286,072 263,405 304,963 219,553
Total assets less current liabilities BEHERTDAR 94,295 334,682 346,498 870,555 983,811
Non-current liabilities FRBER - - - - =
Net assets HEBRE 94,295 334,682 346,498 870,555 983,811
Capital and reserves BEREMH

Share capital BRA 30,000 80,000 80,047 109,012 109,351
Reserves i 64,295 254,682 263,250 725,573 828,421
Equity attrbutable to owners of the Company AR A AJEIGE 94,295 334,682 343,297 834,585 937,772
Non-controlling interests FEMRER - - 3,201 35,970 46,039
Total equity BB 94,295 334,682 346,498 870,555 983,811
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